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2004 Letter 1to Stockholders

To our Stockholders:

In 2004, we achieved the company’s first profitable fiscal year since its inception. A combination of operating expense
management, new product introductions and outstanding performances by our employees and independent sales teams
contributed to our success. For the full year ended December 31, 2004, Ramtron's revenue increased 44% to $57.8 mil-
lion from $40.2 million for 2003. Full-year income from continuing operations was $3.9 million, or $0.17 per diluted share,
compared with a loss from continuing operations of $4.2 million, or a loss of $0.19 per diluted share, for the prior year.

Full-Year 2004 Highlights:

Total FRAM product sales grew 40% over 2003

We introduced six new FRAM products

FRAM average gross margin increased three percentage points over 2003 to 54%

Seven percent of FRAM revenue in 2004 was generated by new products announced in 2003 or later
Four percent of FRAM revenue in 2004 was generated by new Processor Companion products

We introduced a 1-megabit high-density FRAM product

We began qualifying FRAM products to meet automotive industry AECQ100 standards

We settled the National Semiconductor patent dispute

With the ENEL metering program coming to an end in 2006, we focused on expanding our non-ENEL, or core FRAM, cus-
tomer base in order to replace ENEL revenue and continue growing our business. As a result of these efforts, our core
FRAM sales grew nearly 87% in 2004, which contributed to a compound annual growth rate of approximately 100% for
core FRAM sales since 2001. It will take a few quarters to completely replace the ENEL revenue, but since our core
FRAM business has grown significantly over the past few years, we are confident that we are in a strong position to make
the transition.

Despite chalienging conditions in the overall semiconductor market, our results show that there is a growing need for inno-
vative, memory-based, semiconductor solutions featuring FRAM memory. Consumption drivers within our target market
segments include the proliferation of electronic content in automobiles, the need for more efficient power distribution, and
the trend toward low-power components and environmentally friendly system designs.

Data generated by sensors in today's sophisticated automobiles needs to be stored reliably in nonvolatile memory. No
other true nonvolatile memory is able to store sensor data faster, at a higher frequency, or as power-efficiently as our
FRAM memory. In the utility industry, our success with ENEL has put the spotiight on FRAM devices as the ideal memory
for advanced utility metering products. Our metering business worldwide continues to gain traction as more time-of-use
and multi-tariff meters are adopted by the utility industry. FRAM products are also at the forefront of the trend toward
environmentally friendly semiconductor components. Many of our FRAM products are now available in "green" lead-free
packaging, and our FRAM products' ability to inherently store data without power eliminates the need to use an extra bat-
tery for data storage in high-performance nonvolatile memory applications.

In computing and information systems, several areas beyond our current business in printers, copiers and RAID con-
trollers look promising. An emerging area that we believe could drive future volume is electronic shelf-labeling. Since
electronic labels require battery power to operate, the fast, low-power write features of FRAM products can help extend

battery life.




In addition, there are a number of consumer applications that can leverage FRAM benefits. High-end TVs are using
FRAM products today. Also in the consumer market, we are pursuing FRAM product use in video games. Imagine being
able to flip off the power switch on your portable game player and store your game play location instantly.

| hope that this gives you a sense of the diversity of FRAM applications and the momentum that is building for FRAM
products in the marketplace. | am continually encouraged by the reception that our products are drawing from our existing
and new customers. Our conversations with customers are deepening, which fuels our understanding of their plans and
resulting opportunities for us. With this interaction, | believe that we can continue to expand our FRAM-based semicon-
ductor solutions to meet the ever-increasing demands of our customers.

To feed this growing market interest in FRAM, we expanded our product line in 2004 and have more new products
planned. In 2004, we added a new line of Processor Companion products to our groundbreaking 31X Processor
Companion family. We also announced our first 1-megabit FRAM device, which is the highest-density FRAM product we
have ever introduced. New products in development include more Processor Companions, a new application-specific
standard product, and a 4-megabit FRAM memory product, which is being co-developed with Texas Instruments.

Recently, we completed initiatives to facilitate the execution of our business strategy and accelerate the growth of our
semiconductor product business. In July 2005, we divested our Mushkin subsidiary so we can better focus on the growth
of our FRAM and integrated semiconductor product lines. In August 2005, we acquired Montreal, Canada-based Goal
Semiconductor Inc. for approximately $2.3 million in cash and 1.95 million shares of Ramtron stock. Goal is a fabless
semiconductor company that designs and develops mixed-signal integrated circuits for the embedded data acquisition
market. We believe this acquisition will enable us to accelerate our product development strategy and provide our cus-
tomers with an expanded portfolio of FRAM-enabled integrated semiconductor products.

In closing, we view 2005 as a year of transition and growing opportunity. With the completion of the ENEL metering pro-
gram approaching, our goal is to emerge as a stronger company with more products and customers, which we believe will
lead to higher-quality and more diversified revenue streams. Based on our recent performance, we appear to be well on
our way.

Sincerely,

(ol m

William W. Staunton |l
Chief Executive Officer
October 25, 2005
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RAMTRIEN

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
December 2, 2005

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of Ramtron International
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), will be held on December 2, 2005, at 10:30 a.m., Mountain Time, at
the Hilton Garden inn, 1810 Briargate Parkway, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920, for the following purposes, each as
more fully described in the attached Proxy Statement:

1. To elect nine directors. The names of the nominees to be presented for election are: William G. Howard, William W.
Staunton, 1ll, Greg B. Jones, Eric A. Balzer, Klaus Fleischmann, Doris Keitel-Schulz, William George, Jack L. Saltich
and Theodore J. Coburn.

2. To approve the Company's 2005 Incentive Award Plan.

3. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as independent auditors of the Company for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2005.

4, To transact other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment(s) thereof.

Only record holders of the Company's Common Stock at the close of business on October 6, 2005, are entitled to notice
of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Al stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Whether you own a few or many shares of
stock and whether or not you expect to attend the Annual Meeting in person, it is important that your shares be voted to
ensure your representation and the presence of a quorum at the annual meeting. Most beneficial stockholders who own
shares through a bank or broker may vote by telephone or the Internet as well as by mail. Registered stockholders who
own their shares in their own name must vote by mail. If you vote by mail, please complete, sign, date and return the
accompanying proxy card in the enclosed envelope. If you decide to attend the annual meeting and wish to change your
proxy vote, you may do so by voting in person at the annual meeting. Your proxy may be revoked at any time prior to the
annual meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Proxy Statement.

By Order of the Board of Directors

S

Eric A. Balzer
Secretary

Colorado Springs, Colorado
October 26, 2005




RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
PROXY STATEMENT
INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

The enclosed proxy is solicited by and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ramtron International Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (“Ramtron” or the “Company”), for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”)
to be held on December 2, 2005, at 10:30 a.m., Mountain Time, or at any adjournment(s) thereof, for the purposes set
forth herein and in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the
Hilton Garden Inn, 1810 Briargate Parkway, Colcrado Springs, Colorado 80920.

The Company's principal place of business is 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921.

The proxy statement and accompanying proxy are first being mailed to the Company's shareholders on or about
October 31, 2005.

VOTING AND PROXIES
What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At the Annual Meeting, shareholders will be asked to act upon the matters outlined in the notice of meeting on the cover
page and described in this proxy statement, including the election of directors, approval of the Company's 2005 Incentive
Award Plan, and ratification of the appointment of our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005.
In addition, management will respond to questions from shareholders.

Who is entitled to vote?

Only holders of record of shares of the Company's Common Stock at the close of business on October 6, 2005 (the
“Record Date”) are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. If you were a shareholder of record on that date, you will be
entitled to vote all of the shares that you held on that date at the meeting, or any postponements or adjournments of the
meeting. 24,387,830 shares of Common Stock were issued and outstanding as of the close of business on the Record
Date.

What are the voting rights of the holders of the Company's Common Stock?
Each outstanding share of the Company's Common Stock will be entitled to one vote on each matter.
How can I vote my shares without attending the Annual Meeting?

Whether you hold shares directly as the shareholder of record or beneficially in street name, you may direct how your
shares are voted without attending the Annual Meeting. If you are a shareholder of record, you may vote by submitting a
proxy. If you hold shares beneficially in street name, you may vote by submitting voting instructions to your broker, trustee
or nominee. For directions on how to vote, please refer to the instructions below and those included on your proxy card or,
for shares held beneficially in street name, the voting instruction card provided by your broker, trustee or nominee.

Shareholders of record of Common Stock may submit proxies by completing, signing and dating their proxy cards and
mailing them in the accompanying pre-addressed envelope. Shareholders who hold shares beneficially in street name
may vote by mail by completing, signing, and dating the voting instruction cards provided and mailing them in the accom-
panying pre-addressed envelopes.
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Can | change my vote after | return my proxy card?

Yes. Even after you have submitted your proxy, you may revoke or change your vote at any time before the proxy is exer-
cised by filing with the Corporate Secretary of the Company either a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing
a later date. The powers of the proxy holders will be suspended if you attend the meeting in person and so request,
although attendance at the meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy.

Is my vote confidential?

Proxy instructions, baliots and voting tabulations that identify individual shareholders are handied in a manner that pro-
tects your voting privacy. Your vote will not be disclosed either within the Company or to third parties, except: (1) as nec-
essary to meet applicable legal requirements, (2) to allow for the tabulation of votes and certification of the vote, and (3) to
facilitate a successful proxy solicitation. Occasionally, shareholders provide written comments on their proxy card, which
are then forwarded to management of the Company.

How are votes counted?

In the election of directors, you may vote "FOR" all of the nominees or your vote may be "WITHHELD" with respect to one
or more of the nominees.

For the other items of business, you may vote "FOR," "AGAINST" or "ABSTAIN." If you "ABSTAIN," the abstention has the
same effect as a vote "AGAINST." If you provide specific instructions with regard to certain items, your shares will be
voted as you instruct on such items. If you sign your proxy card or voting instruction card without giving specific instruc-
tions, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board ("FOR" all of the nominees to the
Board, "FOR" the approval of the Company’s 2005 incentive Award Plan, and "FOR” ratification of the independent audi-
tors).

What is the voting requirement to approve each of the proposals?

In the election of directors, the nine persons receiving the highest number of "FOR" votes cast in their favor at the Annual
Meeting will be elected. All other proposals require the affirmative "FOR" vote of a majority of those shares present in per-
son or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on those proposals at the Annual Meeting. If you hold shares beneficially
in street name and do not provide your broker with voting instructions, your shares may constitute "broker non-votes."
Generally, broker non-votes occur on a matter when a broker is not permitted to vote on that matter without instructions
from the beneficial owner and instructions are not given. In tabulating the voting result for any particular proposal, shares
that constitute broker non-votes are not considered entitled to vote on that proposal. Thus, broker non-votes will not affect
the outcome of any matter being voted on at the Annual Meeting, assuming that a quorum is obtained. Abstentions have
the same effect as votes against the matter.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority in the aggregate voting power of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote will constitute a quorum, permitting the meeting to conduct its
business. As of the Record Date, 24,387,830 shares of Common Stock, representing the same number of votes, were out-
standing. Thus, the presence of the holders of Common Stock representing at least 12,193,916 votes will be required to
establish a quorum. Proxies received but marked as abstentions and broker non-votes will be included in the calculation
of the number of shares considered to be present at the Annual Meeting.




What happens if additional matters are presented at the Annual Meeting?

Other than the three items of business described in this proxy statement, we are not aware of any other business to be
acted upon at the Annual Meeting. If you grant a proxy, the persons named as proxy-holders, Greg B. Jones and

William W. Staunton, will have the discretion to vote your shares on any additional matters properly presented for a vote at
the Annual Meeting. If for any unforeseen reason any of our nominees is not available as a candidate for director, the per-
sons named as proxy holders will vote your proxy for such other candidate or candidates as may be nominated by the
Board. '

What should | do if | receive more than one set of voting materials?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy statement and multiple

//
proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you //
may receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a share- ! =
holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. 1 %?’
Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive. : é’

b

Do the shareholders have any appraisal rights with regard to any of the proposals? | §
No. Under Delaware law, shareholders are not entitied to appraisal rights with respect to these proposals. 1 ;%
Who will bear the cost of soliciting votes for the Annual Meeting? K\ e
\\\\

The Company is making this solicitation and will pay the entire cost of preparing, assembling, printing, mailing and distrib-
uting these proxy materials and soliciting votes. Provided, however, that in the event the Company determines it is neces-
sary to engage a proxy soliciting firm for the purpose of soliciting proxies for items to be voted upon, the Company may do
so prior to the meeting. Any such firm engaged would be paid customary fees for their services. If you choose to access
the proxy materials over the Internet, you are responsible for internet access charges you may incur. In addition to the
mailing of these proxy materials, the solicitation of proxies or votes may be made in person, by telephone or by electronic
communication by our directors, officers and employees, who will not receive any additional compensation for such solici-
tation activities. Upon request, we will also reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries
for forwarding proxy and solicitation materials to shareholders.

Where can | find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?

We intend to announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and publish final results in our annual report on
Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2005.

What is the difference between holding my shares as a shareholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

Most shareholders hold their shares through a broker or other nominee rather than directly in their own name. As summa-
rized below, there are some distinctions between shares held of record and those owned beneficially.

o Shareholder of Record - If your shares are registered directly in your name with the Company's transfer agent,
Citibank, N.A., you are considered, with respect to those shares, the shareholder of record, and these proxy
materials are being sent directly to you by the Company. As the shareholder of record, you have the right to
grant your voting proxy directly to the Company's designated proxyholders or to vote in person at the meeting.
The Company has enclosed or sent a proxy card for you to use together with the notice of meeting and this
proxy statement.




o Beneficial Owner - If your shares are held in a brokerage account or by another nominee, you are considered
the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you
together with a voting instruction card. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, trustee,
or nominee how to vote and are also invited to attend the annuai meeting. Since a beneficial owner is not the
shareholder of record, you may not vote these in person at the meeting unless you obtain a "legal proxy" from
the broker, trustee, or nominee that holds your shares, giving you the right to vote the shares at the meeting.
Your broker, trustee, or nominee has enclosed or provided voting instructions for you to use in directing the
broker, trustee, or nominee how to vote your shares.

How will my proxy be voted?

Your proxy, when properly signed and returned to us, and not revoked, will be voted in accordance with your instructions
relating to the election of directors and on Proposals 2 and 3. We are not aware of any other matter that may be properly
presented other than the election of directors and Proposals 2 and 3. If any other matter is properly presented, the per-
sons named in the enclosed form of proxy will have discretion to vote in their best judgment. If your shares are held in the
name of a bank, broker or other nominee, you must obtain a proxy, executed in your favor, from the holder of record, to be
able to vote at the Annual Meeting.

What if I don't mark the boxes on my proxy?

Unless you give other instructions on your form of proxy, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with the
recommendations of the Board of Directors. The Board's recommendation is set forth together with the description of
each Proposal in this Proxy Statement. In summary, the Board recommends a vote FOR:

e The election of William G. Howard, William W. Staunton, lll, Greg B. Jones, Eric A. Balzer, Klaus Fleischmann,
Doris Keitel-Schulz, William George, Jack L. Saltich and Theodore J. Coburn as directors.

e The approval of the Company's 2005 Incentive Award Plan.

e The ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2005.

Can | go to the Annual Meeting if | vote by proxy?

Yes. Attending the Annual Meeting does not revoke the proxy. However, you may revoke your proxy at any time before it is
actually voted by giving written notice to the secretary of the Annual Meeting or by delivering a later dated proxy.

Wil my vote be public?

No. As a matter of policy, shareholder proxies, ballots and tabulations that identify individual shareholders are kept confi-
dential and are only available as actually necessary to meet legal requirements.

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE, AND PROMPTLY RETURN
THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PREPAID ENVELOPE. SHARES OF COMMON
STOCK REPRESENTED BY A PROPERLY EXECUTED PROXY RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE VOTE AT THE ANNUAL
MEETING AND NOT REVOKED WILL BE VOTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING AS DIRECTED BY THE PROXY. IT IS
NOT ANTICIPATED THAT ANY MATTERS OTHER THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THE PROXY STATEMENT WILL BE
PRESENTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING. IF OTHER MATTERS ARE PRESENTED, PROXIES WILL BE VOTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE DISCRETION OF THE PROXY HOLDERS.




Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposais

The Company expects to hold its 2006 Annual Meeting during the first half of June 2006. Proposals of stockholders of the
Company, which are intended to be presented by such stockholders at the next annual meeting of stockholders of the
Company to be held after the 2005 Annual Meeting should be received by the Company no later than January 31, 2006 or
within a reasonable time prior to the Company's filing of its proxy materials, in order that they may be included in the proxy
statement and form of proxy relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting. 1t is recommended that stockholders submitting propos-
als direct them to the Secretary of the Company by certified mail, return receipt requested, in order to ensure timely
delivery. No such proposals were received with respect to the Annual Meeting scheduled for December 2, 2005.

PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Nominees

Aboard of nine directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise instructed, proxy holders will vote the
proxies received by them for the nine nominees named below, all of whom are currently directors of the Company. It is
not expected that any nominee will be unable or will decline to serve as a director. If, however, any nominee of the
Company is unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be voted for any
nominee who shall be designated by the present Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. In the event additional persons are
nominated for election as directors, the proxy holders intend to vote all proxies received by them for the nominees listed
below and not for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees listed below. The term of office of each per-
son elected as a director at the Annual Meeting will continue until the next annual meeting of stockholders and such time =
as his/her successor is duly elected and qualified or until his/her earlier resignation, removal or death. L

The names of the nominees, who constitute all of the current directors, and certain information about them, are set forth
below:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company
William G. Howard(® 63 Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit
Committee, and Chairman of the Compensation Committee
Klaus Fleischmann(?) 42 Director
Doris Keitel-Schulz( 46 Director
William W. Staunton 57 Director, Chief Executive Officer
Greg B. Jones 57 Director, President-Technology Group
Eric A. Balzer 57 Director, Chief Financial Officer and
_ Corporate Secretary
William George 62 Director
Jack L. Saltich 62 Director
Theodore J. Coburn 52 Director
(1) Member of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees.

All directors and Executive Officers are elected by the Board of Directors for an initial term which continues until the Board
meeting immediately preceding the next annual statutory meeting of the stockholders, and thereafter are elected for one-
year terms or until their successors have been elected.

Dr. Howard has served as a Director since July 1994. Since September 1990, Dr. Howard has been an independent engi-
neering consultant to various entities, including SEMATECH, the Semiconductor Industry Association and Dow Corning.
From October 1987 until December 1990, he served as a Senior Fellow at the National Academy of Engineering while on
leave from Motorola. From 1969 to 1990, Dr. Howard was employed by Motorola where he most recently served as
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Corporate Senior Vice President and Director of Research and Development. Dr. Howard is a member of the National
Academy of Engineering and a fellow of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and of the American Association for the
Advancement of Science. Dr. Howard is Chairman of Thunderbird Technologies, a private company developing new tran-
sistor technologies and is a Director of Credence Systems, Inc., a public company that manufactures electronic test equip-
ment; and Xilinx, Inc., a public company that manufactures integrated circuits.

Mr. Fleischmann has served as a Director since May 2001. Mr. Fleischmann currently serves as the Vice President of
Business Development for Infineon Technology AG since November 2003. From July 2000 to October 2003, he served as
Senior Director of Business Development and Relations for Infineon Technologies' Memory Products Division. Holding
various positions with Siemens AG, the parent company of Infineon, Mr. Fleischmann has over 20 years of business and
financial management experience including positions as financial controller for wafer fabrication and semiconductor
assembly and testing facilities. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Fleischmann held the position of Director of Business
Administration Products, Projects and Research and Development for Infineon's Memory Products Division. In 1997,

Mr. Fleischmann was named Director of Business Administration Products, Projects and Research and Development for
Siemens' Memory Products Division.

Ms. Doris Keitel-Schulz has served as a Director since October 2003. In 1999, Ms. Keitel-Schulz was named Director of
Special Projects within the Memory Products Group of Infineon Technologies AG (formerly Siemens Semiconductor),
which position she continues to hold. Ms. Doris Keitel-Schulz is a 20-year veteran in the development, manufacture and
application of semiconductor components. Ms. Keitel-Schulz holds a Masters degree in Material Science and Electronics
from the University of Erlangen-Nueremberg.

Mr. Staunton joined us as a Director and our Chief Executive Officer in December 2000. Prior to joining us, Mr. Staunton
served as Chief Operating Officer of Maxwell Technologies, a company which designs and manufactures multi-chip mod-
ules and board products for commercial sateliite applications, from March 1999 until December 2000. Mr. Staunton was
Executive Vice President of Valor Electronics Inc. from April 1996 until February 1999. Valor Electronics designs and
manufactures magnetic filter products for use in local area networks and communications products. Mr. Staunton holds a
Bachelors of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Utah State University.

Mr. Jones has been a Director since February 1995 and has served as our President - Technology Group since July 2001.
In February 1995, Mr. Jones was named President and Chief Operating Officer and served in that capacity untif July 2001
when he was named President - Technology Group. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the U.S.
Naval Academy, Annapolis and a Master of Science degree in Management Sciences from Stanford University.

Mr. Balzer was named our Chief Financial Officer in October 2004. Mr. Balzer has served as one of our Directors since
September 1998. From November 1999 until October 2004, Mr. Balzer was retired. From January 1990 until his retire-
ment in November 1999, Mr. Balzer served as Senior Vice President of Operations for Advanced Energy Industries, Inc. a
company that develops, manufactures and markets power conversion devices for the semiconductor equipment industry.
Mr. Balzer is also a director of All America Real Estate Development, a public company, involved in real estate develop-
ment. Mr. Balzer holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance from the University of Colorado.

Dr. William George became a director of the Company in August 2005. Since August 1999, Dr. George has served as
Senior Vice President of Operation for ON Semiconductor, a supplier of performance power solutions that spun off from
Motorola, Inc. in 1999. From June 1997 until July 1999, Dr. George served as corporate vice president and director of
Manufacturing for Motorola's Semiconductor Components Group. Dr. George served as a Supervisory Director of Metron
Technology, a global supplier of semiconductor equipment and materials, from October 2003 until it was acquired by
Applied Materials, Inc. in October 2004. Dr. George received a B.S. degree in Metallurgical Engineering from the
University of Oklahoma and a Ph.D. in Materials Science from Purdue University.
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Mr. Jack Saltich became a director of the Company in August 2005. From July 1999 until his retirement in August 2005,
Mr. Saltich has served as president and chief executive officer of Three-Five Systems, Inc., a global provider of electronics
manufacturing services. From September 1996 to July 1999, Mr. Saltich was vice president and general manager of the
European Electronics Center of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. ("AMD") and served in various positions with AMD com-
mencing in May 1993. He is also chairman of Brillian Corporation, a public company that specializes in liquid crystal on
silicon displays for the HDTV market, a director of Immersion Corporation, a public company that specializes in the
deployment of haptics technology, and chairman of privately held Vitex Systems, Inc., which targets the organic light-emit-
ting diode and flexible display markets. Mr. Saltich received both B.S. and M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering from the
University of lllingis.

In September 2005, Three-Five Systems, Inc. filed voluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy petition with the federal bankruptcy
court in Arizona. The bankruptcy petition is part of ongoing actions taken by Three-Five Systems, Inc. to sell off its assets
and subsidiaries, wind up its business, and attempt to preserve the value of the Company for its shareholders.

Mr. Theodore J. Coburn joined the Company as a director in September 2005. Since August 1991, Mr. Coburn has
served as president of the Coburn Capital Group, a boutique investment bank based in New York City. Since April 2005,
Mr. Coburn has also been a partner of Triton Real Estate Partners, a real estate development company. He serves as
chairman of the Allianz Global Investors Mutual Fund Complex. From March 2002 to August 2003, Mr. Coburn was senior
vice president and head of the Domestic Corporate Client Group at the Nasdaq Stock Market, inc. Mr. Coburn received a
B.S. degree in Economics and Finance from the University of Virginia; an M.B.A. degree from Columbia Graduate School
of Business; and a Master of Divinity degree, a Masters degree in Education, and a Certificate of Advanced Studies in
Cognitive Development from Harvard University.

Mr. Coburn, in his role as trustee for mutual funds within the Allianz Dresdner fund and asset management family has
been named in certain pending class action lawsuits, including In re Allianz Dresdner Mutual Funds Fee Litigation, Civil
Action No.3:04CV280 (CFD) (in the Federal District Court of CT), involving allegations of improper revenue sharing
arrangements among the Allianz funds; and Pingitore v. Allianz Dresdner Asset Management of America L.P., et al. Civil
Action No. 04-1933 (Hon. J. Frederick Motz) and McBride v. Allianz Dresdner Asset Management of America L.P., et al.
Civil Action No. 04-1924, consolidated in In re Mutual Funds Investment Litigation, MDL Docket 1586 (in the Federal
District Court of MD), alleging violations of the federal securities laws and state common law for alleged market timing in
the Allianz funds. A motion to dismiss each of the complaints is pending before the court awaiting decision.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE
STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF EACH OF
THE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE.

INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine directors. The Board of Directors held a total of eight meetings during
2004. Each Director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (a) the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors
held during the period for which he/she has been a director and (b) the total number of meetings held by all committees
of the Board of Directors on which he/she served during the period. While the Company does not have a formal policy
regarding the attendance of directors at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, all directors are encouraged to attend. All
but one Director of the Board of Directors attended last year's Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Board of Directors consists of a majority of "independent directors" as such term is defined in The Nasdag Stock
Market Marketplace Rules. The Board of Directors has determined that Dr. William G. Howard, Mr. Kiaus Fleischmann,
Ms. Doris Keitel-Schulz, Dr. William George, Mr. Jack L. Saltich, and Mr. Theodore J. Coburn are independent directors in
accordance with the published listing requirements of NASDAQ. The NASDAQ independence definition includes a series
of objective tests, such as that the director is not an employee of the Company and has not engaged in various types of
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business dealings with the Comipany within a certain time period. In addition, as further required by the NASDAQ rules,
the Board has made a subjective determination as to each independent director that no relationships exist which, in the
opinion of the Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities ofa
director. In making these determinations, the directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and
the Company with regard to each director's business and personal activities as they may relate to Ramtron.

Any shareholder may communicate with members of the Board of Directors by mail addressed to an individual member of
the Board, to the full Board, or to a particular committee of the Board, at the following address: ¢/o Ramtron International
Corporation, Attn: Chairman of the Board, 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921. This information is
also available on the Company's website at www.ramtron.com.

Infineon Technologies, A.G. is entitled to designate two members of the Company's board of directors as long as Infineon
beneficially owns shares of the Company's common stock equal to or greater than ten percent (10%) of the outstanding
shares of the Company. When Infingon's beneficial ownership is equal to or greater than five percent (5%) but less than
ten percent (10%) of the Company's outstanding shares, Infineon is entitled to designate one individuaf to be a member of
the Company's board of directors. At the time Infineon's beneficial ownership is less than five percent {5%), any desig-
nated member of the board of directors shall immediately tender resignation.

The three standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and the Nominating
Committee. The Board has appointed only independent directors to the Audit, Compensation and Nominating
Committees.

Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are Dr. Howard, Mr. Fleischmann, and Ms. Keitel-Schulz during
2004, There were six meetings of the Audit Committee times during 2004. The Audit Committee is responsible for poli-
cies, procedures and other matters relating to accounting, internal financial controls and financial reporting, including the
engagement of independent auditors and the planning, scope, timing and cost of any audit and any other services that the
auditors may be asked to perform, and review with the auditors their report on the Company's financial statements follow-
ing the completion of each audit. Each Audit Committee member is considered "independent” as such term is defined in
The Nasdag Stock Market Marketplace Rules and Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) regulations. The Board
of Directors has determined that based on the credentials of Dr. William Howard, the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Dr. Howard qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of SEC regulations. The Audit
Committee Charter is available on the Company's website, www.ramtron.com. This material is available in print to any
stockholder who requests it in writing by contacting the Secretary of the Company at 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado
Springs, Colorado 80921.

Compensation Committee. The members of the Compensation Committee are Dr. Howard, Mr. Fleischmann, and Ms.
Keitel-Schulz. There were four meetings of the Compensation Committee during 2004. This committee makes recom-
mendations to the Board of Directors regarding salaries, bonuses, stock option grants and other compensation and bene-
fits for directors, officers and employees.

Nominating Committee. The members of the Nominating Committee are Dr. Howard, Mr. Fleischmann, and Ms. Keitel-
Schulz. The Nominating Committee was constituted in October 2004, consistent with requirements of The Nasdag Stock
Market, and held no meetings through 2004 year end. This committee identifies individuals qualified to become Board
members and to recommend director nominees to the Board for election at the annual meeting of stockholders, or upon
the occurrence of a vacancy on the Board. The Nominating Committee Charter is available on the Company's website at
www.ramtron.com. This material is available in print to any stockholder who requests it in writing by contacting the
Secretary of the Company at 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921.
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The Nominating Committee's responsibilities include:

establishing criteria for prospective members of the Company's Board of Directors, including assessing standards for inde-
pendence in accordance with applicable rules and regulations including the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market,
ethical standards and integrity, prior professional achievements, willingness and commitment to serving, and expertise and
knowledge to bring to bear regarding the Company's business; conducting candidate searches and interviews and identi-
fying appropriate candidates for recommendation to fill positions on the Board;

e overseeing continuing education of the Company's Board members, orientation of new Board members and
engaging in annual self-assessment;

e reviewing and assessing the nominating committee's charter at least annually; and
¢ proposing the slate of directors to be elected at each annual meeting of the Company's shareholders.

The nominating committee will also considers suggestions regarding candidates for election to the Board submitted by
shareholders in writing to the Company's secretary. Shareholders' recommendations for nominees to the Board of

Directors will be considered by the Nominating Committee provided such nominations meet certain requirements, includ-
ing the following:

o the notice by a shareholder will be timely if it is received by the nominating committee not later than 120 cal-
endar days before the anniversary of the date on which the Company first mailed its proxy materials for the
prior year's annual meeting of shareholders;

+ the name of the shareholder recommending the director candidate for consideration, the name of the direc-
tor candidate, and the written consent of the shareholder and the director candidate to be publicly identified;

o awritten statement by the director candidate agreeing to be named in the Company's proxy materials and
serve as a member of the Company's Board of Directors if nominated and elected;

o awritten statement by the shareholder and the director candidate agreeing to make available to the commit-
tee all information reasonably requested in connection with the nominating committee's consideration of the
director candidate and that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement; and

» the shareholder's notice must be signed by the shareholder recommending the director candidate for consid-
eration, include a statement regarding the form of ownership of the Company's stock by the shareholder,
and, if the shareholder is not the registered owner, proof sufficient that the shareholder has held stock in the
Company for at least one year. The notice must be sent to the following address: c/o Ramtron International
Corporation, Attn: Secretary, 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921 (Nominating
Committee Communication/Director Candidate Recommendation).

With regard to the 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, any such suggestion must be received by the secretary no later

than the date by which shareholder proposals for such annual meeting must be received as described below under the
heading DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS.

Compensation of Directors. Directors, other than the Chairman of the Board of Directors, who are not officers of the
Company, are paid an annual fee of $12,000, plus $1,500 for each Board of Directors meeting attended in person by
those directors who reside in the United States. Directors who reside outside of the United States receive $2,500 for each
Board of Directors meeting attended in person. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is paid an annual fee of $50,000.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is paid $9,000 annually and Audit Committee members are paid $6,000 annually.
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The Chairman of the Compensation Committee is paid $3,000 annually and Compensation Committee members are paid
$2,000 annually. The Chairman of the Nominating Committee is paid $3,000 annually and Nominating Committee mem-
bers are paid $2,000 annually. Directors are also reimbursed for reasonable expenses for attending Board of Directors'
meetings. Non-employee directors of the Company are eligible to be granted non-statutory stock options under the

Company's 1995 Stock Option Plan.

The following table sets forth Common Stock options granted to current non-employee directors of the Company from
January 2004 through September 30, 2005. Such options were granted at the fair market value of the Company's
Common Stock of the date of such grants. These options were granted in recognition of the services the named individu-

als performed as directors of the Company.

Option Number of Securities
Name Grant Date Underlying Options Granted
William G. Howard December 2004 70,000
Klaus Fleischmann December 2004 35,000
\ Doris Keitel-Schulz December 2004 35,000
{\ EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
§~
JGF: The executive officers of the Company, and certain information about them, are as follows:
// | Name Age Position(s)
William W. Staunton 57 Director, Chief Executive Officer
Greg B. Jones 57 Director, President-Technology Group
Eric A. Baizer 57 Director, Chief Financial Officer and

Corporate Secretary

Officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For information concerning Mr. Staunton,
Mr. Jones and Mr. Balzer, see "Nominees" above.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of

September 30, 2005 by: (i) each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares
of our Common Stock; (if) each of our directors; (iii) each of our executive officers; and (iv) all directors and executive
officers of the Company as a group.

Shares of Common

Name of Beneficial Owner(!) Stock Beneficially Owned Percent of Class(?
Infineon Technologies, AG 4,692,668 19.0%
St. Martin Strasse 53 //
Munich, D-81541, Germany ) -
National Electrical Benefit Fund 2,555,377 10.1 ! \;j
1125 15th Street, N.W., Room 912 @
Washington, D.C. 20005 | 5
Greg B. Jones 452,600 1.8 =
William W. Staunton 375,000 15 -
William G. Howard 184,000 * | =
Eric A. Balzer 174,000@) * \\
Klaus Fleischmann 114,500 * h
Doris Keitel-Schulz 80,00000) *
William George -

Jack L. Saltich -
Theodore J. Coburn -

All directors and executive
officers as a group (9 persons) 1,380,100( 5.4

Less than one percent

(1) Such persons have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of Common Stock shown as being beneficially owned by them,
subject to community property laws where applicable, except as otherwise indicated in the information contained in these footnotes.

{2) Pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), shares of Common Stock issuable
upon the exercise of warrants or stock opticns held by each person set forth in the table which are currently or become exercisable within 60
days are included in the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding for purposes of determining the percentage ownership of such per-
son,

(3) Includes: (i) 4,430,005 shares of Common Stock issued to Infineon Technologies, AG, pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement between the
Company and Infineon Technologies, AG; and (ii) 262,683 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of warrants held by Infinecn.

{4) Includes: (j) 1,638,680 shares of Common Stock owned by the National Electrical Benefit Fund (the Fund); (ii) 905,697 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon exercise of warrants held by the Fund; and (iii) 11,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of options held by
the Fund. The trustees of the Fund share voting and dispositive powers as to such shares.

{8) Includes: (i) 2,600 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and (i) 450,000 shares issuable to Mr. Jones upon exercise of options.

(6) Includes 375,000 shares issuable to Mr. Staunton upon exercise of options.

{7) Includes 184,000 shares issuable to Dr. Howard upon exercise of options.




options.

Includes: (i) 500 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and (ii) 114,000 shares of C
cise of options.

(10) Includes 80,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Ms. Keitel-Schulz upon exercise
(1)

CODE OF CONDUCT

Our Code of Conduct, which applies to ail employees, including all executive
posted to our web site www.ramtron.com. The Code of Conduct is complian
The Nasdaq Stock Market corporate governance listing standards. Any cha

provisions required by Item 406 of Regulation S-K will also be disclosed on
Conduct for our executive officers, directors or senior financial officers must

those waivers, if any are ever granted, would be disclosed on our web site |
Conduct." There have been no waivers to the Code of Conduct. This mate

requests it in writing by contacting the Secretary of the Company at 1850 R
80921.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REP#

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our Officers
than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports
the Securities and Exchange Commission and The Nasdaq Stock Market.
and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations
Section 16(a) forms filed.

To our knowledge and based solely on our review of the copies of such fori

resentations from certain reporting persons that no other forms were requir,
2004, the Company's required Section 16 filers complied with all applicable
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Includes: () 50,000 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and 124,000 shares of Co

Includes 1,327,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to current officers and directors 4

mmon Stock issuable to Mr. Balzer upon exercise of

ommon Stock issuable to Mr. Fleischmann upon exer-

f options.

pon exercise of options.

> officers and senior officers, and directors is
t with ltem 406 of SEC Regulation S-K and
nhges to the Code of Conduct that affects the
our web site. Any waivers of the Code of

be approved by our Audit Committee and
nder the caption, "Exemptions to the Code of
al is available in print to any stockholder who
amtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado

RTING COMPLIANCE

and Directors, and persons who own more
of ownership and changes in ownership with
Dfficers, Directors, Chief Accounting Officer,
to fumnish to the Company with copies of all

ms received by the Company, and written rep-
ed during the fiscal year ended December 31,
Section 16(a) filing requirements.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER INFORMATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain information for the three years ended December 31, 2004 concerning compensation
paid or accrued by the Company to or on behalf of our Chief Executive Officer during 2004 and each of the two other
executive officers of the Company whose compensation during 2004 exceeded $100,000.

Long-Term Compensation Awards

Annual Compensation Securities Restricted
Name and Underlying Stock All Other
Principal Position Year Salary($)  Bonus($) Other Options(#) Awards($)  Compensation y P

William W. Staunton 2004 $288,750  $209,632 $51,065() 150,000 $ - $3,075@ ( -
Chief Executive 2003 264,687 52,991 100,000 - - \ 75’
Officer 2002 250,000 48,9240 100,000 - - ‘ f_;s;
Greg B. Jones 2004 $238,219  $172089  $ 60,000 $ - $3,075@ ' m‘
President, 2003 222,338 - 75,000 - - =
Technology Group 2002 210,000 - 50,000 - *:“4
LuAnn D. Hanson(®) 2004 $142,896 § - $62,3224) - $ $2,0222)
Chief Financial 2003 174,694 - - 75,000 - Y
Officer and Vice 2002 165,000 - - 50,000 - - S

President of Finance

(1) Includes amounts paid for housing and auto allowances and amounts paid for personal travel ($18,902) and spouse travel (82,163} in 2004,
personal travel ($22,021) and spouse travel ($970) in 2003; and personal travet ($17,772) and spouse travel ($1,152) in 2002.

{2) Includes amount paid for cur matching contribution to the Company's 401(k) Retirement Plan.

(3) Ms. Hanson resigned her positions with the Company in October 2004,

{4) Includes cash amount paid for accrued vacation.

Option Grants in 2004

The following table sets forth certain information concerning stock option grénts in 2004 to each of the executive officers
named in the Summary Compensation Table who received stock option grants in 2004. The exercise price of all options
granted below was equal to the reported closing price of our Common Stock on The Nasdag Stock Market (Nasdag) on

the date of grant.
[ndividual Grants
Potential Realizable
No. of Value at Assumed
Securities % of Total Annual Rates of Stock
Underlying Options Price Appreciation
Options Granted to Exercise for Option Term@
Granted Employees Price Expiration
Name _ #) in 2004 ($/Share) Date 5%(3) 10%($)
William W. Staunton 150,0000) 19.0% $3.71 12/02/14  $349,980  $886,918
Greg B. Jones 60,0001) 7.6 3.71 12/02/14 139,992 354,767
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Potential values are net of exercise price and before taxes payable in connection with
shares acquired upon the exercise of such options. These values represent certain a
pounded annually over the term of such options) based on the SEC's rules. The actu

The Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of 787,700 shares to employees in 2004.

the exercise of such options or the subsequent sale of
sumed rates of appreciation (i.e., 5% and 10% com-
3l values, if any, will depend upon, among other factors,

the future performance of our Common Stock, overall market conditions and the namﬁd officer's continued employment with the Company.

Therefore, the potential values reflected in this table may not necessarily be achieved

Such options were granted under the 1995 Plan, as amended, and vest and become
December 2, 2005.

@)

zxercisable in four equal annual instaliments beginning

Aggregated Options Exercised in 2004 and Option Values at December 31, 2004

The following table sets forth the aggregate number and the value of optio
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table.

ns held as of the end of 2004 by the executive

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Shares Underlying Unexercised Options In-the-Money Options
Acquired at December 31, 2004 (#) at December 31, 2004 ($)*
Upon
Name Exercise Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
William W. Staunton - 331,250 293,750 $171,250 $219,250
Greg B. Jones - 427,250 153,750 291,000 143,400
LuAnn D. Hanson(! - 229,898 93,750 139,917 126,000

*  Represents the difference between the closing price of the Company's Common Stoc
$4.00 per share) and the exercise price of such options.
Ms. Hanson resigned her positions with the Company in October 2004,

(1)

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-

on December 31, 2004 as reported on Nasdaq (i.e.,

pf-Control Agreements

To induce and help assure continuity of management and operations, the Company has entered into Change-of-Control

Agreements (the “Agreements”) with Mr. Staunton, Mr. Jones and Mr. Balz
if the executive's employment is terminated within twelve months following
effective until March 29, 20086.

Under the Agreements with Mr. Staunton, Mr. Jones and Balzer, in the eve
by the Company, other than for "Cause,” or by the executive for "Good Re
payment equal to 24 months of base salary including targeted bonuses at
ued eligibility to participate in medical and health benefit plans on the sam
executive prior to his termination; and (iii) immediate vesting and ability to
tive.

A "Change-of-Control" generally includes the occurrence of any of the follg
owner, directly or indirectly, of 50% or more of the voting power of the outs
approval by our shareholders of a merger of the Company with or into any
the surviving corporation or in which the Company survives as a subsidiar,
the Company with any other corporation; (iv) sale or disposition of all or sy
adoption of a plan of complete liquidation; or (iv) the current members of t
nominated by the Company for election to the Board cease for any reason
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er, which provide for certain severance benefits
a "Change-of-Control." The Agreements are

nt of termination of the executive's employment
ason,” the executive will receive: (i) a severance
100% attainment; (ii) up to 24 months of contin-
2 use, terms and conditions in effect for the

exercise all stock options granted to the execu-

wing: (i) any person becomes the beneficial
tanding securities of the Company; (ii) the
other corporation of which the Company is not
y of another corporation; (iii) a consolidation of
bstantially all of the Company's assets or the
he Board of Directors or those Board members
to constitute a majority of the Board.




Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Company's Compensation Committee during 2004 were William G. Howard, Klaus Fleischmann and
Doris Keitel-Schulz. Mr. Eric Balzer served on the Compensation Committee until his resignation in October 2004 when
he became Chief Financial Officer. There were no executive officers or employees of the Company that were members of
the Campany's Compensation Committee during 2004.

The following Board of Directors Audit Committee Report, Board of Directors Report on Executive Compensation and the
Performance Graph on page 21 shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by
reference this Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates such information by reference, and shall not other-
wise be deemed filed under such Acts.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Audit Committee”) is composed of three directors and operates under
a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors. The charter is annually reassessed and updated, as needed, in
accordance with applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and The Nasdaq Stock Market. Each of the
members of the Audit Committee is a non-employee director of the corporation and is independent, as defined in the
Nasdaq and Securities and Exchange Commission rules and regulations.

Management is responsible for the Company's internal controls and financial reporting process. The independent auditors
are responsible for performing an independent audit of the Company's financial statements in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and issuing a report thereon. The Audit
Committee's primary responsibility is to monitor and oversee these processes and recommend to the Board of Directors
the selection of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Company's audited financial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2004 with both the independent registered public accounting firm and management, including a dis-
cussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant estimates
and judgments, critical accounting policies and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. The Audit Committee
also discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm matters required of auditors to be discussed by
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees). The Company's independent regis-
tered public accounting firm also provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), and the Audit Committee discussed
with the independent registered public accounting firm their independence.

Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements
be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 for filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

William G. Howard

Klaus Fleischmann
Doris Keitel-Schulz
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors was responsible for determining and approving the
annual compensation to be paid and the benefits to be provided to the Company's executive officers and for administering
the Company's Amended and Restated 1986 Stock Option Plan, the 1989 Non-statutory Stock Option Plan, the 1995
Stock Option Plan, as amended, the 1999 Stock Option Plan and the 401(k) Retirement Plan. The Company's compensa-
tion program is designed to attract, retain and motivate qualified executive officers that the Company believes will con-
tribute to its long-term success. The Company's compensation program is comprised primarily of annual base salaries,
stock option grants and matching of 401(k) Retirement Plan contributions. In addition, executive officers participate in the
Company's group life insurance and health benefit plans that are offered to all full-time employees. The Board considers
each component of compensation within the context of the entire executive officer compensation program in making its
determination.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding
salaries, bonuses, stock option grants and other compensation and benefits for eligible individuals.

Annual Base Salaries. The Compensation Committee of Board of Directors reviews and approves the annual base
salaries of all executive officers, including the Chief Executive Officer. In determining annual base salaries, the
Compensation Committee collects and analyzes base salary information from competitors in its industry and uses that
information as the basis for comparing the base salaries of the Company's executive officers to the amounts paid to exec-
utive officers with comparable qualifications, experience and responsibilities in businesses similar to the Company's busi-
ness. The Compensation Committee also considers both subjective and objective factors, including, among others, an
officer's responsibilities, experience and qualifications, job performance, contributions and length of service fo the
Company, and the Company's financial results and condition.

Stock Options. Options to purchase the Company's Common Stock have historically been and continue to be a key com-
ponent of the Company's compensation program. The Compensation Committee of Board of Directors views the grant of
stock options as a valuable incentive that serves to attract, retain and motivate executive officers and other key employ-
ees, as well as to align their interest more closely with the Company's goal of enhancing stockholder value. The
Compensation Committee reviews and considers recommendations by the Company's Chief Executive Officer (other than
for himself) with regard to the grant of stock options to executive officers and other key employees, and then makes rec-
ommendations to the Board of Directors. In determining the size, frequency and other terms of an option grant to an
executive officer, the Compensation Committee and the Board consider a number of factors, including, among others,
such officer's position, responsibilities, job performance, prior option grants, contributions and length of service to the
Company and the value of his or her vested and unvested previously granted stock options, if any.

Options generally vest in annual installments over four years as long as the optionee remains an employee of the
Company and, therefore, encourages an optionee to remain in the employ of the Company. in 2004, options to purchase
an aggregate of 345,000 shares of Common Stock were granted to all executive officers as a group and represented
approximately 80% of all options granted to the Company's employees in 2004. Information concerning options granted
during 2004 to executive officers is provided in the table entitled "Option Grants in 2004" above.

Compensation of Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee of Board of Directors generally considers the
same factors in determining the Chief Executive Officer's compensation as it considers with respect to the Company's
other executive officers, including both subjective and objective factors. Mr. Staunton is the Company's Chief Executive
Officer. His compensation in 2004 consisted of an annual salary of $288,750, housing, auto and travel allowances of
$51,065, a bonus of $209,632, $3,075 of matching contribution to his 401(k) retirement fund, and the grant of options to
purchase 150,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock. Such stock options vest and become exercisable in four
equal annual installments beginning December 2, 2005.
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Deductibility of Executive Compensation. Under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
Code), a publicly held corporation such as the Company will not be allowed a federal income tax deduction for compensa-
tion paid to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table to the extent that compensation (including
stock-based compensation) paid to a particular officer exceeds $1 million in any fiscal year unless such compensation was
based on performance goals and certain other conditions are satisfied. The Compensation Committee takes the limita-
tions of Section 162(m) into account in making its compensation decisions, but such limitations are not necessarily a
determining factor. Based upan the Company's current compensation plans and policies and the regulation under Section
162(m) of the Code, the compensation to be paid to the Company's executive officers for 2004 will not exceed the $1 mil-
lion limitation per executive officer.

William G. Howard
Kiaus Fleischmann
Doris Keitel-Schulz

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on the Company's Common Stock with the cumulative total
return of the S&P Electronics (Semiconductors) Industry Index and the S&P Composite Index for the period commencing
December 31, 1999 and ending December 31, 2004.

In preparing the following graph, it was assumed that $100 was invested on December 31, 1999 in each of the Company's
Common Stock, the S&P Electronics {Semiconductors) Index and the S&P 500 Composite Index with all dividends, if any,
reinvested.

The historic stock price performance presented in the following chart is not necessarily indicative of future stock
performance.

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORP., S&P COMPOSITE INDEX AND
S&P ELECTRONICS (SEMICONDUCTORS) INDUSTRY INDEX
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Dec 31, Dec 29, Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Ramtron $100 $65.42 $67.14 $41.87 $39.18 $59.81
S&P Electronics (Semiconductors)
Industry Index 100 78.44 66.02 32.20 63.60 50.31
S&P Composite ndex 100 90.89 80.09 62.39 80.29 89.02

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The following are certain transactions entered into between the Company and its officers, directors and principal stock-
holders or their affiliates since January 1, 2004.

Transactions Involving the National Electrical Benefit Fund
The National Electrical Benefit Fund (the “Fund”) is a principal stockholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 1989 between the Company and the Fund, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated June 29, 1989, the Company agreed to pay to the Fund, for as long as the
Fund owns at least 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company's common stock, a reasonable monthly consulting fee
of not more than $5,000 and to reimburse the Fund for all out-of-pocket expenses incurred in monitoring the Fund's
investment in the Company. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company was obligated to pay to the Fund approximately
$60,000 per year in payment of such fees and expenses. Payments made for these obligations were $65,000, $142,000
and $0 during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. $15,000, $20,000 and $100,000 related to this obligation are included
in accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Executive Officers and Change-of-Controi Agreements

Our executive officers, William W. Staunton, Ill, Greg B. Jones, and Eric A. Balzer are entitled to certain benefits upon a
change-of-control. See Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-of-Control Agreements.

PROPOSAL 2 - TO APPROVE THE COMPANY'S 2005 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

The Company's Board is asking the shareholders to approve the Ramtron International Corporation 2005 Incentive Award
Plan ("2005 Pian"). The 2005 Plan was adopted by the Board in July 20, 2005. The 2005 Plan will take effect upon the
approval of the Company's shareholders. Set forth below is a summary of some of the terms of the 2005 Plan. The fol-
lowing summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the terms of the 2005 Plan, a complete copy of which is
attached to this proxy statement as Appendix A.

Summary of the 2005 Plan

Administration of the 2005 Plan. The 2005 plan will be administered by a committee (“Committee”) designated by the
Board. Members of the Committee will serve for a period of time as determined by the Board. Subject to the terms of the
2005 Plan, the Committee has sole and complete discretionary authority to (i) make all determinations with respect to
awards to be granted under the 2005 Plan, including the form of award and the recipient of the award, (ii) prescribe,
amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the 2005 Plan, (iii) determine the terms and provisions of any agree-
ments concerning the terms of an award, and (iv) make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the administra-
tion of the 2005 Plan. All decisions, interpretations and other actions of the Committee are final and binding on partici-
pants and other holders of any awards granted under the 2005 Plan.
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Shares Reserved for Awards. The number of shares of common stock reserved and available for awards under the 2005
Plan will be 5,000,000 shares, plus the number of shares that remain available for issuance under the Ramtron
International Corporation 1995 Stock Option Plan on or after the termination of such plan or which thereafter become
available for issuance under such plan. The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of incen-
tive stock options ("ISOs") granted under the 2005 Plan will be 5,000,000 shares, and the maximum number of shares
that may be issued as restricted stock will be 5,000,000 shares. To the extent any award under the 2005 Plan is exer-
cised or cashed out or terminates or expires or is forfeited without payment being made in the form of common stock, the
shares subject to such award that were not so paid will again be available for distribution under the 2005 Plan, as will
shares that are used by an individual to pay withholding taxes, as payment for the exercise price of an award, or that are
surrendered pursuant to an award exchange program.

Subject to any required approval of our shareholders, the Committee may adjust the number of shares reserved under the
2005 Plan to reflect any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares resulting from stock splits, stock dividends,

A

recapitalizations and other similar events. s

. %‘%f
Eligibility and Awards. If the 2005 Plan is approved by our shareholders, awards may be granted to the following cate- };fs
gories of individuals: (i) employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, (i) consultants engaged by the N
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and (iii) non-employee directors of the Company. Only employees of the 7 B
Company or any of its subsidiaries may receive a grant of ISOs under the 2005 Plan. No determination has been made | @
as to which eligible individuals will receive grants under the 2005 Plan and, therefore, the benefits to be allocated to any =
individual or to any group of employees are not presently determinable. %

T

Under the 2005 Plan, the maximum number of shares that may be granted to any individual during any calendar year will
be 5,000,000 shares, provided that the maximum number of shares that may be awarded to any individual during any cal-
endar year as restricted stock will be 500,000 shares.

.

Types of Awards. Subject to the terms of the 2005 Plan, the Committee, in its discretion, may grant the following awards
under the plan: Stock options, performance units, performance shares, restricted stock, restricted stock units, phantom
stock, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), and other incentives and awards that the Committee may, in its discretion, grant
alone or in tandem with any of the foregoing awards.

Stock Options. Under the 2005 Plan, the Committee may grant both ISOs, as defined under Section 422 of the Internal
Revenue Code (the "Code"), and non-statutory stock options ("NSOs"). The 2005 Plan provides that options must have
an exercise price per share that is at least equal to 100% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the date
of grant. For 1SOs granted to an employee who, at the time of the 1SO grant, holds shares possessing at least 10% of the
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any subsidiary, the 1SOs must have an exercise price
per share that is at least 110% of the fair market value of per share of common stock on the date of grant. The term of
options generally may be no more than 10 years from the date of grant, although the term of ISOs granted to an
employee who, at the time of the ISO grant, holds shares possessing at least 10% of the combined voting power of all
classes of stock of the Company or any subsidiary, may be no more than 5 years from the date of grant.

The consideration to be paid for shares issued upon the exercise of a stock option, including the method of payment, will
be determined by the Committee on the date of grant and may consist of (i) cash, check or full recourse promissory note,
(ii) delivery to the Company of shares of common stock having a fair market value on the date of surrender that is equal to
the aggregate exercise price of the shares to which the option will be exercised, (i) any combination of the foregoing, or
(iv) any other legal consideration the Committee may deem appropriate. Options continue to be exercisable for up to 12
months after an optionee's association with the Company terminates due to death or disability. If an optionee's associa- -
tion with the Company ends for other reasons (other than termination for cause), options continue to be exercisable during
such period of time as determined by the Committee on the date of grant, provided that with respect to an award of ISOs
such period will not exceed 90 days after the date that such optionee's association with the Company ends. If an
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optionee's association with the Company ends due to termination for cause, options continue to be exercisable for up to
30 days following the date of such termination for cause. '

Stock Appreciation Rights. SARs may be granted either on a stand alone basis ("Free Standing SAR") or in tandem with a
grant of stock options ("Tandem SAR"). The consideration to be received upon the exercise of a SAR will be paid in cash,
shares to which the applicable SAR relates (valued at the fair market value per share on the date of exercise), or a combi-
nation of cash and shares. ‘

A Free Standing SAR will be exercisable at any time, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions set forth in the
award agreement. The base price of a Free Standing SAR will not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the
shares on the date of grant. Subject to the limitations within the 2005 Plan, upon exercise of a Free Standing SAR, the
participant will be entitled to receive, for each share with respect to which the Free Standing SAR is being exercised, con-
sideration equal in value to the excess of the fair market value of a share on the date of exercise over the fair market
value of a share on the date of the award.

A Tandem SAR will be exercisable only at the time and to the extent that the related option is exercisable. Subject to the
limitations set forth in the 2005 Plan, upon exercise of a Tandem SAR, the participant will be entitled to receive, for each
share with respect to which the Tandem SAR is being exercised, consideration equal to the fair market value of a share on
the date of exercise over the related option exercise price per share, provided that the Committee may provide that the
appreciation realizable upon the exercise of such Tandem SAR will be measured from a base higher than the related

option exercise price.

Restricted Stock. Shares of restricted common stock may be granted under the 2005 Plan either at the beginning or the
end of the applicable restriction period. Restricted stock will vest and become transferable upon the satisfaction of condi-
tions set forth in the award agreement. The Committee will determine the price, if any, to be paid by a participant for
restricted stock, provided that the issuance of restricted stock will be made for at least the minimum consideration neces-
sary to permit such restricted stock to be deemed fully paid and assessable. In connection with any award of restricted
stock, the award agreement may provide for the payment of a cash amount to the participant holding such restricted stock
at any time after such restricted stock becomes vested. Any such cash awards will be payable in accordance with any
additional restrictions, terms and conditions as prescribed by the Committee in the award agreement.

Restricted stock issued at the beginning of the applicable restriction period shall constitute outstanding shares for all cor-
porate purposes and the holder of such restricted stock generally will have the rights of a shareholder with respect to such
restricted stock, including the right to vote such restricted stock and to receive and retain such dividends and distributions
as the Committee, in its sole discretion, may designate. Restricted stock issued at the end of the applicable restriction
period will not constitute issued and outstanding shares for corporate purposes and the holder of such restricted stock will
not have any of the rights of a shareholder with respect to such restricted stock, provided that the holder of such restricted
stock will be entitled to receive dividend equivalents during the restriction period in accordance with the rules the
Committee may specify in the award agreement.

Performance Units and Performance Shares. Performance units granted under the 2005 Plan will have an initial value
that is established by the Committee on or before the date of grant, which value need not relate to the fair market value of
a share of common stock. Performance shares granted under the 2005 Plan will have an initial value equal to 100% of
the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. Performance units and performance shares will be
earned only if corporate, business division or individual performance objectives over performance cycles, established by or
under the direction of the Committee, are met. The performance objectives may vary from participant to participant, divi-
sion to division and period to period, and the Committee may modify any established performance objectives if the
Committee determines that such objectives are no longer suitable due to a material change in the Company's business,
operations, corporate structure or capital structure or other conditions the Committee deems to be material. Awards may
be paid in the form of cash, shares of common stock or any combination thereof, as determined by the Committee.
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Phantom Stock. The value of phantom stock granted under the 2005 Plan will be determined by reference to a share of
common stock. Any grant of phantom stock will be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 2005 Plan and sub-
ject to such other terms and conditions as are not inconsistent with the purposes and provisions of the 2005 Plan as the
Committee, in its sole discretion, may from time to time determine, including the satisfaction of any performance goal
requirements that may be established by the Committee. The holder of phantom stock may be entitled to dividend equiva-
lents and distributions, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units granted under the 2005 Plan will consist of an award of restricted stock,
performance shares or performance units that the Committee, in its sole discretion, permits to be paid out in installments,
in accordance with rules and procedures established by the Committee. Awards of restricted stock units may relate in
whole or in part to performance or other criteria established by the Committee at the time of grant. Restricted stock units
may provide for the payment of cash consideration by the participant to whom such award is granted or such restricted
stock units may be delivered without the payment of cash consideration, provided that the issuance of any shares in con-
nection with an award of restricted stock will be for at least the minimum consideration necessary to permit the shares to
be deemed fully paid and nonassessable.

Other Incentive Awards. The Committee may, in its discretion, grant other incentive awards, which may be granted either
alone, in addition to, or in tandem with, either or both of other awards granted under the 2005 Plan or other cash awards
made under or outside of the 2005 Plan, and which may, but are not required to, relate to the current fair market value per
share of common stock.

Code Section 162(m) Exemption. Special rules limit the deductibility of compensation paid to our chief executive officer
and certain other senior executives. Under Code section 162(m), the annual compensation paid to any of these execu-
tives will be deductible only to the extent that it does not exceed $1,000,000. However, the Company may preserve the
deductibility of certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000 if the compensation qualifies as "performance-based com-
pensation” under Code section 162(m). Awards granted under pre-established objective performance goals may qualify
as performance-based compensation if certain requirements are met, including shareholder approval of the material terms
of such performance goals. The 2005 Plan has been designed to permit the Company to grant awards that qualify as per-
formance-based compensation for purposes of satisfying the conditions of Code section 162(m), thereby permitting the
Company to receive a federal income tax deduction in connection with such awards if the Company should make them.

Performance Objectives Under the 2005 Plan. Performance objectives applicable to awards that are intended to be
exempt from the limitations of Code section 162(m) include the achievement of one or more objective performance goals
established by the Committee, which will be based on the attainment of one or any combination of the following: return on
invested capital, customer service levels, EBIT (or EBITDA or other forms of earnings on basic or diluted basis), free cash
flow (or other cash flow measures), growth in the foregoing or other measures, economic profit, net income (before or
after tax), specified levels of eamings per share from continuing operations, operating income, revenues, gross margin,
return on operating assets, return on equity, economic value added, stock price appreciation, total shareholder return
(measured in terms of stock price appreciation and dividend growth) or cost control, of the Company or any subsidiary or
affiliate (or any division thereof) for or within which the participant is primarily employed, or such other goals as the
Committee will determine. Such performance goals also may be based upon the attaining of specified levels of Company
performance under one or more of the measures described above relative to the performance of other corporations.

Change in Corporate Structure. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or in the event of
a proposed sale of all or substantially all of the assets or stock of the Company (other than in the ordinary course of busi-
ness), or the merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Company, as a result of which the Company is
not the surviving and controlling Company or as a result of which the outstanding shares of common stock are exchanged
or converted into cash or property or securities not of the Company, the Committee will (i) make provision for the assump-
tion or substitution of all outstanding awards by the successor Company, or (i) if an award is not assumed or substituted
by the successor company, the Committee will notify the participant in writing or electronically that all awards will be exer-
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cisable, whether or not then exercisable, and any restrictions on such awards will lapse, for a period of up to 30 days from
the date of such notice (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such award as set forth in the award agree-
ment), and the award will terminate upon the expiration of such period.

Transferability of Awards. Generally, no award granted under the 2005 Plan may be transferred by a participant other than
by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless provided otherwise in an award
agreement, an award may be transferred (i) between spouses incident to a divorce, (i) in the case of an award other than
an SO or related Tandem SAR, to a trust established for the exclusive benefit of one or more members of the participant's
immediate family, or to a partnership in which members of participant's immediate family are the only partners, or (iii) in
the event of the death of the participant, by the estate of the participant or by a person who acquires the rights to exercise
the award by bequest or inheritance.

Amendment of the 2005 Plan. The Committee may amend the 2005 Plan from time to time in such respects as the
Committee may deem advisable, provided that without further approval of the shareholders, the Committee may not
amend the 2005 Plan to (i) increase the number of shares that may be issued under the 2005 Plan, other than to prevent
dilution or in connection with a change in corporate structure, (ii) materially change the designation of the class of individu-
als eligible to receive awards under the 2005 Plan, (iii) remove administration of the Plan from the Board or the
Committee, (iv) extend the term of the 2005 Plan, or (v) violate the rules for shareholder approval under the rules of any
exchange on which the company's shares are traded or any other applicable laws, rules or regulations.

Effective Date and Termination. The 2005 Plan will become effective upon shareholder approval as provided in the 2005
Plan. The 2005 Plan will continue in effect for a term of 10 years unless sooner terminated under the terms 2005 the
Plan. All awards granted prior to shareholder approval of the 2005 Plan are subject to such approval, and, if such
approval is not obtained within 12 months after the 2005 Plan is adopted by the Board, all such awards will expire and will
be of no further force and effect.

Certain Tax Consequences:

The following discussion summarizes certain United States federal income tax consequences that generally will arise with
respect to the awards granted under the 2005 Plan. This discussion is based on U.S. tax laws and regulations presently
in effect, which are subject to change, and the discussion does not purport to be a complete description of the U.S.
income tax aspects of the 2005 Plan. A participant may also be subject to state and local taxes in connection with the
grant of awards under the 2005 Plan. We suggest that participants consult with their individual tax advisors to determine
the applicability of the tax rules to the awards granted to them in their personal circumstances.

Non-Statutory Stock Options. A participant will not recognize any taxable income at the time an NSO is granted. Upon
exercise of an NSO, the participant must include in income as compensation an amount equal to the difference between
the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise and the participant's exercise price. At the time a participant
sells shares acquired pursuant to the exercise of an NSO, any appreciation (or depreciation) in the value of the shares
after the date of exercise generally will be treated as capital gain (or loss).

Incentive Stock Options. A participant generally will recognize no income upon the grant of an ISQ and incur no tax on its
exercise. If the participant holds shares acquired upon exercise of an ISO (the "ISO Shares") for more than one year after
the date the option was exercised and for more than 2 years after the date the option was granted, the participant gener-
ally will realize capital gain or loss (rather than ordinary income or loss) upon disposition of the 1SO Shares. This gain or
loss will be equal to the difference between the amount realized upon such disposition and the amount paid for the 1ISO
Shares.

If the participant disposes of ISO Shares prior to the expiration of either required holding period as described above (a
"disqualifying dispesition”), then the participant will recognize ordinary income upon the disposition of the 1ISO Shares in an
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amount generally equal to the excess of the fair market value of the ISO Shares at the time of exercise (or, if less, the
amount realized upon the disposition of such shares) over the option exercise price. Any further gain (or loss) realized by
the optionee will be taxed as capital gain (or loss).

Subject to certain exceptions for death or disability, if an optionee exercises an ISO more than three months after termina-
tion of employment, the exercise of the option will be taxed as the exercise of an NSO. In addition, if an optionee is sub-
ject to the federal alternative minimum tax, the exercise of an ISO wili be treated essentially the same as the exercise of
an NSO for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.

Stock Appreciation Rights. Generally, a participant will not recognize any taxable income at the time a SAR is granted.
Upon exercise of a SAR, the participant must include in income as compensation an amount equal to the difference
between the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise and the participant's exercise price.

Restricted Stock. A participant who receives an award of restricted stock that is issued at the beginning of the restriction
period generally will recognize income on the fair market value of the restricted stock reduced by any amount paid by the
participant at such time as the shares are no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. However, if a participant
makes a timely election under Code section 83(b), the participant will recognize income on the date of transfer of such
shares in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares (determined without regard to the risk of forfeiture or
restrictions on transfer) less the purchase price paid for the shares. If a Code section 83(b) election has not been made,
any dividends received with respect to restricted stock that are subject at that time to a substantial risk of forfeiture or
restrictions on transfer generally will be treated as compensation that is taxable as ordinary income to the participant.

A participant who receives an award of restricted stock that is issued at the end of the restriction period generally will rec-
ognize income on the fair market value of the restricted stock reduced by any amount paid by the participant at such time
as the shares are transferred to the participant at the end of the applicable restriction period.

Performance Shares. Performance Units and Phantom Stock. Generally, no income will be recognized upon the grant of
performance shares, performance units or phantom stock. Upon payment in respect of the earn-out of performance
shares, performance units or phantom stock, the participant will be required to include as taxable ordinary income in the
year of receipt an amount equal to the amount of cash received and the fair market value of any non-restricted shares
received. If the Company pays dividend equivalents to the holder of phantom stock, the participant's receipt of such divi-
dend equivalents will be treated as compensation that is taxable as ordinary income to the participant.

Tax Treatment for the Company. The Company generally will be entitled to a tax deduction in connection with an option or
award under the 2005 Plan in an amount equal to the ordinary income realized by a participant and at the time the partici-
pant recognizes such income, provided that, among other things, the income is an ordinary and necessary business
expense, is not an "excess parachute payment" within the meaning of Code section 280G, and is not disallowed by the
$1,000,000 limitation on certain executive compensation under Code section 162(m).

Deferred Compensation. Any awards granted under the 2005 Plan that are considered to be deferred compensation must
satisfy the requirements of Code section 409A to avoid adverse tax consequences to participating employees. These
requirements include limitations on election timing, acceleration of payments, and distributions. To the extent that defer-
rals of awards granted under the 2005 Plan fail to meet these requirements, such awards will be subject to immediate tax-
ation and tax penalties in the year they vest. It is the intent of the Company that awards granted under the 2005 Plan will
be structured and administered in a manner that complies with Code section 409A.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS
VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE COMPANY'S 2005 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN.
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PROPOSAL 3 - RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed KPMG LLP (KPMG), independent auditors, o audit the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2005. A representative of KPMG is

expected to be present at the Annual Meeting, will have an opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so
and is expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

The aggregate fees billed for professional services by our auditors in 2004 and 2003 for these various services were:

Type of Fee 2004 2003
Audit fees $231,500 $117,500
Audit related fees $ 9,500 $ 8,500

Tax fees $ 16,000 $ 16,000
All other fees - -

Audit Fees. KPMG's fees billed to the Company during 2004 and 2003 for annual audit services and the review of interim
financial statements.

Audit-Related Fees. KPMG's fees billed to the Company during 2004 and 2003 for audit-related services including fees
for our employee benefit plan audit that were not included under the heading "Audit Fees."

Tax Fees. KPMG's fees billed to the Company during 2004 and 2003 are for tax
consultation and tax return preparation services

All Other Fees. KPMG's did not render services to the Company that were not included in the other three categories.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees. KPMG did not render any professional services to the
Company in 2004 or 2003 with respect to financial information systems design and implementation.

The Audit Committee has established a policy whereby the Audit Committee must pre-approve all audit and permitted non-
audit services performed by the Company's independent auditor in accordance with a prior description of the services to
be performed and specific estimates for each such services. The Audit Committee pre-approved all of the services per-
formed by KPMG during fiscal 2004.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS
VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS NAMED ABOVE.

OTHER MATTERS
The Company currently knows of no matters to be submitted at the Annual Meeting other than those described herein. If

any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named on the enclosed
proxy card to vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.
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FORM 10-K

COPIES OF THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AS
FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WILL BE PROVIDED TO STOCKHOLDERS WITHOUT
CHARGE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORA-
TION, 1850 RAMTRON DRIVE, COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO 80921.

—— — ——— —— —

By Order of the Board of Directors

<=,

Eric A. Balzer
Secretary

Colorado Springs, Colorado
October 26, 2005

APPENDIX A
RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
2005 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN
1. Establishment and Purpose of the Plan.
Ramtron International Corporation hereby establishes this 2005 Incentive Award Plan to promote the interests of the
Company and its stockholders by (i) helping to attract and retain the services of selected service providers of the
Company who are in a position to make a material contribution to the successful operation of the Company's business, (ii)
motivating such persons, by means of performance-related incentives, to achieve the Company's business goals, and (iii)
enabling such persons to participate in the long-term growth and financial success of the Company by providing them with
an opportunity to purchase, or benefit from the appreciation of, stock of the Company or other awards under this Plan.
2. Definitions.

The following definitions shall apply throughout the Plan:

a.  "Affiliate" shall mean any entity that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is con-
trolled by, or is under common control with, the Company.

b.  "Award" shall mean, individually or collectively, a grant under the Plan of Options, SARs, Restricted Stock,
Performance Units, Performance Shares, Phantom Stock, Restricted Stock Units, and Other Incentive Awards.

c.  "Award Agreement” shall mean the written agreement entered into between the Company and the Participant evi-
dencing and reflecting the terms of an Award granted under the Plan. An Award Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions of the Plan.

d.  "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of Ramtron International Corporation as in office from time to
time.

e.  "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. References in the Plan to any section of the
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Code shall be deemed to include any amendment or successor provisions to such section and any rules and regu-
fations issued under such section.

"Committee” shall mean the committee of the Board of Directors appointed in accordance with Section 4(a) of the
Plan, and if no such committee shall be appointed or in office, the Board of Directors.

"Company” shall mean Ramtron International Corporation, a Delaware corporation (or any successor corporation).

"Consultant” shall mean any person, including an advisor, engaged by the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate to
render services to such entity in a non-employee capacity. -

"Continuous Employment" shall mean the absence of any interruption or termination of service as a Service
Provider of the Company, or a Subsidiary or Affiliate, in any capacity; provided, however, that for purposes of an
Incentive Stock Option, "Continuous Employment" means the absence of any interruption or termination of service
as an Employee of the Company or a Subsidiary pursuant to applicable tax regulations. Continuous Employment
shall not be considered interrupted in the case of any leave of absence authorized in writing by the Company or a
Subsidiary or Affiliate prior to its commencement; provided, however, that for purposes of Incentive Stock Options,
no such leave may exceed 90 days, unless reemployment upon expiration of such leave is guaranteed by statute or
contract. If reemployment upon expiration of a leave of absence approved by the Company or a Subsidiary is not
so guaranteed, on the 91st day of such leave any Incentive Stock Option held by the Optionee shall cease to be
treated as an Incentive Stock Option and shall be treated for tax purposes as a Non-Statutory Stock Option. For
avoidance of doubt, a Participant shall be deemed to incur a termination of Continuous Employment if, as a result
of a sale of shares or assets, the entity that employs such Participant shall cease to qualify as a Subsidiary or
Affiliate and the Participant does not immediately become a Service Provider of the Company or an entity that con-
tinues to be a Subsidiary or Affiliate. In the event that the status of a Participant changes from Employee to
Consultant, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine that, notwithstanding such change in status, the
Participant shall not be deemed to incur a termination of Continuous Employment for purposes of the Plan until
such time that the Participant's service as a Consultant to the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate terminates.

“Director" shall mean a duly elected and qualified member of the Board of Directors.

“Disability" shall mean, in accordance with Section 22(e)(3) of the Code, the inability of the Participant to engage in
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be
expected to result in death or which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than
12 months. In determining the Disability of the Participant, the Committee may require the Participant to furnish
proof of the existence of the Disability and may select a physician to examine the Participant. The final determina-
tion as to the Disability of the Participant shall be made by the Committee.

“Dividend Equivalents" shall mean, to the extent specified by the Committeg, an amount equal to all dividends and
other distributions (or the economic equivalent thereof) paid on one Share for each Share represented by an Award
held by such Participant.

"Employee” shall mean any individual, including officers and Directors, employed by the Company or a Subsidiary
or Affiliate.

"Fair Market Value" shall mean, with respect to Shares, the value per Share, as of any date, determined as follows:
(i) if the Shares are then listed or admitted to trading on a NASDAQ market system or a stock exchange which
reports closing sale prices, the Fair Market Value shall be the closing sale price on the date of valuation on such
NASDAQ market system or principal stock exchange on which the Shares are then listed or admitted to trading, or,
if no closing sale price is quoted on such day, then the Fair Market Value shall be the closing sale price of the




aa.

bb.

CccC.

dd.

Shares on such NASDAQ market system or such exchange on the next preceding day for which a closing sale
price is reported, (i) if the Shares are not then listed or admitted to trading on a NASDAQ market system or a stock
exchange which reports closing sale prices, the Fair Market Value shall be the average of the closing bid and asked
prices of the Shares in the over the counter market on the date of valuation, and (iii) if neither (i) nor (ii) is applica-
ble as of the date of valuation, then the Fair Market Value shall be determined by the Committee in good faith on
such basis as it deems appropriate and applied in accordance with uniform and nondiscriminatory standards
adopted by the Committee from time to time, which determination shall be conclusive and binding on all interested
parties.

"Free Standing SAR" shall mean an SAR granted pursuant to the provisions of Section 8(d) of the Plan.

"Incentive Stock Option" shall mean an Option intended to qualify as an "incentive stock option" within the meaning
of Section 422 of the Code.

"Non-Employee Director" shall mean a member of the Board of Directors who is not also an Employee of the
Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate.

"Non-Statutory Stock Option” shall mean an Option which is not an incentive Stock Option.

"Option" shall mean the grant of the right to a Service Provider pursuant to the Plan to purchase a specified num-
ber of Shares at a specified exercise price.

"Optioned Stock” shall mean the Shares subject to an Option or SAR granted pursuant to the Plan.

"Optionee" shall mean a Service Provider who is granted an Option under the Plan.

"Other Incentive Awards” shall mean any other awards not specifically described in the Plan that may in whole or in
part be valued by reference to, or otherwise based on, Shares, and are created by the Committee pursuant to
Section 13 of the Plan.

"Participant” shall mean a Service Provider who is granted an Award under the Plan.

"Performance Cycle" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10(b) of the Plan.

"Performance Share" shall mean an Award granted pursuant to Section 10 of the Plan.

“Performance Unit" shall mean an Award granted pursuant to Section 10 of the Plan.

"Phantom Stock” shall mean an Award consisting of a contractual right to receive a hypothetical Share granted pur-
suant to Section 11 of the Pian.

"Plan" shall mean this Ramtron International Corporation 2005 Incentive Award Plan as the same may be amended
from time to time.

"Restricted Period" shall mean the period during which the transfer of Restricted Stock is subject to restrictions, and
therefore, the Shares are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. Such restrictions may be based on the passage
of time, the achievement of performance goals, or the occurrence of other events as determined by the Committee
in its discretion.

“Restricted Stock” shall mean Shares issued pursuant to Section 9 of the Plan.
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"Restricted Stock Unit" shall mean an Award granted pursuant to Section 12 of the Plan.
"Retained Distributions" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(c) of the Plan.
"Service Provider” shall mean an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant.

"Shares" shall mean shares of the common stock of the Company, par value per share of $0.01, or any shares into
which such Shares may be converted in accordance with Section 16 of the Plan.

"Stock Appreciation Right" or "SAR" shall mean an Award, granted alone or in connection with an Option, that pur-
suant to Section 8 of the Plan is designated as a SAR.

"Subsidiary" shall mean any "subsidiary" corporation, whether now or hereafter existing as defined in Section 424(f)
of the Code.

"Tandem SAR" shall mean an SAR granted pursuant to the provisions of Section 8(c) of the Plan.

"Termination for Cause" shall mean termination of employment as a result of (i) any act or acts by the Participant
constituting a felony under any federal, state or local law; (i) the Participant's willful and continued failure to perform
the duties assigned to him or her as a Service Provider; (iii) any material breach by the Participant of any agree-
ment with the Company or @ Subsidiary or Affiliate concerning his or her employment or other understanding con-
cerning the terms and conditions of employment by the Company or a Subsidiary o Affiliate; (iv) dishonesty, gross
negligence or malfeasance by the Participant in the performance of his or her duties as a Service Provider or any
conduct by the Participant which involves a material conflict of interest with any business of the Company or a
Subsidiary or Affiliate; or (v) the Participant's taking or knowingly omitting to take any other action or actions in the
performance of Participant's duties as @ Service Provider without informing appropriate members of management to
whom such Participant reports, which action or actions, in the determination of the Board of Directors, have caused
or substantially contributed to the material deterioration in the business of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate.

Shares Reserved.

Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 of the Plan, the maximum aggregate number of
Shares reserved for issuance pursuant to the Plan shall be equal to five million 5 000,000 Shares plus the number
of Shares which shall remain available for issuance under the Ramtron International Corporation 1995 Stock Option
Plan on and after the termination of the term of such plan or which thereafter become available for issuance under
such plan. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of Incentive Stock Options granted
under the Plan shall be five million 5,000,000 Shares, and the maximum number of Shares that may be issued as
Restricted Stock shall be 5,000,000 Shares, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16. Such number of
Shares reserved for issuance under the Plan may be set aside out of authorized but unissued Shares not reserved
for any other purpose, or out of issued Shares acquired for and held in the treasury of the Company from time to
time.

Share Counting. Any Shares (i) subject to, but not sold or issued under, an Award granted under the Plan or an
option granted under any prior stock option plan of the Company, terminating, expiring or canceled for any reason
prior to its exercise in full, (ii) which is tendered, actually or by attestation, by a Participant as full or partial payment
in connection with the exercise of any Award under the Plan or any prior stock option plan of the Company, (iil)
retained by or surrendered to the Company in order to satisfy a Participant's withholding tax obligations in accor-
dance with Section 22(d) of the Plan, (iv) settled in cash, and (v) surrendered pursuant to an award exchange pro-
gram established by the Committee pursuant to Section 4(b)(xi) of the Plan, shall again be available for Awards
thereafter granted during the remainder of the Plan, and the same shall not be deemed an increase in the number
of Shares reserved for issuance under the Plan.

e



Individual Limits. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 of the Plan, the maximum number of Shares
which may be subject to Awards granted under the Plan during any calendar year to any Participant shall be
5,000,000 Shares; provided, however, that the maximum number of Shares which may be awarded as Restricted
Stock under the Plan during any calendar year to any Participant shall be 500,000 Shares. If an Award held by a
Participant is canceled, if and to the extent required by Section 162(m) of the Code, the canceled Award shall con-
tinue to be counted against the maximum number of Shares for which Awards may be granted to such Participant,
and any replacement Award granted to such Participant shali also count against such limit.

Administration of the Plan.

The Plan shall be administered by the Board of Directors or, if appointed pursuant to a resolution of the Board of
Directors, by a Committee designated by the Board of Directors to administer the Plan. If so appointed, the
Committee shall be comprised of not less than two persons. Members of the Committee shall serve for such period
of time as the Board of Directors may determine. From time to time the Board of Directors may increase the size of
the Committee and appoint additional members thereto, remove members (with or without cause) and appoint new
members in substitution therefor, fill vacancies however caused, or remove all members of the Committee and
thereafter directly administer the Plan. In the event the Company has a class of equity securities registered under
Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and unless the Board of
Directors determines otherwise, from the effective date of such registration until six months after the termination of
such registration, all grants of Awards to persons subject to the provisions of Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act
shall be made by a Committee of two or more Non-Employee Directors having full authority to act in the matter and
all of whom are "non-employee directors" under Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act and "outside directors" within the
meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the sole and complete discretionary authority: (i) to
grant Incentive Stock Options in accordance with Section 422 of the Code, and Non-Statutory Stock Options,
SARs, Restricted Stock, Performance Units, Performance Shares, Phantom Stock, Restricted Stock Units and
Other Incentive Awards; (i) to determine, upon review of relevant information, the Fair Market Value per Share; (iii)
to determine the exercise price of the Awards to be granted to Service Providers in accordance with the Plan; (iv) to
determine the Service Providers to whom, and the time or times at which, Awards shall be granted and the number
of Shares subject to each Award; (v) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, and
to interpret and the same, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 16 of the Plan; (vi) to determine the terms
and provisions of each Award under the Plan and each Award Agreement (which need not be identical with the
terms of other Awards or Award Agreements) and to modify or amend an outstanding Award or Award Agreement;
(vii) to accelerate the exercise or vesting date of any Award; (viii) to determine whether any Participant will be
required to execute a stock purchase agreement or other agreement as a condition to the exercise, issue or pay-
ment of an Award, and to determine the terms and provisions of any such agreement (which need not be identical
with the terms of any other such agreement) and to amend any such agreement; (ix) to interpret the Plan, any
Award Agreement, or any other agreement entered into with respect to the grant, issue, payment or exercise of
Awards, and to determine the eligibility of a Service Provider for benefits under the Plan and the amount thereof; (x)
to authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Company any instrument required to effectuate the grant of an
Award previously granted or to take such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate with respect to the
Company's rights pursuant to Awards or agreements relating to the grant, issue, payment or exercise thereof; (xi) to
cancel any outstanding Awards and grant to a Participant in replacement thereof such number of other Awards on
such terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine; and (xii) to make such other determinations and
establish such other procedures as it deems necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan, including
determining the amounts of benefits payable to a Participant.

All decisions, determinations and interpretations of the Committee shall be final and binding on all Participants and
any other holders of any Awards granted under the Plan.
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5.

The Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and of the actions taken by it without a meeting. A majority of
the Committee shall constitute a quorum, and the actions of a majority at a meeting, including a telephone meeting,
at which a quorum is present, or acts approved in writing by a majority of the members of the Committee without a
meeting, shall constitute acts of the Committee.

The Company shall pay all original issue and transfer taxes with respect to the grant of Awards and/or the issue
and transfer of Shares pursuant to the exercise thereof, and all other fees and expenses necessarily incurred by the
Company in connection therewith; provided, however, that the person exercising an Award shall be responsible for
all payroll, withholding, income and other taxes incurred by such person on the date of exercise of an Award or
transfer of Shares.

Eligibility.

Awards may be granted under the Pian only to Service Providers, provided, however, that Incentive Stock Options may be
granted only to Employees of the Company or a Subsidiary. A Service Provider who has been granted an Award may be
granted, if he or she is otherwise eligible, additional Awards; however, eligibility pursuant to this Section 5 of the Plan shall
not entitle a Service Provider to be granted an Award, or a Participant to be granted additional Awards.

6.

Stock Options.

Options granted pursuant to the Plan by the Committee shall be either Incentive Stock Options or Non-Statutory Stock
Options and shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement providing, in addition to such other terms as the Committee may
deem advisable, the following terms and conditions:

a.

34

Time of Granting Options. The date of grant of an Option shall be, for all purposes, the date on which the
Committee makes the determination granting such Option; provided, however, that if the Committee determines that
such grant shall be effective as of some future date, the date of grant shall be as of such future date. Notice of the
determination shall be given to each Optionee within a reasonable time after the date of such grant.

Number of Shares and Designation. Each Award Agreement shall state the number of Shares to which it pertains
and whether such Option is intended to constitute an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Statutory Stock Option.

Vesting. Options granted under the Plan shall vest as determined by the Committee, in its sole and absolute dis-
cretion, from time to time, which may include installment or performance vesting or other contingent vesting provi-
sions.

Exercise Price. The exercise price per Share for the Shares to be issued pursuant to exercise of an Option, whether
an Incentive Stock Option or Non-Statutory Stock Option, shall be such price as is determined by the Committee as
of the date of grant; provided, however, that such price shall in no event be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value
per Share on the date of grant.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Employee
who, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, owns or is deemed to own (by reason of the attribution rules
applicable under Section 424(d) of the Code) stock possessing more than ten percent of the total combined voting
power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Subsidiary, the exercise price per Share shall be no less than
110% of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may designate a per Share exercise price of less than one hundred
percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant if the Option is granted in substitution for a
stock option previously granted by an entity that is acquired by or merged with the Corporation or any Subsidiary or




Affiliate or pursuant to any other corporate transaction, as provided by Section 424 of the Code and the regulations
thereunder.

Medium and Time of Payment. The consideration to be paid for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of an
Option, including the method of payment, shall be determined by the Committee on the date of grant and may con-
sist entirely of (i) cash, check or full recourse promissory note or (ii) delivery (actually or by attestation) of Shares
having a Fair Market Value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate exercise price of the Shares to which
said Option shall be exercised, or any combination of such methods of payment, or such other consideration and
method of payment for the issuance of Shares permitted under any laws to which the Company is subject which is
approved by the Committee in its discretion; provided, however that the Optionee shall be required to pay an
amount necessary to satisfy the Company's tax withholding obligations in accordance with Section 22(d) of the
Plan. Unless otherwise specifically provided, the exercise price of an Option that is paid by surrender to the
Company of other Shares shall be paid only by Shares of the Company that have been held by the Optionee for at
least six (6) months on the date of surrender (or such other period of time as is required for the Company to avoid
an accounting charge).

If approved by the Committee and permitted by applicable law, payment in full or of any part of the exercise price
also may be made by delivering a properly executed exercise notice to an approved broker-dealer, together with
instructions to the broker-dealer to deliver promptly to the Company the amount of sale or loan proceeds necessary
to pay the exercise price and taxes required to be withheld (a "cashless exercise").

If the consideration for the exercise of an Option is a promissory note, it shall be a full recourse promissory note
executed by the Optionee, bearing interest at a rate which shall be sufficient to preclude the imputation of interest
under the applicable provisions of the Code. Until such time as the promissory note has been paid in full, the
Company may retain the Shares purchased upon exercise of the Option in escrow as security as security for pay-
ment of the promissory note. An Optionee may not deliver a promissory note in payment of the exercise price (i)
unless approved in advance by the Committee and (i} to the extent such note would violate any applicable laws.

If the consideration for the exercise of an Option is the actual surrender of previously acquired and owned Shares,
the Optionee will be required to make representations and warranties satisfactory to the Company regarding his or
her title to the Shares used to effect the purchase, including without limitation representations and warranties that
the Optionee has good and marketable title to such Shares free and clear of any and all liens, encumbrances,
charges, equities, claims, security interests, options or restrictions, and has full power to deliver such Shares with-
out obtaining the consent or approval of any person or government authority other than those which have already
given consent or approval in a manner satisfactory to the Company. The value of the Shares used to effect the
purchase shall be the Fair Market Value of such Shares on the date of exercise as determined by Committee in its
sole discretion exercised in good faith.

Term of Options. The term of an Option may be no more than ten years from the date of grant thereof; provided,
however, that the term of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Employee who, at the time the Incentive Stock
Option is granted, owns or is deemed to own (by reason of the attribution rules of Section 424(d) of the Code) stock
possessing more than ten percent of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any
Subsidiary, shall be no mare than five years from the date of grant thereof or such shorter term as may be

approved by the Committee.

The term of any Option may be less than the maximum term provided for herein as specified by the Committee
upon grant of the Option and as set forth herein.

Annual Limit on Incentive Stock Options. Notwithstanding any designation under Section 5(b), o the extent that the
aggregate Fair Market Value (determined at the time an Incentive Stock Option is granted) of the Shares with

35

WS Fond W

&

o




e

=
<

Ny

N

S

B e

o

St

1
4

{

=

DAY

i Hie

LR

!?5)

respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by an Optionee during any calendar year
under all incentive stock option plans of the Company exceeds $100,000, the Options in excess of such limit shall
be treated as Non-Statutory Stock Options. For this purpose, Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into account in
the order in which they were granted, and the Fair Market Value of the Shares shall be determined as of the grant
date of the relevant Option.

Exercise of Stock Options.

In General. Any Option granted hereunder shall be exercisable at such times and under such conditions as deter-
mined by the Committee and as shall be permissible under the Plan, including any performance or other criteria
with respect to the Company and/or the Optionee as may be determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the provisions of the Plan as to all or any portion of the Shares
then exercisable under an Option from time to time during the term of the Option. However, an Option may not be
exercised for a fraction of a Share.

Procedure. An Option shall be deemed to be exercised when written notice of such exercise has been given to the
Company at its principal business office in accordance with the terms of the Award Agreement by the person enti-
tled to exercise the Option and full payment for the Shares with respect to which the Option is exercised has been
received by the Company, accompanied by any other agreements required by the terms of the Plan and/or Award
Agreement or as required by the Committee and payment by the Optionee of all payroll, withholding or income
taxes incurred in connection with such Option exercise (or evidence that arrangements for the collection or payment
of such tax satisfactory to the Committee have been made). Full payment may consist of such consideration and
method of payment allowable under Section 6(¢) of the Plan.

Decrease in Available Shares. Except as provided in Section 3 of the Plan, exercise of an Option in any manner
shall result in a decrease in the number of Shares which thereafter may be available, both for purposes of the Plan
and for sale under the Option, by the number of Shares as to which the Option is exercised.

Exercise of Stockholder Rights. Until the Option is properly exercised in accordance with the terms of this

Section 7, and the Company has issued Shares in the name of the Optionee, no right to vote or receive dividends
or any other rights as a stockholder shall exist with respect to the Optioned Stock. No adjustment will be made for
a dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date the Option is exercised and the Shares issued,
except as provided in Section 16 of the Plan.

Termination of Continuous Employment. Except as otherwise provided herein, in the event of termination of an
Optionee's Continuous Employment, such Optionee may, but only within such period of time as is determined by
the Committee at the time of grant, with such determination in the case of an Incentive Stock Option not exceeding
ninety (90) days after the date of such termination (but in no event later than the expiration date of the term of such
Option as set forth in the Award Agreement), exercise his or her Option to the extent that the Optionee was entitled
to exercise it at the date of such termination. To the extent that the Optionee was not entitled to exercise the Option
at the date of such termination, or if the Optionee does not exercise such Option to the extent so entitled within the
time specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

The Committee may, at any time and at its sole discretion, extend beyond 90 days the period of time during which
an Optionee may exercise his or her Option following the date on which his or her Continuous Employment termi-
nates for any reason other than death, Disability or Termination for Cause.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, an Option shall not be exercisable after the expiration of the term of such Option, as
set forth in the Award Agreement, and, unless otherwise provided by the Committee, an Option may be exercised




only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to exercise it on the date his or her Continuous Employment termi-
nated. To the extent the Optionee does not exercise his or her Option, to the extent exercisable, within the time
specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

Death or Disability of Optionee. If an Optionee's Continuous Employment terminates due to death or Disability of
the Optionee, the Option may be exercised, in the case of death, by the Optionee's estate or by a person who
acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or inheritance, or, in the case of Disability, by the Optionee,
within one year following the date of such termination (subject to any earlier termination of the Option as provided
by its terms).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Option shall not be exercisable after the expiration of the term of such Option, as
set forth in the Award Agreement, and, unless otherwise provided by the Committee at the time of grant, an Option
may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to exercise it on the date his or her Continuous
Employment terminated due to death or Disability. To the extent the Optionee does not exercise his or her Option,
to the extent exercisable, within the time specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

Termination for Cause. If an Optionee's Continuous Employment terminates due his or her Termination for Cause,
he or she may exercise his or her Option to the extent the Option was exercisable as of the date of such termina-
tion, but only within 30 days following the date of such Termination for Cause (subject to any earlier termination of
the Option as provided by its terms).

Notwithstanding the forgoing, an Option shall not be exercisable after the expiration of the term of such Option, as
set forth in the Award Agreement, and, unless otherwise provided by the Committee at the time of grant, an Option
may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to exercise it on the date his or her Continuous
Employment terminated due his or her Termination for Cause. To the extent the Optionee does not exercise his or
her Option, to the extent exercisable, within the time specified herein, the Option shall terminate.

Expiration of Option. Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan, including but not limited to the provisions set forth
in Section 7(e) and 7(f), an Option may not be exercised, under any circumstances, after the expiration of its term.

Conditions on Exercise and Issuance. As soon as practicable after any proper exercise of an Option in accordance
with the provisions of the Plan, the Company shall deliver to the Optionee at the principal executive office of the
Company or such other place as shall be mutually agreed upon between the Company and the Optionee, a certifi-
cate or certificates representing the Shares for which the Option shall have been exercised. The time of issuance
and delivery of the certificate or certificates representing the Shares for which the Option shall have been exercised
may be postponed by the Company for such period as may be required by the Company, with reasonable diligence,
to comply with any law or regulation applicable to the issuance or delivery of such Shares.

Options granted under the Plan are conditioned upon the Company obtaining any required permit or order from
appropriate governmental agencies, authorizing the Company to issue such Options and Shares issuable upon
exercise thereof. Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option unless the exercise of such
Option and the issuance and delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto shail comply with all relevant provisions of
law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, applicable state law, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any
stock exchange upon which the Shares may then be listed, and may be further subject to the approval of counsel
for the Company with respect to such compliance.
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8.

Stock Appreciation Rights.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant SARs at any time and from time to time, as will be deter-
mined by the Committee. SARs granted pursuant to this Section 8 of the Plan shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement
and subject to the following terms and conditions:

a.

38

Grant of SARS. An SAR may be granted to Participant holding an Option (hereinafter called a "related Option") with

respect to all or a portion of the Shares subject to the related Option (a “Tandem SAR") or may be granted sepa-
rately to an eligible person (a "Free Standing SAR"). Subject to the limitations of the Plan, SARs shall be exercis-
able in whole or in part upon notice to the Company upon such terms and conditions as are provided in the applica-
ble Award Agreement

Number of Shares. The Committee will have complete discretion to determine the number of SARs granted to any
Participant.

Tandem SARS. A Tandem SAR may be granted concurrently with the grant of the related Option, or if the related
Option is a Non-Statutory Stock Option, at any time thereafter prior to the complete exercise, termination, expiration
or cancellation of such related Option. Tandem SARs shall be exercisable only at the time and to the extent that the
related Option is exercisable (and may be subject to such additional limitations on exercisability as the Award
Agreement may provide), and in no event after the complete termination or full exercise of the related Option. Upon
the exercise or termination of the related Option, the Tandem SARs with respect thereto shall be cancelled auto-
matically to the extent of the number of Shares with respect to which the related Option was so exercised or termi-
nated. Subject to the limitations of the Plan, upon the exercise of a Tandem SAR, the Participant shall be entitied to
receive from the Company, for each Share with respect to which the Tandem SAR is being exercised, consideration
(in the form determined as provided in Section 8(e)) equal in value to the excess of the Fair Market Value of a
Share on the date of exercise over the related Option exercise price per share; provided, however, that the
Committee may, in any Award Agreement granting Tandem SARs, provide that the appreciation realizable upon
exercise thereof shall be measured from a base higher than the related Option exercise price.

Free Standing SARs. Free Standing SARs shall be exercisable at the time, to the extent and upon the terms and
conditions set forth in the applicable Award Agreement. The base price of a Free Standing SAR shall be not less
than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the date of grant of the Free Standing
SAR. Subject to the limitations of the Plan, upon the exercise of a Free Standing SAR, the Participant shall be enti-
tled to receive from the Company, for each share of Common Shares with respect to which the Free Standing SAR
is being exercised, consideration (in the form determined as provided in Section 8(e)) equal in value to the excess
of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of exercise over the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of the

award.

Consideration. The consideration to be received upon the exercise of an SAR by the Participant shall be paid in
cash, Shares to which the SAR relates (valued at Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of such SAR) or a com-
bination of cash and Shares as specified in the Award Agreement, or, if so provided in the Award Agreement, either
as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion or as elected by the Participant, provided that the Committee
shall have the sole discretion to approve or disapprove the election by a Participant to receive cash in full or partial
settlement of an SAR, which approval or disapproval shall be given after such election is made. No fractional
Shares shall be issuable upon exercise of an SAR and, unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award
Agreement, the Participant will receive cash in lieu of fractional shares. Unless the Committee shall otherwise
determine, to the extent a Free Standing SAR is exercisable, it will be exercised automatically for Shares on its
expiration date.




9.

Limitations. The applicable Award Agreement may provide for a limit on the amount payable to a Participant upon
exercise of SARs at any time or in the aggregate, for a limit on the number of SARs that may be exercised by the
Participant in whole or in part for cash during any specified period, for a limit on the time periods during which a
Participant may exercise SARs and for such other limits on the rights of the Participant and such other terms and
conditions of the SAR as the Participant may determine, including, without limitation, a condition that the SAR may
be exercised only in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Committee from time to time. Unless
otherwise so provided in the applicable Award Agreement, any such limit relating to a Tandem SAR shall not restrict
the exercisability of the related Option. Such rules and regulations may govern the right to exercise SARs granted
prior to the adoption or amendment of such rules and regulations as well as SARs granted thereafter.

Buyout Provisions. The Committee may at any time offer to buy out for a payment in cash or Shares a SAR previ-
ously granted based on such terms and conditions as the Committee shall establish and communicate to the
Participant at the time that such offer is made.

Expiration and Exercise of SARs. An SAR granted under the Plan will expire upon the date determined by the
Committee, in its sole discretion, and set forth in the Award Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rules of
Section 7 shall also apply to Participants with respect to the exercise of SARs.

Certain SARs. If at the time of grant the Committee intends a grant of SARs to any Service Provider to be
excluded from the coverage of Section 409A of the Code, then, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, (i)
with respect to a number of Shares fixed on or before the date of grant, the compensation payable under such
SARs cannot be greater than the difference between the Fair Market Value of the Shares (determined without
regard to any risk of forfeiture or restrictions on transfer) on the date of grant and the Fair Market Value of the
Shares (determined without regard to any risk of forfeiture or restrictions on transfer) on the date of exercise, (i) the
exercise price for such SARs may never be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the underlying Shares
(determined without regard to any risk of forfeiture or restrictions on transfer) on the grant date, and (iii) the SARs
may not include any feature for the deferral of compensation other than the deferral of recognition of income until
the exercise of such SARs.

Restricted Stock.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant shares of Restricted Stock in such amounts as the
Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine and as shall be evidenced in an Award Agreement; provided, however,
that the Restricted Stock granted under this Section 9 shall be subject to the following:

a.

Grant of Restricted Stock. Subject to the limitations of the Plan, the Committee shall determine whether Shares
covered by awards of Restricted Stock will be issued at the beginning or the end of the Restriction Period and
whether Dividend Equivalents will be paid during the Restriction Period in the event Shares are to be issued at the
end of the Restriction Period, and shall designate (or set forth the basis for determining) the time or times when
each award of Restricted Stock will vest, and may prescribe other restrictions, terms and conditions applicable to
the vesting of such Restricted Stock in addition to those provided in the Plan. The Committee shall determine the
price, if any, to be paid by the Participant for the Restricted Stock; provided, however, that the issuance of
Restricted Stock shall be made for at least the minimum consideration necessary to permit such Restricted Stock to
be deemed fully paid and nonassessable. All determinations made by the Committee pursuant to this Section 9(a)
shall be specified in the Award Agreement.

Issuance of Restricted Stock at Beginning of the Restriction Period. If Shares are issued at the beginning of the
Restriction Period, the stock certificate or certificates representing such Restricted Stock shall be registered in the

name of the Participant to whom such Restricted Stock shall have been awarded. During the Restriction Period,
certificates representing the Restricted Stock and any securities constituting Retained Distributions (as defined in
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Section 9(c)) shall bear a restrictive legend to the effect that ownership of the Restricted Stock (and such Retained
Distributions), and the enjoyment of all rights appurtenant thereto, are subject to the restrictions, terms and condi-
tions provided in the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement. Such certificates shall remain in the custody of the
Company and the Participant shall deposit with the Company stock powers or other instruments of assignment,
each endorsed in blank, so as to permit retransfer to the Company of all or any portion of the Restricted Stock and
any securities constituting Retained Distributions that shall become vested in accordance with the Plan and the
Award Agreement.

Restrictions. Restricted Stock issued at the beginning of the Restriction Period shall constitute issued and outstand-
ing Shares for all corporate purposes. The Participant will have the right to vote such Restricted Stock, to receive
and retain such dividends and distributions, as the Committee may in its sole discretion designate, paid or distrib-
uted on such Restricted Stock and to exercise all other rights, powers and privileges of a shareholder with respect
to the Shares covered by such an award of Restricted Stock; except, that (i) the Participant will not be entitied to
delivery of the stock certificate or certificates representing such Restricted Stock until the Restriction Period shall
have expired and unless all other vesting requirements with respect thereto shall have been fulfilled or waived; (ii)
the Company will retain custody of the stock certificate or certificates representing the Restricted Stock during the
Restriction Period as provided in Section 9(b); (iii} other than such dividends and distributions as the Committee
may in its sole discretion designate, the Company will retain custody of all distributions ("Retained Distributions")
made or declared with respect to the Restricted Stock (and such Retained Distributions will be subject to the same
restrictions, terms and vesting and other conditions as are applicable to the Restricted Stock) until such time, if
ever, as the Restricted Stock with respect to which such Retained Distributions shall have been made, paid or
declared shall have become vested, and such Retained Distributions shall not bear interest or be segregated in a
separate account; (iv) the Participant may not sell, assign, transfer, pledge, exchange, encumber or dispose of the
Restricted Stock or any Retained Distributions or his interest in any of them during the Restriction Period; and (v) a
breach of any restrictions, terms or conditions provided in the Plan or established by the Committee with respect to
any Restricted Stock or Retained Distributions will cause a forfeiture of such Restricted Stock and any Retained
Distributions with respect thereto.

Issuance of Shares at End of the Restriction Period. Restricted Stock issued at the end of the Restriction Period
shall not constitute issued and outstanding Shares and the Participant shall not have any of the rights of a share-
holder with respect to the Shares covered by such an award of Restricted Stock, in each case until such Shares
shall have been transferred to the Participant at the end of the Restriction Period. If and to the extent that Shares
are to be issued at the end of the Restriction Period, the Participant shall be entitled to receive Dividend
Equivalents with respect to the Shares covered thereby either (i) during the Restriction Period or (i) in accordance
with the rules applicable to Retained Distributions, as the Committee may specify in the Award Agreement.

Cash Awards. In connection with any award of Restricted Stock, an Award Agreement may provide for the payment
of a cash amount to the Participant holding such Restricted Stock at any time after such Restricted Stock shall
have become vested. Such cash awards shall be payable in accordance with such additional restrictions, terms and
conditions as shall be prescribed by the Committee in the Award Agreement and shall be in addition to any other
salary, incentive, bonus or other compensation payments which such Participant shall be otherwise entitled or eligi-
ble to receive from the Company.

Completion of Restriction Period. On the vesting date specified in the applicable Award Agreement with respect to
each award of Restricted Stock, and upon the satisfaction of any other applicable restrictions, terms and conditions,
(i) all or the applicable portion of such Restricted Stock shall become vested, (i) any Retained Distributions and any
unpaid Dividend Equivalents with respect to such Restricted Stock shall become vested to the extent that the
Restricted Stock related thereto shall have become vested, and (iii) any cash award to be received by the
Participant with respect to such Restricted Stock shall become payable, all in accordance with the terms of the
applicable Award Agreement. Any such Restricted Stock, Retained Distributions and any unpaid Dividend




10.

Equivalents that shall not become vested shall be forfeited to the Company and the Participant shall not thereafter
have any rights (including dividend and voting rights) with respect to such Restricted Stock, Retained Distributions
and any unpaid Dividend Equivalents that shall have been so forfeited.

Effect of Termination. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee at the time of grant, upon termination of
Continuous Employment for any reason during the Restriction Period, all Restricted Stock still subject to restriction
shall be immediately forfeited by the Participant and transferred to, and reacquired by, the Company; provided,
however, that in the event of a Participant's Disability or death, or in cases of special circumstances, if the
Committee, in its sole discretion, finds that a waiver would be in the best interests of the Company and shall within
thirty (30) days after such termination of Continuous Employment notify the Participant in writing of its decision to
waive in whole or in part any or all remaining restrictions with respect to such Participant's Restricted Stock, then
the Participant shall continue to be the owner of such Restricted Stock subject to such continuing restrictions as the
Committee may prescribe in such notice. In the event of a forfeiture of Restricted Stock pursuant to this

Section 9(g), the Company shall repay to the Participant (or the Participant's estate) any amount paid by the
Participant for such Restricted Stock. In the event that the Company requires a return of Restricted Stock, it shall
also have the right to require the return of all dividends, distributions or Dividend Equivalents paid on such
Restricted Stock, whether by termination of any escrow arrangement under which any Retained Distributions or
Dividend Equivalents are held or otherwise.

Performance Units and Performance Shares.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant Performance Units and Performance Shares at any time
and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee. The terms and conditions of the Performance Units and
Performance Shares shall be determined from time to time by the Committee and shall be evidenced in an Award
Agreement; provided, however, that the Performance Units and Performance Shares granted under this Section 10 shall
be subject to the following:

a.

Value of Performance Unit and Performance Shares. Each Performance Unit will have an initial value that is estab-
lished by the Committee on or before the date of grant, which need not relate to the Fair Market Value of a Share.
Each Performance Share will have an initial value equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of
a Share on the date of grant.

Performance Objectives and Other Terms. The Committee will set performance goals in its discretion which,
depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine the number or value of Performance Units or
Performance Shares that will be paid out to the Participants. The time period during which the performance goals
must be met will be called the "Performance Cycle." The minimum time period for any Performance Cycle shall be
one year. Each Award of Performance Units or Performance Shares will be evidenced by an Award Agreement that
will specify the Performance Cycle, and such other terms and conditions as the Committee, in its sole discretion,
will determine. The Committee may set performance goals based on the achievement of Company-wide, divisional,
or individual objectives, or on any applicable laws or any other basis as determined by the Committee in its discre-
tion.

Earning of Performance Units and Performance Shares. After the applicable Performance Cycle has ended, the
holder of Performance Units or Performance Shares will be entitled to receive a payment based on the number of
Performance Units or Performance Shares earned by the Participant over the Performance Cycle, to be determined
as a function of the extent to which the corresponding performance goals have been achieved. After the grant of a
Performance Unit or Performance Share, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may reduce or waive any perform-
ance goals for such Performance Unit or Performance Share.
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d. Modification of Standards. If the Committee determines in its sole discretion that the established performance goals
are no longer suitable to Company objectives because of a material change in the Company's business, operations,
corporate structure or capital structure, or other conditions the Committee deems to be material, the Committee
may modify the performance goals as it considers appropriate and equitable.

e.  Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Unit and Performance Shares. Payment of earned Performance Units
and Performance Shares will be made as soon after the expiration of the applicable Performance Cycle at the time
determined by the Committee. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay earned Performance Units and
Performance Shares in the form of cash, in Shares (which have an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the value
of the earned Performance Units or Performance Shares at the close of the applicable Performance Cycle) orin a
combination thereof.

f. Cancellation of Performance Units and Performance Shares. On the date set forth in the Award Agreement, all
unearned or unvested Performance Units and Performance Shares will be forfeited to the Company, and again will
be available for grant under the Plan.

1. Phantom Shares.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant Phantom Shares, the value of which shall be determined
by reference to a Share, on the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan and on such other terms and conditions as are
not inconsistent with the purposes and provisions of the Plan as the Committee, in its sole discretion, may from time to
time determine, including the satisfaction of any performance goal requirements that may be established by the Committee
and as shall be evidenced in an Award Agreement; provided, however, that the Phantom Shares granted under this
Section 11 shall be subject to the following: ’

a. Surrender. Each Award Agreement with respect to a Phantom Share shall specify the date on which the Phantom
Share shall be surrendered, and thereby cancelled by delivery of an actual Share or, in the discretion of the
Company, by the payment of cash (or a combination of cash and Shares) in an amount equal to one hundred per-
cent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of surrender, subject to such terms and conditions as
the Committee may specify, in its sole discretion, in the applicable Award Agreement or thereafter. The date on
which the Phantom Shares shall be surrendered may be accelerated upon the occurrence of certain events, as
determined by the Committee in its sole discretion and as set forth in the applicable Award Agreement.

b. Dividends and Distributions. Payments of Dividend Equivalents may be made to Participants who have been
awarded Phantom Shares. Such payments of Dividend Equivalents may be paid directly to the Participant or may
be reinvested in additional Phantom Shares, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

C. Limitation on Payment. The Committee may, in its sole discretion, establish and set forth in the Award Agreement a
maximum dollar amount payable under the Plan for each Phantom Share granted pursuant to such Award
Agreement.

d.  Participant's Termination. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee at the time of grant, upon termination
of Continuous Employment for any reason, the date of surrender of Phantom Shares shall be accelerated and the
Phantom Shares shall be automatically and immediately surrendered and cancelled by delivery of Shares as of the
date of such termination.

12. Restricted Stock Units.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant Restricted Stock Units. Restricted Stock Units shall con-
sist of an Award of Restricted Stock, Performance Shares or Performance Units that the Committee, in its sole discretion,

42




permits to be paid out in instaliments, in accordance with rules and procedures established by the Committee. The
Committee may, in its sole discretion, establish any or all of the following rules for application to an award of Restricted
Stock Units under this Section 12:

a.  Non-Transferability. Any Shares which are part of an award of Restricted Stock Units may not be assigned, sold,
transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered prior to the date on which the shares are issued, or if later, the date
provided by the Committee at the time of grant of the Award.

b.  Consideration. Such Restricted Stock Units may provide for the payment of cash consideration by the person to
whom such Award is granted or provide that the Award, and Shares to be issued in connection therewith, if applica-
ble, shall be delivered without the payment of cash consideration; provided, however, that the issuance of any
Shares in connection with an award of Restricted Stock Units shall be for at least the minimum consideration nec-

essary to permit such shares to be deemed fully paid and nonassessable. /’/F
( [sgmin']
c.  Performance or Other Criteria. Awards of Restricted Stock Units may relate in whole or in part to performance or Z{«
other criteria established by the Committee at the time of grant. =
[
d.  Deferral and Other Terms and Conditions. Awards of Restricted Stock Units may provide in the Award Agreement | @
for deferred payment schedules, vesting over a specified period of employment, the payment of Dividend "E*D
Equivalents with respect to the number of Shares covered by the Restricted Stock Units, and written elections by /;14
the Participant to defer payment of the Award or the lifting of restrictions on the Award, if any. ‘ «%
|
\
e.  Waiver of Restrictions. In such circumstances as the Committee may deem advisable, the Committee may waive or N

.

otherwise remove, in whole or in part, any restrictions or limitations to which an award of Restricted Stock Units -
was made subject at the time of grant.

13.  Other Incentive Awards.

The Committee shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant Other Incentive Awards, which may be granted either
alone, in addition to, or in tandem with, either or both of other Awards granted under the Plan or other cash awards made
under or outside of the Plan, and which may, but are not required to, relate to the Fair Market Value of a Share. The
Committee shall have authority to determine to whom and the time or times at which Other Incentive Awards shall be
made, the amount of such Other Incentive Awards, and all other conditions of the Other Incentive Awards including but not
limited to any vesting or forfeiture conditions and dividend or voting rights.

14.  Non-Employee Directors.

a.  Discretionary Awards. The Board of Directors shall have the authority, in its discretion, to grant to Non-Employee
Directors, as such time or times as the Board of Directors may determine, Non-Statutory Stock Options, SARSs,
Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units, or any combination thereof. All grants of Awards under this Section 14
shall be made in compliance with any applicable requirements of the listing standards of the NASDAQ market sys-
tem, or any stock exchange on which the Shares are then listed, with respect to Non-Employee Directors, and will
take into consideration the cash and equity components of the aggregate compensation provided to such Non-
Employee Directors hereunder and outside of the Plan.

b.  Limit on Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 16 of the Plan, the maximum number of Shares
which may be subject to Awards under the Plan during any calendar year to any Non-Employee Director under this
Section 14 is 500,000 Shares.
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C. Ineligible Non-Employee Directors. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, a Non-Employee Director who,
at the time the Awards to Non-Employee Directors shall be granted, owns or is deemed to own (by reason of the
attribution rules applicable under Section 424(d) of the Code) stock possessing more than ten percent of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Subsidiary, shall not be eligible for such

grants under this Section 14.
15. Non-Transferability of Awards.

Awards granted under this Plan may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated,' gifted, transferred or disposed of in
any manner, either voluntarily or involuntarily by operation of law, other than by will, by the laws of descent and distribu-
tion, transfers between spouses incident to a divorce, or in accordance with the following exceptions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, an Award granted under
the Plan may be transferred (i) by the Participant between spouses, incident to a divorce, in which case the Award is only
exercisable by the spouse to whom the Award is transferred, or (i) in the case of an Award other than an Incentive Stock
Option or related Tandem SAR, to a trust established for the exclusive benefit of solely one or more members of his or her
"immediate family" or to a partnership in which the Participant's immediate family, as defined herein, are the only partners
and is exercisable only by the Participant or his or her legal guardian during the lifetime of the Participant or, (iii) in the
event of death of the Participant, by the estate of the Participant or by a person who acquires the rights to exercise the
Award by bequest or inheritance. Any Award held by the transferee will continue to be subject to the same terms and con-
ditions that were applicable to the Award immediately prior to the transfer, except that the Award will be transferable by the
transferee only by will or the laws of descent and distribution. For purposes hereof, "immediate family," means the
Participant's children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, spouse, siblings (including half
brothers and sisters), in-laws, and relationships arising because of legal adoption.

16. Adjustments Upon Change in Corporate Structure.

a.  Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of Shares covered by each out-
standing Award, and the number of Shares which have been authorized for issuance under the Plan but as to which
no Awards have yet been granted or which have been returned to the Plan for future issuance, as well as the exer-
cise or purchase price per Share covered by each such outstanding Award, shall be proportionately adjusted for
any increase or decrease in the number of issued Shares resulting from a stock split or combination, the payment
of a stock dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, exchange, spin-off, or any other increase or decrease in
the number of issued Shares effected without receipt of consideration by the Company (other than Awards to
Service Providers under this Plan), as may be necessary to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights; provided,
however, that the conversion of any convertible securities of the Company shall not be deemed to have been
effected without receipt of consideration. Any such adjustment shall be made by the Committee, in its sole discre-
tion, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. The existence of the Plan and out-
standing Awards shall not limit or affect in any way the right or power of the Company to engage in any such trans-

actions.

b.  Inthe event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or in the event of a proposed sale of all or
substantially all of the assets or stock of the Company (other than in the ordinary course of business), or the merger
or consolidation of the Company with or into another Company, as a result of which the Company is not the surviv-
ing and controlling Company or as a result of which the outstanding Shares are exchanged or converted into cash
or property or securities not of the Company, the Committee shall (i) make provision for the assumption or substitu-
tion of all outstanding Awards by the successor Company or (ii) if an Award is not assumed or substituted by the
successor Company, the Committee shall notify the Participant in writing or electronically that all Awards shall be
exercisable, whether or not then exercisable, and any restrictions on such Awards shall lapse, for a period of up to
thirty (30) days from the date of such notice (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Award as
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set forth in the Award Agreement), and the Award shall terminate upon the expiration of such period. In the event
the Company elects to comply with clause (i) of this Section 16(b), and the Participant's Continuous Employment is
subsequently terminated (other than by a voluntary termination by the Participant or Termination for Cause) prior to
the time such Participant's Awards are fully vested, such Participant's Awards shall be fully and immediately vested
and such Participant shall have the right to exercise his or her Awards as to all or any part of the Optioned Stock,
or Shares subject to such Awards, including Shares as to which the Awards would not otherwise be exercisable, but
only within such period of time as is determined by the Committee, with such determination in the case of an
Incentive Stock Option not exceeding ninety (90) days after the date of such termination (but in no event later than
the expiration date of the term of such Award as set forth in the Award Agreement).

No fractional Shares shall be issuable on account of any action aforesaid, and the aggregate number of shares into
which Shares then covered by the Award, when changed as the result of such action, shall be reduced to the
largest number of whole shares resulting from such action, unless the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, shall
determine to issue scrip certificates in respect to any fractional shares, which scrip certificates, in such event shall
be in a form and have such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors in its discretion shall prescribe.

Section 162(m) Requirements.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, if the Committee determines at the time any Award is granted to a
Participant that such Participant is, or is likely to be at the time he or she recognizes income for federal income tax pur-
poses in connection with such Award, a "covered employee" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, then the
Committee, may provide that the following provisions are applicable to such Award:

a.

Performance Goals. If an Award is subject to this Section 17, then the lapsing of restrictions thereon and the distri-
bution of cash, Shares or other property pursuant thereto, as applicable, shall be subject to the achievement of
one or more objective performance goals established by the Committee, which shall be based on the attainment of
one or any combination of the following: return on invested capital, customer service levels, EBIT (or EBITDA or
other forms of earnings on basic or diluted basis), free cash flow (or other cash flow measures), growth in the fore-
going or other measures, economic profit, net income (before or after tax), specified levels of earnings per share
from continuing operations, operating income, revenues, gross margin, return on operating assets, return on equity,
economic value added, stock price appreciation, total shareholder return (measured in terms of stock price appreci-
ation and dividend growth) or cost control, of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate (or any division thereof) for
or within which the Participant is primarily employed, or such other goals as the Committee shall determine. Such
performance goals also may be based upon the attaining of specified levels of Company performance under one or
more of the measures described above relative to the performance of other corporations. Such performance goals
shall be set by the Committee within the first ninety (90) days of a Performance Cycle (or, if longer or shorter, within
the maximum period allowed under Section 162(m) of the Code), and shall otherwise comply with the requirements
of, Section 162(m) of the Code.

Adjustments. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan other than Section 16, with respect to any Award that is
subject to this Section 17, the Committee may not adjust upwards the amount payable pursuant to such Award, nor
may it waive the achievement of the applicable performance goals except in the case of the death or Disability of
the Participant.

Other Restrictions. The Committee shall have the power to impose such other restrictions on Awards subject to this
Section 17 as it may deem necessary or appropriate to ensure that such Awards satisfy all requirements for "per-
formance-based compensation" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.
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18. Stockholder Approval.

Effectiveness of the Plan shall be subject to approval by the stockholders of the Company within twelve (12) months
before or after the date the Plan is adopted by the Board of Directors; provided, however that Awards may be granted pur-
suant to the Plan subject to the subsequent approval of the Plan by such stockholders within such twelve-month period.
Stockholder approval shall be obtained by the affirmative votes of the holders of a majority of voting Shares present or
represented and entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders duly held in accordance with the laws of the state of
Delaware.

19, Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

a.  Amendment and Termination. The Committee may amend or terminate the Plan from time to time in such respects
as the Committee may deem advisable, and may make any other amendments or issue additional rules or regula-
tions, which may be required in order to comply with Section 409A of the Code and the regulations promulgated
thereunder, or which may be required so that Options intended to be Incentive Stock Options shall at all times con-
tinue to be Incentive Stock Options for the purpose of Section 422 of the Code; provided, however, that without
approval of the holders of a majority of the voting Shares represented or present and entitled to vote at a valid
meeting of stockholders, no such revision or amendment shall (i) increase the number of Shares which may be
issued under the Plan, other than in connection with an adjustment under Section 16 of the Plan; (ii) materially
change the designation of the class of persons eligible to be granted Awards; (iii) remove the administration of the
Plan from the Board of Directors or its Committee; (iv) extend the term of the Plan beyond the maximum term set
forth in Section 23 hereunder; or (v) violate the rules for shareholder approval under the rules of any exchange on
which the Company's Shares are traded or any other applicable laws, rules or regulations.

b. Effect of Amendment or Termination. Except as otherwise provided in Section 16 of the Plan, any amendment or
termination of the Plan shall not affect Awards already granted and such Awards shall remain in full force and effect
as if this Plan had not been amended or terminated, unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Participant and
the Company, which agreement must be in writing and signed by the Participant and the Company.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this Plan shall not adversely affect, unless mutually agreed in writ-
ing by the Company and a Participant, the terms and provisions of any Award granted prior to the date the Plan
was approved by stockholders as provided in Section 18 of the Plan.

20. Indemnification.

No member of the Committee or the Board of Directors shall be liable for any act or action taken, whether of commission
or omission, except in circumstances involving actual bad faith, or for any act or action taken, whether of commission or
omission, by any other member or by any officer, agent, or employee. |n addition to such other rights of indemnification,
as they may have as members of the Board of Directors, or as members of the Committee, the Committee shall be indem-
nified by the Company against the reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees actually and necessarily incurred, in
connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding, or in connection with any appeal therein, to which they or
any of them may be a party by reason of any act or action taken, by commission or omission, in connection with the Plan
or any Award granted thereunder, and against all amounts paid by them in settlement thereof (provided such settiement is
approved by independent legal counsel selected by the Company) or paid by them in satisfaction of a judgment in any
action, suit or proceeding, except in relation to matters as to which it shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding
that such Board of Directors member is liable for actual bad faith in the performance of his or her duties; provided that
within 60 days after institution of any such action, suit or proceeding, a Committee or Board of Directors member shall in
writing offer the Company the opportunity, at its own expense, to handle and defend the same.
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Reservation of Shares.

The Company, during the term of this Plan, shall at all times reserve and keep available such number of Shares as shall
be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan.

22.

General Provisions.

Other Plans. Nothing contained in the Plan shall prohibit the Company from establishing additional incentive com-
pensation arrangements.

No Enlargement of Rights. Neither the Plan, nor the granting of Awards or issuance of Shares, nor any other action
taken pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon a Participant any right with respect to continuing his or her relationship
as a Service Provider for any period of time, or at any particular rate of compensation, nor shall they interfere in
any way with the right of the Participant or the right of the Company to terminate such relationship at any time, with
or without cause, for any reason or no reason.

No Service Provider shall have any right to or interest in Awards authorized hereunder prior to the grant thereof to
such eligible person, and upon such grant he or she shall have only such rights and interests as are expressly pro-
vided herein and in the related Award Agreement, subject, however, to all applicable provisions of the Company's
Certificate of Incorporation, as the same may be amended from time to time.

Notice. Any notice given to the Company pursuant to the provisions of the Plan shall be addressed to the
Company in care of its Secretary (or such other person as the Company may designate from time to time) at its
principal office, and any notice to be given to an Participant to whom an Award is granted hereunder shall be deliv-
ered personally or addressed to him or her at the address given beneath his or her signature on his or her Award
Agreement, or at such other address as such Participant or his or her transferee (upon the transfer of the Shares)
may hereinafter designate to the Company in writing. Any such notice shall be deemed duly given when enclosed
in a properly sealed envelope or wrapper addressed as aforesaid, registered or certified, and deposited, postage
and registry or certification fee prepaid, in a post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United
States Postal Service. It shall be the obligation of each Participant holding Shares purchased upon exercise of an
Award to provide the Secretary of the Company, by letter mailed as provided hereinabove, with written notice of his
or her direct mailing address.

Withholding or Deduction for Taxes. If, at any time, the Company is required, under applicable laws and regula-
tions, to withhold, or to make any deduction for, any taxes or take any other action in connection with any exercise,
issuance or payment of an Award made hereunder or transfer of Shares, the Company shall have the right to
deduct from all amounts paid in cash any taxes required by law to be withheld therefrom, and, in the case of
Shares, the Participant or his or her estate or beneficiary shall be required to pay to the Company the amount of
taxes required to be withheld, or, in lieu thereof, the Company shali have the right to retain, or sell without notice, a
sufficient number of Shares to cover the minimum amount required to be withheld, or to make other arrangements
with respect to withholding as it shall deem appropriate (including withholding such amount from the Participant's
salary). The Committee may, in its discretion, permit a Participant to elect, subject to such conditions as the
Committee shall impose, to surrender to the Company previously acquired Shares having a Fair Market Value suffi-
cient to satisfy the Participant's minimum withholding tax obligation associated with the transaction.

Foreign Service Providers. In the event an Award is granted to a Service Provider who is employed or providing
services outside the United States, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, modify the provisions of the Plan as
they pertain to such individual to comply with applicable foreign laws, or to recognized differences in local law, cur-
rency or tax policy, to the extent necessary or advisable to comply with any such laws or policies. The Committee
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23.

may also impose conditions on the exercise or vesting of Awards in order to minimize the Company's obligations
with respect to tax equalization for Service Providers on assignments outside their home country.

Funding of Plan. The Plan shall be unfunded. Neither the Participants nor any other persons shall, by reason of the
Plan or any Award thereunder, have any rights, title or interest in any funds, property or in any specific asset or
assets of the Company, any Subsidiary or Affiliate, or any other entity whatsoever, including, without limitation, any
other property which the Company, in its sole discretion, may set aside in anticipation of a liability under the Plan,
unsecured by any assets of the Company. Nothing in the Plan shall constitute a guarantee that the assets of the
Company shall be sufficient to pay any benefits to any person. The interests of each Participant and former
Participant hereunder are unsecured and shall be subject to the general creditors of the Company and any
Subsidiary or Affiliate.

Applicable Law. To the extent that federal laws do not otherwise control, the Plan shall be governed by and con-
strued in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware, without regard to the conflict of law rules thereof.

Incentive Stock Options. The Company shall not be liable to an Optionee or other person if it is determined for any
reason by the Internal Revenue Service or any court having jurisdiction that any Incentive Stock Options are not
“incentive stock options” as defined in Section 422 of the Code.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary or Affiliate shall be responsible for,
or have any liability to a Participant or other person with respect to, any penalties which may be imposed on a
Participant in connection with an Award granted under the Plan, in the event that such Award becomes subject to
Section 409A of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Information to Participants. The Company shall provide, upon request, without charge to each Participant copies of
such annual and periodic reports as are provided by the Company to its stockholders generally.

Availability of Plan. A copy of the Plan shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Company and shail be shown by
him or her to any eligible person inquiring about it.

Severability. In the event that any provision of the Plan is found to be invalid or otherwise unenforceable under any
applicable law, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not be construed as rendering any other provisions contained
herein as invalid or unenforceable, and all such other provisions shall be given full force and effect to the same
extent as though the invalid or unenforceable provision was not contained herein.

Effective Date and Term of Plan.

The Plan shall become effective upon stockholder approval as provided in Section 18 of the Plan. The Plan shall continue
in effect for a term cf ten years unless sooner terminated under Section 19 of the Plan. All Awards granted prior to stock-
holder approval of the Plan are subject to such approval, and, if such approval is not obtained within twelve (12) months
after the Plan is adopted by the Board of Directors, all such Awards shall expire and shall be of no further force and effect.
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Financials

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by, the

consolidated financial statements and reiated notes thereto and “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” included herein.

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Revenue $57,828 $40,179 $46,343 $18,952 $17,397
Gross margin, product sales 22,464 15,481 11,379 2,674 2473
Income (loss) from continuing operations 3934 (4,234) 1,643 (24,983) {12,153)
Loss from discontinued operation (332) (5,271) (3,470) (8,005) (2,221)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares 3,602 (9,505) {1,923) {33,151) (14,497)
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations:

- basic $ 018 $ (0.19) $ 007 $ (1.18) $ (0.74)

- diluted $ 017 $ (0.19) $ 007 $ (1.18) $ (0.74)
Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 016 $ (043) $ (0.09) $ (157) $ (0.88)
Net income {loss) per share - diluted $ 015 $ (043) $ (0.08) $ (157 $ (0.88)
Working capital 12,858 8,727 11,961 6,327 7,643
Total assets 33,653 29,645 40,942 30,038 30,214
Total long-term debt 4914 2,669 5,728 6,314
Stockholders' equity 15,192 11,042 20,154 19,039 21,501

Cash dividends per common share(")

(1) We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock and do not expect to pay such dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition,

we are restricted from paying dividends as long as amounts are outstanding under our convertible debentures.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide
greater details of our results of operations and financial condition
of the Company. The following discussion sheuld be read in con-
junction with the Company's consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto and other financial data included elsewhere herein.
Certain statements under this caption constitute “forward-looking
statements" within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and, as such, are based on current expec-
tations and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. The
reader should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements for many reasons including those risks discussed
under "Factors that May Affect Future Results" and elsewhere in
this document. Forward-looking statements may be identified by
the use of forward-looking words or phrases such as "will," "may,"
"believe," "expect," "intend," "anticipate,” "could,” "should,” "antici-
pate,” "plan," "estimate," and "potential,” or other similar words.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires us to make esti-
mates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our
estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories, long-
lived assets, income taxes, and contingencies and litigation. We
base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum-
stances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not read-
ily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our
significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements”; critical estimates inherent
in these accounting policies are discussed in the following para-
graphs.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from product sales to direct cus-
tomers is recognized upon shipment as we generally do not have
any post-shipment obligations or allow for any acceptance provi-
sions. We defer recognition of sales to distributors when we are
unable to make a reasonable estimate of product returns due to
insufficient historical product return information. The revenue
recorded is dependent upon estimates of expected customer
returns and sales discounts.

Revenue from licensing programs is recognized over the period we
are required to provide services under the terms of the agreement.
Revenue from research and development activities that are funded
by customers are recognized as the services are performed.

Revenue from royalties is recegnized upon the notification to us of
shipment of product from our technology license partners to direct
customers.
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Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts. While we maintain a
stringent credit approval process, significant judgments are made
by management in assessing our customers' ability to pay at the
time of shipment. Despite this assessment, from time to time, cus-
tomers are unable to meet their payment obligations. We continue
to monitor customers' credit worthiness, and use judgment in
establishing the estimated amounts of customer receivables which
will ultimately not be collected. A significant change in the liquidity
or financial position of customers could have a material adverse
impact on the collectibility of accounts receivable and future oper-
ating results.

Inventory Valuation. We write-down our inventory for estimated
obsolescence or lack of marketability for the difference between
the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. |f actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by man-
agement, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Long-Lived Assets. We review the carrying values of long-lived
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
such carrying values may not be recoverable. Under current stan-
dards, the assets must be carried at historical cost if the projected
cash flows from their use will recover their carrying amounts on an
undiscounted basis and without considering interest. However, if
projected cash flows are less than their carrying value, the long-
lived assets must be reduced to their estimated fair value.
Considerable judgment is required to project such cash flows and,
if required, estimate the fair value of the impaired long-lived asset.
The estimated future cash flows are based upon, among other
things, assumptions about expected future operating performance
and may differ from actual cash flows. There can be no assurance
that future long-lived asset impairments will not occur.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of identifiable net tangible and intangible assets
acquired in a business combination. Goodwill is required to be
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired.
We performed our annual goodwill impairment testing as of
December 31, 2004, and determined that no impairment existed at
that date. This assessment requires estimates of future revenue,
operating results and cash flows, as well as estimates of critical
valuation inputs such as discount rates, terminal values and simi-
lar data. We continue to perform periodic and annual impairment
anaiyses of goodwill resulting from acquisitions. As a result of
such impairment analyses, impairment charges may be recorded
and may have a material adverse impact on our financial position
and operating results. Additionally, we may make strategic busi-
ness decisions in future periods which impact the fair value of
goodwill, which could result in significant impairment charges.
There can be no assurance that future goodwill impairments will
not occur.




Deferred Income Taxes. We record deferred tax assets and lia-
bilities for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilites and amounts
recorded in the consolidated financial statements, and for operat-
ing loss and tax credit carryforwards. Realization of the recorded
deferred tax assets is dependent upon us generating sufficient tax-
able income in the appropriate tax jurisdiction in future years to
obtain benefit from the reversal of net deductible temporary differ-
ences and from tax credit and operating loss carryforwards. Aval-
uation allowance is provided to the extent that management
deems it more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will
not be realized. The amount of deferred tax assets considered
realizable is subject to adjustment in future periods if estimates of
future taxable income are changed.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

Since our inception, we have been engaged primarily in the
research and development of ferroelectric technology and the
design, development and commercialization of FRAM products
and DRAM products. Revenue has been derived from the sale of
our FRAM and DRAM products since 1992. We have also gener-
ated revenue under license and development agreements for spe-
cific applications of our technologies with a limited number of
established semiconductor manufacturers. Accordingly, fluctua-
tions in our revenue have resulted primarily from the timing of sig-
nificant product orders, the timing of the signing of license and
development agreements, and the achievement of related per-
formance milestones.

Our total revenue grew 44% from 2003 to 2004, and decreased
13% from 2002 to 2003. Total FRAM business revenue grew 37%
from 2003 to 2004, and decreased 4% from 2003 to 2002. FRAM
revenue growth was primarily due to increased sales to core
FRAM revenue customers as well as increased sales of new prod-
ucts. The decrease in FRAM revenue from 2002 to 2003 was pri-
marily due to a $6.3 million decrease in license & development
fees from Texas Instruments that was partially offset by a 20%
increase in FRAM product revenue. The increase in FRAM prod-
uct revenue was primarily due to increased sales to core FRAM
revenue customers. FRAM product sales have increased propor-
tionally as a source of revenue due to an expanding FRAM cus-
tomer base, a deeper penetration of existing customers, an
expanding line of FRAM products, and our participation in the util-
ity meter replacement program at ENEL, which began in late 2001.

Since 2003, we have generated average quarterly revenue of
approximately $4 million from our ENEL meter replacement pro-
gram. In 2005, we expect ENEL to contribute $5 million to $6 mil-
lion in revenue, down from $17 million in 2004. Based on our cur-
rent estimates, first quarter 2005 ENEL shipments are anticipated
to be down sharply but increase the second quarter, with the bal-

ance of ENEL shipments trending lower in the third and fourth
quarters of 2005. We expect some residual shipments during the
first quarter of 2006. We have been able to significantly increase
revenue from other FRAM customers, also called core FRAM rev-
enue, during each of the last three years, with product revenue
totaling approximately $20.0 million, $10.7 million and $5.8 million
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Core FRAM product rev-
enue grew 85% in 2003, and 86% in 2004, For 2005, we antici-
pate that our core FRAM product revenue will grow between 25%
and 35% over 2004,

Since we built our cost structure to offset the roll off of sales to
ENEL, our current operating plan anticipates that we will be prof-
itable for full-year 2005. We have publicly stated that it will take a
few quarters to completely replace the historical revenue from
ENEL, but with our core FRAM product business poised for addi-
tional growth in 2005, we believe we are in a good position to make
the transition as the ENEL program becomes a smalier portion of
our FRAM revenue.

DRAM revenue increased 60% from 2003 to 2004. Economic con-
ditions improved in the DIMM market, which resulted in increased
revenue. This is the opposite of what happened in the DIMM mar-
ket in 2003 when Mushkin's revenue decreased 30% from 2002 to
2003. During this period, Mushkin's business transitioned from
generating revenue predominately from e-commerce sources to a
business with a substantial retail presence primarily through Fry's
Electronics (Fry's) and ABS Computer Technologies (ABS).
Currently, Fry's and ABS's sales represent approximately 68% of
Mushkin's annual revenue. Also, during the latter part of 2002,
Mushkin began focusing on lower volume, higher margin sales
opportunities to improve its overall financial performance. This
focus reduced revenue but improved adjusted income (exclusive
of goodwill impairment charges) in 2003. We anticipate Mushkin's
2005 revenue to remain flat with that of 2004,

During the first quarter of 2004, we committed to a plan to sell sub-
stantially all of the remaining assets of EMS. The remaining assets
consisted primarily of EMS' patent portfolio. We completed the
sale of EMS' patent portfolio on April 20, 2004, the proceeds of
which were $1.5 million. Due to a write-down of the carrying value
of the patent portfolio to its estimated fair value at March 31, 2004,
there was no gain or loss recorded on the finalization of the sale.

Our costs and expenses grew 22% in 2004, compared to a 2%
decline from 2002 to 2003. Components of this spending are
explained below.

Our gross margin in 2004 was 40%, compared with 41% in 2003,
and 30% in 2002. The improvement in gross margin in 2003
resulted primarily from a change in our product sales mix. FRAM
product sales grew in 2003, while sales in our Mushkin segment
declined. Since FRAM products have a higher gross margin the
shift in the product mix resulted in increased gross margin. FRAM
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product gross margin during 2004 was 54% compared with 51% in
2003, and 43% in 2002. Improvements in FRAM gross margin are
attributable to product shrinks and other routine cost-reduction
activities. In 2003, FRAM gross margin improved as manufactur-
ing yields improved, we shipped a more economical FRAM prod-
uct into the ENEL metering program, and we realized cost reduc-
tions at our subcontract manufacturers. Mushkin product gross
margin during 2004 was 13%, compared with 17% in 2003, and
12% in 2002. The Mushkin margin improvement from 2002 to
2003 resulted primarily from higher average selling prices for
Mushkin products. The Mushkin margin deterioration from 2004 to
2003 resulted primarily from increased competition, which was
detrimental to our prices and product margins.

Research and development expenses, including customer-spon-
sored research and development, were basically flat from 2002 to
2004. These expenses, as a percentage of total sales were 11%
in 2004, compared with 16% in 2003, and 14% in 2002. We have
held research and development expenses flat to bring our spend-
ing in line with our revenue.

Sales, general and administrative expenses were 23% of total rev-
enue in 2004, 26% in 2003, and 22% in 2002. Sales, general and
administrative spending was flat from 2002 to 2003, again to bring
our spending in line with our revenue. Increased spending from
$10.3 million in 2003, to $13.0 million in 2004, primarily relates to
increased sales commissions, sales bonuses, management
bonuses, and the costs implementing programs, processes, and
external audit fees associated with the compliance requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley legislation.

We plan to introduce new products in 2005 including a new
Processor Companion line and new Application Specific Standard
Products (ASSPs). Our first ASSP was developed in partnership
with two outside companies. We have delivered samples and they
have acknowledged that the product meets its specifications. The
three companies in partnership will market a complete system-
leve! solution including necessary IP. We believe that end-cus-
tomers in the automotive and industrial markets can benefit from
this offering.

In addition, we have begun development work on our next ASSP,
which will be targeted for one of our strongest markets. We bene-
fit from a close working relationship with our strategic customers
and may seek such partnerships for the development of other
ASSPs.

We have recently increased customer sampling of our one-
megabit FRAM memory product and continue to work on higher-
density FRAM products through our joint development program
with Texas Instruments.

We may establish new foundry partners in the future to ensure
broad support for our product plans. To establish our proprietary

52

FRAM process at a new foundry partner, we may acquire certain
capital equipment.

During the first half of 2003, a sustained downturn in DRAM mar-
ket conditions resulted in lower than expected revenue and prof-
itability of our Mushkin Segment. Because we believed the down-
turn was likely to continue and cause lower than expected sales
and profitability for some time into the future, we believed it was
appropriate to review the fair value of goodwill related to Mushkin.
The result of our review was a charge of $3.8 million for impair-
ment of goodwill during 2003.

For 2005, we anticipate that our Mushkin Segment revenue will be
approximately flat with 2004 revenue. We are focusing our efforts
on activities that may serve to improve the product margins on
Mushkin sales by increasing our efforts to sell higher-end memory
modules to the PC enthusiast, gamer and over clocking markets.
We expect margin pressures to remain in the retail segment of
Mushkin's business, which makes it difficult to predict the level of
future margin improvements if any.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AS COMPARED TO 2003

Our total revenue was $57.8 milion for the year ended
December 31, 2004 and $40.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. This was a year-over-year revenue growth
rate of 44%. Overall cost of product sales as a percentage of prod-
uct revenue were approximately the same when compared to the
prior year. Our costs and expenses were $52.6 million during the
year ended December 31, 2004, compared with $43.1 million for
the same period in 2003. The resulting income from continuing
operations in 2004 was $3.9 million, which compares to a loss from
continuing operations of $4.2 million in 2003. The $8.1 million
increase in operating results is due, in part, to an impairment of
goodwill of $3.8 millicn in 2003 and, in 2004, holding spending lev-
els for research and development, and sales, general and admin-
istrative expenses to a level consistent with profitability. The com-
bination of revenue growth and careful spending in 2004 resulted
in the first profitable year since our inception. Our current plans
anticipate that we will be profitable, on an annual basis in 2005.

FRAM product sales have continued to contribute an increased
dollar amount of gross margin for us on a year-over-year basis.
FRAM product gross margin contributions were $20.1 million in
2004 and $13.8 million in 2003. This is a result of improved gross
margin percentages (54% in 2004 compared to 51% in 2003}, cou-
pled with increased sales. The increased sales are a resuit of the
continued expansion of our FRAM customer base, deeper pene-
tration to understand the current and future needs of our cus-
tomers, expanding FRAM product portfolio, and our continued par-
ticipation in the utility meter replacement program at ENEL.




We have communicated to investors that the revenue from the
ENEL program is expected to ramp down in 2005 as the program
nears completion. ENEL product revenue in 2004 was $17.2 mil-
lion and in 2003 it was $15.9 million. We expect this program to
contribute approximately $5 to $6 million to our FRAM revenue
throughout 2005. We have been able to significantly increase rev-
enue from other FRAM customers; our core FRAM product rev-
enue totaled approximately $20.0 million and $10.7 miflion during
2004 and 2003, respectively. This is a year-over-year growth rate
of 86%.

Product revenue at Mushkin increased to $18.3 million in 2004
from $11.5 million in 2003. Mushkin product gross margin for the
year 2004 and 2003 decreased, and was 13% and 17%, respec-
tively. While Mushkin experienced increasing revenue, the product
margin percentages decreased and the resulting product margin
contribution was $2.4 million in 2004 compared to $2.0 million in
2003. Economic conditions in our DRAM market improved and
resulted in increased revenue in 2004, but increased competition
was detrimental to our prices and product margins.

In non-product revenue, during 2004, we experienced $0.3 million
in increased royalty revenue and $0.2 million in increased license
revenue, but these were offset by a $0.4 million reduction in cus-
tomer-sponsored research and development revenue. The
increased royalty revenue are a result of increased royalty pay-
ments from a major FRAM licensee due to continued growth in its
revenue stream. The increase in the license and development
fees resulted from a final instaliment on a ficense agreement.
Customer-sponsored research and development decreased
because of a reduction in support provided to Texas Instruments.
We expect to see slight increases in royalty payments, and contin-
ued reductions in customer-sponsored research and deveicpment
revenue in 2005.

Combined research and development expenses for 2004
remained flat when compared to 2003, but decreased to 11% of
revenue from 16% of revenue in 2003. Sales, general and admin-
istrative expenses for the year increased $2.7 million year over
year, but decreased from 26% of revenue in 2003 to 23% of rev-
enue in 2004. The increase in 2004 resuits primarily from
increased incentives relating to performance plans. In 2005, we
plan to increase spending to fund additional research and devel-
opment, increase spending in sales and marketing and reduce the
percentage of revenue spent for general and administrative func-
tions.

In 2003, we recorded an impairment to goodwill of $3.8 million
relating to our DRAM Segment, Mushkin. A sustained downturn in
DRAM market conditions resulted in lower than expected actual
and projected revenue and profitability of Mushkin during the first
half of 2003. Because we believed the downturn would likely con-
tinue to cause lower than expected sales and profitability for some
time into the future, we believed it was appropriate to review the

fair value of goodwill related to Mushkin as of June 30, 2003. The
result of our review was a charge of $3.8 million for impairment of
goodwill in the quarter ended June 30, 2003. In calculating the
impairment charge, the fair value was estimated using a dis-
counted cash flow methodology and market comparisons. There
can be no assurance that future goodwill impairments will not
oceur.

Loss From Discontinued Operation, During the three months
ended March 31, 2004, we committed to a plan to sell substantially
all of the remaining assets of our subsidiary, EMS. n accordance
with SFAS No. 144, our consolidated financial statements have
been recast to present this business as a discontinued operation.
The $0.3 miflion operating loss in 2004 of the discontinued opera-
tion is primarily the result of an impairment of the carrying value of
EMS' patent portfolio to its estimated fair value at March 31, 2004,
The decrease from the operating loss of $5.3 miflion in 2003 is pri-
marily due to the reduction in activities at EMS beginning in April
2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AS COMPARED TO 2002

Revenue. Total revenue for 2003 was $40.2, a decrease $6.1 mil-
lion from 2002.

FRAM product revenue for 2003 increased $4.4 million to $26.6
million, from 2002. Increased FRAM product revenue is primarily
attributable to increased shipments to core FRAM customers.
During 2003, approximately 60% of FRAM product revenue was
attributable to the ENEL program. Additionally, we recorded rev-
enue of approximately $950,000 related to a change in our esti-
mate of returns from distributors during 2003. We historically
recorded all shipments to distributors as deferred revenue until
shipped to the end customer because we did not believe we had
adequate historical data to make a reasonable estimate of the
amount of future returns as required under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 48 ("FAS No. 487), "Revenue
Recognition When Right of Return Exists." During the first quarter
of 2003, we concluded that we had sufficient shipment and return
experience to allow for the recognition of revenue on shipments fo
certain distributors at the time of shipment, along with a reserve for
estimated returns. Accordingly, during the first quarter of 2003, we
recognized an additional $350,000 in product sales revenue that
would have been deferred prior to this change in estimate. The
impact on gross margins from this additional revenue was approx-
imately $450,000 during 2003.

Product revenue at Mushkin for 2003 was $11.4 million, a
decrease of $4.9 million, or 30%, as compared to 2002.
Decreases in Mushkin product revenue is the result of focusing on
lower volume, higher margin sales opportunities to improve its
overall financial performance, reducing revenue but improving net
income. Additionally, during the first quarter of 2003, Mushkin rec-
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ognized $311,000 of revenue related to a change in the estimated
amount of distributor product retumns as discussed above. The
impact on gross margin from this additional revenue was approxi-
mately $40,000 in 2003.

License and development fees for 2003 were $0.5 million, as com-
pared to $6.8 million for 2002. The decline of $6.3 million resulted
from recognizing the remaining revenue related to our Texas
Instruments FRAM license and development agreement during
2002.

We recognized royalty revenue of $0.5 million in 2003. In 2002,
$0.4 million of royalty revenue was recognized. This royalty
income was primarily attributable to FRAM licensing agreements
with existing licensees.

Customer-sponsored research and development revenue during
2003 is primarily attributable to our FRAM technology development
program with Texas Instruments. We recognized customer-spon-
sored research and development revenue of $1.2 million and $0.6
million 2003 and 2002, respectively. The amount of customer
sponsored research and development revenue recognized during
a given quarter is dependent on the specific programs we are
working on, the development stage of each program, the costs
incurred during the quarter and the amount of work remaining to
complete the program.

Gross Margin as ‘a percentage of product revenue during 2003
were 41% and 30% in 2002. Gross margin associated with our
FRAM products increased from 43% in 2002, to 52% in 2003.
FRAM gross margin improved as we improved manufacturing
yields, shipped a more economical version of the product used in
the ENEL metering program and realized cost reductions at our
subcontract manufacturers. Gross margin as a percentage of
product revenue at our Mushkin subsidiary increased to 17% in
2003, as compared to 12% in 2002. Mushkin margin improve-
ments are primarily the result of improved average selling prices
for Mushkin's products.

Research and Development expenses for 2003 ($6.4 million)
essentially stayed flat with 2002 (a decrease of $0.3 million). This
was due to reduced spending to bring our spending in line with our
revenue during such period.

Sales, General and Administrative expenses for 2003 of $10.3 mil-
lion increased $0.2 million from $10.1 million in 2002. Again, these
were somewhat flat due to a focus on reduced spending to bring
our spending in line with our revenue.

Impairment of Goodwill, as previously discussed, from a mid-year

review of goodwill associated with our Mushkin subsidiary resulted
in a charge of $3.8 million for impairment of goodwill in 2003.
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Related party interest expense increased $0.2 million to $0.5 mil-
lion for 2003, as compared to $0.3 million in 2002, primarily due to
increases in interest expense related to the convertible debenture
issued to Infineon in March 2002.

Other interest expense increased $0.3 million to $0.9 million for
2003, from $0.6 million primarily due to interest expense related to
convertible debentures issued to Halifax Fund, L.P. (Halifax) and
Bramwell Capital Corporation (Bramwell) in April 2002 and mini-
mum interest charges related to our credit facility with Wells Fargo
Business Credit, Inc. (Wells Fargo).

Loss from the discontinued operation increased to $5.3 million in
2003 compared to $3.5 million in 2002. This increase was prima-
rily due to a $1.7 million impairment charge related to intangible
assets that occurred in 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $1.6 million in 2004 to
$6.4 million. Cash flow provided by operations decreased by $3.9
million to $3.1 million as compared to 2003, when we generated
$7.0 from operations. Cash generated by operating income, after
non-cash charges, which is net income adjusted by deprecation
and amortization, the loss from discontinued operation, loss on
abandonment of patents, provisions for inventory write-offs, and
impairment charges, was $6.2 million, compared to $2.0 million in
2003. The adjustments in 2003 included $3.8 miliion of impairment
charges. and a $5.3 million loss from discontinued operation.
During 2004, we had no impairment charges and $0.3 million in
losses from the discontinued operation.

Additionally, working capital requirements increased $8.1 million
as compared to 2003 primarily due to an increase of $4.2 million in
accounts receivable and $3.6 million in inventories. These
increases were the result of increases in our 2004 sales compared
to 2003. During 2003, we collected delinquent payments totaling
$2.4 million from a subcontract manufacturer on the ENEL pro-
gram.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased on a year-over-
year basis from $5.0 million at the end of 2003 to $6.7 million at the
end of 2004. This increase is primarily attributable to increased
purchases related to the increased sales in 2004 compared to
2003 as well as amounts accrued during 2004 relating to incentive
compensation programs.

Deferred revenue decreased $1.1 million from $7.4 million at the
end of 2003 to $6.3 million at the end of 2004. This decrease is
primarily related to earning previously deferred revenue related to
a FRAM technology license. This deferred revenue is being amor-
tized into revenue over the 7-year remaining life of such technol-
ogy license.




Cash used in investing activities was $4.1 million in 2003, com-
pared to $0.4 million provided by investing activities in 2004. This
change is primarily related to the discontinued operations which
used $2.5 million in 2003. During 2004, $0.9 million was gener-
ated from the discontinued operation, which included the impact of
selling the remaining patents in 2004 for $1.5 million.

In 2004, the change in net cash used in financing activities was an
increase of $0.6 million. This is primarily due to increased pringi-
pal payments on our promissory notes of $0.9 million in 2004 off-
set by increased cash received for the exercise of stock options of
$0.3 million.

We have $4.5 million of convertible debentures that mature in
March of 2007. We have several alternatives to fund this obliga-
tion, including the refinancing of these debentures. It is possible
that the stock price will reach a price that will result in the conver-
sion of these debentures to common stock or we may undertake a
private placement or public offering to raise funds sufficient to
retire these obligations.

We have entered into a credit and security agreement with Wells
Fargo Business Credit, Inc. to provide a secured $3 million revoly-
ing line of credit. The credit facility currently provides for interest
at a floating rate equal to the prime lending rate plus 1.75% per
annum, minimum interest charges of $120,000 per year and a term
of three years ending on March 31, 2006. Security for the credit
facility includes our non-European accounts receivable and inven-
fories. The inclusion of any foreign receivable in the borrowing
base requires foreign "receivables insurance." The current cost to
us is approximately $50,000 per year. We may use the credit facil-
ity for working capital requirements. Borrowing limits are subject
to available collateral balances. At December 31, 2004, the
amount available under the revolving line of credit was $3.0 million.

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

There were no borrowings on this facility at December 31, 2004. In
the first half of 2004, we borrowed and repaid $750,000 on this
agreement. We are exploring other credit arrangements that may
provide a higher line of credit, or reduced costs for the availability
of the credit facility.

On April 6, 2004, we entered into an agreement to settle our long
standing patent interference proceeding with National
Semiconductor Corporation, see Note 14 of the Notes of
Consolidated Financial Statements. As a result of the settlement,
beginning April 2004 we are required to pay National $250,000
annually through 2013.

In the future, the primary source of operating cash flows is
expected to product sales from our FRAM and DRAM product
lines.

We had $6.4 million in cash and cash equivalents at December 31,
2004. We believe we have sufficient resources to fund our opera-
tions through at least 2005. If this is not sufficient to meet our cash
requirements, we may use the credit facility mentioned above or
any other credit facility we may obtain. In view of our expected
future working capital requirements in connection with the design,
manufacturing and sale of our FRAM products, and our projected
expenditures, we may be required to seek additional equity or debt
financing. There is no assurance, however, that we will be able to
obtain such financing on terms acceptable to us, or at all. Any
issuance of common or preferred stock to obtain additional funding
would result in dilution of existing stockholders' interests in us. The
inability to obtain additional financing when needed would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results and could adversely affect our ability to continue
our business operations.

For more information on our contractual obligations on operating leases and contractual commitments, see Notes 5 and 6 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2004, our commitments under these obligations were as follows:

After
(in thousands) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2009 Total
Long-term debt(®) $ 597 $ 507 $4,842 $ 250 $ 250 $1,000 $ 7,446
Operating leases 345 193 52 56 - - 646
Purchase obligations( 4112 - - - - - 4112
Total $5,054 $ 700 $4,894 $ 306 $ 250 $1,000 $12,204

(1)

Includes required principal and interest payments for outstanding debentures held by Infineon, Halifax and Bramwell, the National Settlement and

minimum interest charges related to our revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo.

2)

Our purchase obligations are amounts committed under legally enforceable contracts or purchase orders for goods and services with defined terms

as to price, quantity, delivery and termination liability and are the result of purchase orders placed but not yet fulfilled by Fujitsu, our semiconduc-

tor wafer supplier.
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LEGAL MATTERS

On April 6, 2004, the Company and National Semiconductor
Corporation (National} entered into an agreement to settle our long
standing patent interference dispute, which began in 1991 as a
patent interference proceeding that was declared in the United
States Patent and Trademark Office (the Patent Office) in regard to
one of our issued United States patents. The patent involved cov-
ers a basic ferroelectric memory cell design invention that we
believe is of fundamental importance to our FRAM business in the
United States.

Under the terms of the settiement agreement we have abandoned
four of the five claims in our existing patent, two of National's
patent applications relating to the interference claims have been
assigned to us and two others were retained by National. National
and Ramtron have agreed to cross license any and all future
patents that may be issued from the four applications at no addi-
tional cost to either company. As consideration for the assigned
patent applications and cross license provisions of the agreement,
we will pay National $2.5 million in equal annual instaliments of
$250,000 through 2013. We have not recorded an impairment of
the existing patents held for the technology in dispute since we
believe, as a consequence of the assignments and cross-license
arrangements discussed previously, we are in a position now, inso-
far as our ability to use the technology in dispute is concerned, that
is at least as favorable as our position prior to this resolution. In
addition, we believe the amounts capitalized related to these
patents and licenses will be recovered through future cash pro-
ceeds.

The fifth remaining count of interference has been sent to a Specia
Master for a final ruling. We believe our business would not be
materially affected by an adverse judgment by the Special Master
on the remaining count of interference. The disposition of this mat-
ter, expected in 2005, is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We are party to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
our business. Although the outcomes of any such legal actions
cannot be predicted, our management believes that there is no
pending legal proceeding against or involving us for which the out-
come is likely to have a material adverse effect upon our financial
position or results of operations.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

in December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, "Share-
Based Payment." This Standard addresses the accounting for
transactions in which a company receives employee services in
exchange for (a) our equity instruments or (b) liabilities that are
based on the fair value of our equity instruments or that may be
settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. This Standard
also eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensa-
tion transactions using Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
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25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and requires that
such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based
method. The Standard is effective for periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. We are currently assessing our valuation options
allowed in this Standard. Even though we have not quantified the
dollar amount of this new accounting standard at this time, the
result will have a negative impact on our earnings starting with the
accounting period beginning July 1, 2005.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following information should be read in conjunction with
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation,” and "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" included in the Annual Report. This Annual
Report and certain information incorporated herein by reference
contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report include, without limitation:

o The statements under the heading "Overview of Business
Segments" concerning our belief that we will continue fo supply
approximately 3.3 to 4 million units into the ENEL metering pro-
gram through 2005, which statements are subject to various
risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, the failure of
our expectations regarding the volume and timing of future
orders related to the ENEL metering program and our ability to
timely and profitably fulfill such orders;

¢ The statements under the heading "FRAM Segment Products”
concerning our beliefs and expectations that (1) certain products
we intend to introduce in the future will contain mixed-signal
functions combined with non-volatile memory and that these
functions can be improved by integration with our FRAM tech-
nology; (2) our foundry partners will increase their fabrication
capacity; (3) our ability to develop new products which are suit-
able to the available fabrication processes of our foundry part-
ners; (4) the potential migration of existing products to Fujitsu's
0.35 micron process; (5) our belief that an application and mar-
ket focus is key to expanding our served opportunity and devel-
oping more integrated and competitive products, which state-
ments are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including,
but not limited to, the inaccuracy of our assessment of the value
of integrating mixed signal functions with FRAM memories and
such products ability to increase our served opportunity, the
time and complexities involved in developing new products with
mixed-signal functionality, or migrating our legacy products to
newer manufacturing processes, and the ability of our foundry
partners to sufficiently increase fabrication capacity;

o The statements under the heading “FRAM Segment Customers
and Sales” and “DRAM Segment Customers and Sales" con-
cerning (1) our ability to expand our product portfolio through
the introduction of new serial, parallel and mixed-signal inte-
grated FRAM products; (2) the reduction of FRAM product man-




ufacturing costs; (3) increasing manufacturing capacity with
strategic partners; (4) our belief that Europe, Asia and Japan
are early adopters of new technologies; (5) our expected use of
existing sales channels for future sales and distribution of our
products, which statements are subject to various risks and
uncertainties, including, but not limited to, our failure to intro-
duce new serial, parallel and mixed-signal FRAM products
and/or reduce product manufacturing costs, the failure of our
strategic partners to sufficiently and timely increase manufac-
turing capacity to meet our production requirements, inaccura-
cies of our assessment of new technology adoption patterns in
Europe, Japan and Asia, and our ability to use our existing
channels for product sales and distribution;

The statement under the heading "FRAM Segment Backlog”
and "DRAM Segment Backlog" concerning our ability to accu-
rately assess whether backlog as of any particular date is a reli-
able indicator of future sales, which statement is subject to var-
ious risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, peri-
odic downturns in the semiconductor industry and the economy
in general, our ability to timely manufacture our products, the
ability of our customers to accurately project their requirements
for our products and our ability to accurately assess competi-
tive factors, including pricing pressures on existing products;

The statements under the heading “FRAM Segment
Manufacturing” and "“DRAM Segment Manufacturing” concern-
ing our belief that (1) the raw materials and packaging required
for the manufacture of our products at our foundry partners are
readily available from multiple sources; and (2) our limited vol-
ume of production will lower the priority we receive from our
subcontract manufacturers as compared to other customers of
such subcontract manufacturers, which statements are subject
to various risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation,
the possible occurrence of a disruption or termination of raw
material suppliers, the termination of any of our subcontract
manufacturing partners and our inability to establish relation-
ships with alternative subcontract manufacturers;

The statement under the heading "‘FRAM Segment Research
and Development" concerning our intention to use our techno-
logical and engineering expertise to develop new proprietary
technologies to further expand our FRAM product offerings in
our target markets, which statement is subject to various risks
and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, our ability to fund
the investment required to develop proprietary technologies
and overcome the technological challenges inherent in the
development of any new product or technology;

The statement under the heading “FRAM Segment
Environmental Compliance” and “DRAM  Segment
Environmental Compliance” concerning our belief that we have
taken all necessary steps to ensure our activities are in compli-
ance with all applicable environmental rules and regulations,
which statement is subject to various risks and uncertainties,

including, but not limited to, our ability to accurately assess the
compliance requirements of environmental provisions;

The statement under the heading “FRAM Segment Patents and
Proprietary Rights” concerning our beliefs and intentions (1) to
pursue the legal protection of our technology primarily through
patent and trade secret protection; (2) to vigorously protect our
intellectual property rights; (3) that our technology does not
infringe on any known patents; and(4) that current and pending
patent applications will provide protection against unauthorized
use of our inventions, which statements are subject to various
risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the absence
of assurance that patents will be issued from any of our pend-
ing applications or that any claims aliowed from existing or
pending patents will be sufficient to protect our technology, the
fact that litigation could result in substantial cost and adverse
determinations that could result in a loss of our proprietary
rights, subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require
us to seek licenses from third parties or prevent us from manu-
facturing or selling our products;

The statement under the heading “Properties” concerning our
belief that our current properties will be sufficient to meet our
requirements for the foreseeable future is subject to various
risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, growth in
net sales placing unexpected strains on our resources and
properties;

The statement under the heading “Legal Proceedings" and
“Note 14 - Contingencies” of the Consolidated Financial
Statements regarding the outcome of, and the impact on our
business, financial condition, or results of operations of the
National Semiconductor Corporation patent interference litiga-
tion, which statement is subject to various uncertainties, includ-
ing without limitation, our inability to accurately predict the
determination of complex issues of fact and law;

The statements under the heading “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation -
Critical Accounting Policies" regarding the calculation of
allowances, reserves, and other estimates that are based on
historical experience, the judgment of management, and vari-
ous other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for mak-
ing judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources, our beliefs
about critical accounting policies, and the significant judgments
and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated finan-
cial statements, which statements are subject to risks, includ-
ing, among others, the inaccuracy of our beliefs regarding
actual product failure rates, inventory usage, actual default
rates of our customers or other estimates, requiring revisions to
our estimated accounts receivable allowances, additional inven-
tory write-downs, warranty and other reserves; and
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o The statements under the heading “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation -
Results of Operations" regarding our expected (1) revenue
including any from the ENEL metering program and the signifi-
cance of such revenue to our overall financial performance, rev-
enue and gross margin levels; (2) growth of core FRAM revenue
and anticipated changes in our FRAM revenue mix; (3) intro-
ductions of new products; (3) establishing new foundry partners,
if possible; and (4) sufficiency of resources to fund our opera-
tions through at least 2005, which statements are subject to var-
ious risks and uncertainties, including, but nct limited to, general
economic conditions and conditions specific to the semiconduc-
tor industry, the demand for our products and the products of our
principal FRAM customer, order cancellations or reduced book-
ings, product mix, competitive factors such as pricing pressures
on existing products and the timing and market acceptance of
new product introductions, our ability to secure and maintain an
appropriate amount of low-cost foundry production capacity
from our sole foundry source in a timely manner, our foundry
partner's timely ability to successfully manufacture products for
us, our foundry partner's ability to supply increased orders for
FRAM products in a timely manner using our proprietary tech-
nology, any disruptions of our foundry or test and assembly con-
tractor relationships, the ability to continue effective cost reduc-
tions, unexpected design and manufacturing difficulties, and the
timely development and introduction of new products and
processes.

¢ The statements under the heading “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" regarding the Company's belief
that near-term changes in interest rates, currency exchange rate
fluctuations, inflation and other price pressures will not have a
material effect on future eamings, fair values or cash flows of the
Company, are subject to the risk, among other risks, that we
have inaccurately assessed the degree of expected change in
interest rates, currency exchange rates, inflation and price pres-
sures;

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Until the 2004, we have not been profitable; we have histori-
cally incurred losses from operations since our inception and
our continued profitability is uncertain.

Our ability to maintain our profitable operations is subject to signif-
icant risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited te, our abil-
ity to successfully sell our products at prices that are sufficient to
cover our operating costs, entering into additional license and
research and development arrangements and success in raising
additional financing to fund operations as necessary. There is no
guarantee that we will be successful in addressing such risks.

We recognized net income of $3.6 million in 2004. We incurred net

losses during 2003 of $9.5 million and $1.9 million in 2002. As of
December 31, 2004, we had an accumulated deficit of $220.5 mil-
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lion. We have spent substantial amounts of money in developing
our FRAM and DRAM products and in our efforts to develop com-
mercial manufacturing capabilities for those products. Our ability
to increase revenue or achieve profitability in the future will depend
substantially on our ability to increase sales of our products by
gaining new customers and increasing our penetration of existing
customers, reduce manufacturing costs, significantly increase
sales of existing products and successfully introduce and sell new
products.

Fluctuations in our historical operating results, in part, have been
due to unpredictable product order flows, a limited customer base,
manufacturing and other fixed costs. These issues may impact us
in the future. Factors affecting the demand for our products
include, the time required for incorporating our products into cus-
tomers' product designs, and the ability of our customers' products
to gain substantial market acceptance. These factors also make it
difficult for us to predict our future revenue. Because we base our
operating expenses on anticipated revenue trends, which results in
a substantial percentage of our expenses being fixed in the short
term, our difficulty in predicting future revenue could affect our abil-
ity to achieve future profitability and result in fluctuations in operat-
ing results.

Factors that may cause our operating results to vary significantly in
the future include:

e our ability to timely develop and qualify for manufacturing new
FRAM products;

o customer acceptance of our products;
o the timing and volume of customer orders,

e our ability to manufacture our products on a cost-effective and
timely basis through alliance foundry operations and contract
manufacturers and the sensitivity of our production costs to the
manufacturing yields achieved by our strategic licensees and
contract manufacturers; and

o factors not directly related to us, such as market conditions,
competition, pricing pressures, technological developments,
product obsolescence, the availability of supplies and raw mate-
rials, and changing needs of potential customers in the semi-
conductor industry in general.

Our products have achieved some market acceptance, and if
our products do not achieve continued growth in market
acceptance, we may be unable to increase our revenue.

Our success depends on the market acceptance of our FRAM and
DRAM module products and the time required to achieve market
acceptance. If one or more of our products fails to achieve market
acceptance or if market acceptance is delayed, our revenue may
not increase and our cash flows and financial condition could be
harmed. We must design products that successfully address cus-




tomer requirements if our products are to be widely accepted by
the market. Potential customers will be reluctant to integrate our
products into their systems uniess our products are reliable, avail-
able at competitive prices, and address our customers' current sys-
tems requirements. Additionally, potential customers need assur-
ances that their demand for our new products can be met in a
timely manner.

We may not be able to replace our expected reduced revenue
from ENEL in a timely manner, if at all, which could signifi-
cantly reduce our revenue; our anticipated ENEL revenue may
not be achieved.

in 2004, 2003, and 2002, approximately 46%, 60%, and 74%,
respectively, of our FRAM product sales were generated from one
customer, ENEL. Because our FRAM customer base is concen-
trated, and because FRAM product sales represented more than
67% of our total product sales in 2004, the anticipated reduced
business from this customer without a corresponding increase in
revenue from core FRAM customers, may result in significant
decreases in our revenue, which would also harm our cash flows,
operating results and financial condition. In addition, there is no
assurance that our anticipated revenue from ENEL will be
achieved.

If we do not continually develop new generations of FRAM
and DRAM module products that achieve broad market
acceptance, we will be unable to compete effectively.

Among other factors, our future success is dependent on our abil-
ity to develop, manufacture and market FRAM and DRAM module
products that address customer requirements and compete effec-
tively in the market with respect to price, performance and reliabil-
ity. If we do not compete effectively, we could suffer price reduc-
tions, reduced revenue, reduced gross margin and reduced mar-
ket share. New product development, which includes both our
development of new products and the need to "design-in" such
new_products to customers’ systems, is time-consuming and
costly. This new product development requires a long-term fore-
cast of market trends and customer needs, and often a substantial
commitment of capital resources, with no assurance that products
will be commercially viable,

In particular, we need to develop new product designs, new
process technology and continue ferroelectric materials develop-
ment. Our current FRAM products are designed at our Colorado
Springs facility and manufactured at our partner's manufacturing
facilities using 0.5 and 0.35 micron manufacturing processes. We
- believe that our ability to compete in the markets in which we
expect to sell our FRAM products will depend, in part, on our abil-
ity to produce FRAM products in smaller feature sizes and also our
ability to effectively incorporate mixed-signal functions with our
memory products. Our inability to successfully produce FRAM
products with analog and mixed-signal functions would harm our
ability to compete and our operating results.

Although we have recently developed mixed-signal products incor-
porating our FRAM memory solutions to supplement our traditional
memory product offerings, we have a limited operating history in
these markets and has had limited success. If we fail to introduce
new products in a timely manner or are unable to successfully
manufacture such products, or if our customers do net successfully
infroduce new systems or products incorporating our products, or
market demand for our new products does not develop as antici-
pated, our business, financial condition and results of operations
could be seriously harmed.

Our continued ability to generate revenue from the sale of DRAM
products will depend on our successful development, manufacture
and marketing of new DRAM module products with improved
price-performance characteristics, and we cannot provide any
assurance that we will be successful in accomplishing the forego-

ing.

If we do not keep pace with rapid technological changes and
frequent new product introductions, our products may
become obsolete, and we may not be competitive.

The semiconductor memory industry is characterized by rapid
technological changes and product obsolescence, price erosion
and variations in manufacturing yields and efficiencies. To be com-
petitive we need to continually improve our products and keep
abreast of new technology. Other companies, many of which have
greater financial, technological and research and development
resources than we do, are researching and developing semicon-
ductor memory technologies and product configurations that could
reduce or eliminate any future competitive advantages our prod-
ucts may currently have. We cannot provide any assurance that
our ferroelectric technology will not be supplanted in the future by
competing technology or that we will have the technical capability
and financial resources to be competitive in the semiconductor
industry with respect to the continued design, development and
manufacture of either FRAM or DRAM module products.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property, or if others use
our proprietary technology without authorization, our com-
petitive position may suffer.

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon
our ability to obtain and maintain proprietary technology used in
our products. We attempt to protect our intellectual property rights
through a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade
secret laws, as well as licensing agreements and employee and
third-party nondisclosure and assignment agreements. We cannot
be assured that any of our patent applications will be approved or
that any of the patents that we own will not be challenged, invali-
dated or circumvented by others or be of sufficient scope or
strength to provide us with any meaningful protection or commer-
cial advantage.
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Poticing the unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult,
and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent
the misappropriation or unauthorized use of our technologies, par-
ticularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect our
proprietary rights as fully as in the United States. In addition, we
cannot be certain that we will be able to prevent other parties from
designing and marketing FRAM-based products or that others will
not independently develop or otherwise acquire the same or sub-
stantially equivalent technologies as ours.

We may be subject to intellectual property infringement
claims that result in costly litigation and could harm our busi-
ness and ability to compete.

Our industry is characterized by the existence of a large number of
patents and frequent claims and related litigation regarding patents
and other intellectual property rights. In particular, many leading
semiconductor memory companies have extensive patent portfo-
lios with respect to semiconductor memory technology, manufac-
turing precesses and product designs. We may be involved in liti-
gation to enforce our patents or other intellectual property rights, to
protect our trade secrets and know-how, to determine the validity
of property rights of others, or to defend against claims of invalid-
ity. This type of litigation can be expensive, regardless of whether
we win or lose. Also, we cannot be certain that third parties will not
make a claim of infringement against us or against our semicon-
ductor company licensees or OEMs in connection with their use of
our technology. Any claims, even those without merit, could be
time consuming to defend, result in costly litigation and diversion
of technical and management personnel, or require us to enter into
royalty or licensing agreements. These royalty or licensing agree-
ments, if required, may not be available to us on acceptable terms
or at all. A successfu! claim of infringement against us or one of our
semiconductor manufacturing licensees in connection with our use
of our technology could harm our business.

We depend on a small number of suppliers for the supply of
our products. Problems in their performance can seriously
harm our financial resuits.

We currently rely on a single unaffiliated foundry at Fujitsu to man-
ufacture all of our products. Reliance on this foundry involves sev-
eral risks, including capacity constraints or delays in the timely
delivery of our products, reduced control over delivery schedules
and the cost of our products, manufacturing yields, quality assur-
ance and the loss of production due to seismic activity, weather
conditions and other factors. Although we continuously evaluate
sources of supply and may seek to add additional foundry capac-
ity, there can be no assurance that such additional capacity can be
obtained at acceptable prices, if at all. The occurrence of any sup-
ply or other problem resulting from these risks could have a mate-
rial adverse effect on our results of operations. We alsc rely on
domestic and foreign subcontractors for die assembly and testing
of products, and is subject to risks of disruption in adequate sup-
ply of such services and quality problems with such services.
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To address our wafer supply concerns, we plan to continue work-
ing on expanding our primary foundry capability at Fujitsu and to
acquire secondary foundry capability. Even if we enter into a sec-
ondary foundry relationship such manufacturing capacity is not
likely to be available for at least 12 to 24 months after reaching an
agreement due to significant effort required to develop and qualify
for manufacturing a FRAM technology process. Our financia! con-
dition and results of operations could be materially adversely
affected by the loss of Fujitsu as a supplier or our inability to obtain
additional foundry capacity.

International sales comprise a significant portion of our prod-
uct sales, which exposes us to foreign political and economic
risks.

For fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, international sales comprised
approximately 62%, 69% and 48%, respectively, of our net rev-
enue. The increase in export sales as a percentage of total sales
is primarily the result of increasing FRAM product sales primarily
to Europe, Asia and Japan, in part, because of increased offshore
manufacturing activity by U.S.-based companies. We also believe
Europe, Asia and Japan are early adopters of new technclogies.
We expect that international sales will continue to represent a sig-
nificant portion of our product sales in the future. As a result of the
large foreign component of our revenue, we are subject to a num-
ber of risks resulting from such operations. Such risks include
political and economic instability and changes in diplomatic and
trade relationships, foreign currency fluctuations, unexpected
changes in regulatory requirements, delays resulting from difficulty
in obtaining export licenses for certain technology, tariffs and other
barriers and restrictions, and the burdens of complying with a vari-
ety of foreign laws. There can be no assurance that such factors
will not adversely impact our results of operations in the future or
require us to modify our current business practices.

Our business is subject to other risks generally associated with
doing business with foreign subcontractors including, but not lim-
ited to foreign government regulations and political and financial
unrest which may cause disruptions or delays in shipments to our
customers or access to our inventories. Qur business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially adversely
affected by these or other factors related to our international oper-
ations.

We have been unable to fulfill all our FRAM customers' orders
according to the schedules originally requested due to con-
straints in our wafer supply.

Due to the lead time constraints in our wafer supply, from time to
time we have been unable to fulfill all our customers' orders
according to the schedules originally requested. Although we
attempt to maintain an adequate supply of wafers and communi-
cate to our customers delivery dates that we believe that we can
reasonably expect to meet, our customers may not accept the
alternative delivery date or may cancel their outstanding orders.




Reductions in orders received or cancellation of outstanding
orders results in lower revenue and net income, and potentially
excess inventories and increased inventory reserves.

We must build products based on demand forecasts; if such
forecasts are inaccurate, we may incur significant losses.

We must order products and build inventory substantially in
advance of product shipments, and there is a risk that because
demand for our products is volatile and subject to fluctuation, we
will forecast incorrectly and produce excess or insufficient invento-
ries of particular products. Our customers' ability to reschedule or
cancel orders without significant penalty could adversely affect our
liquidity, as we may be unable to adjust our purchases from inde-
pendent foundries to match such customer changes and cancella-
tions. We have in the past produced excess quantities of certain
products, which has had a material adverse effect on our results of
operations for such period. There can be no assurance that in the
future we will not produce excess quantities of any of our products.
To the extent we produce excess or insufficient inventories of par-
ticular products, our results of operations could be adversely
affected.

The markets in which we participate are intensely competi-
tive, and if we do not compete successfully, our revenue and
ability to maintain profitability would suffer.

The semiconductor industry is intensely competitive and our
FRAM and DRAM module products face intense competition from
numerous domestic and foreign companies. We may be at a dis-
advantage in competing with many of our competitors that have
significantly greater financial, technical, manufacturing and mar-
keting resources, as well as more diverse product lines that can
provide cash flows counter-cyclical to fluctuations in semiconduc-
tor memory operations.

Our ability to compete also depends on factors beyond our control,
including the rate at which customers incorporate our products into
their own products, our customers' success in selling their prod-
ucts, the successful protection of our intellectual property, the suc-
cess of competitors' products and general market and economic
conditions. Our competitors or customers may offer new products
based on new technologies, industry standards or end-user or cus-
tomer requirements, including products that have the potential to
replace or provide lower-cost or higher-performance alternatives to
our products. The introduction of new products by our competitors
or customers could render our existing and future products obso-
lete or unmarketable.

We compete in various markets with our FRAM strategic
licensees and contract manufacturers, which may reduce our
product sales. '

Our strategic licensees may market products which compete with
our FRAM products. Most of our strategic partners have the right

to manufacture and sell FRAM products for their own account with
or without the payment of royalties, depending upon the terms of
their agreements with us. Because our strategic licensees may
manufacture and market FRAM products themselves, they may
give the development and manufacture of their own FRAM prod-
ucts a higher priority than the development and manufacture of our
products. Any delay in market penetration by our products, or any
competition in the marketplace from FRAM products manufactured
and marketed by our strategic licensees, could reduce our product
sales and harm our operating results.

We depend on a relatively small number of key personnel, and
if we are unable to attract additional personnel or retain our
key personnel, our business will suffer.

Our future success depends, among other factors, on the contin-
ued service of our key technical and management personnel and
on our ability to continue to attract and retain qualified employees.
We are particularly dependent on the highly skilled design,
process, materials and test engineers involved in the development
and manufacture of our FRAM products and processes. The com-
petition for these personnel is intense, and the loss of key employ-
ees, including executive officers, or our inability to attract additional
qualified personnel in the future, could have both an immediate
and a long-term adverse effect on us. There can be no assurance
that we can retain them in the future. In addition, none of our
employees have entered into post-employment non-competition
agreements with us and, therefore, our employees are not con-
tractually restricted from providing services to our competitors.

Our business is subject to strict environmental regulations
and legal uncertainties, which could impose unanticipated
requirements on our business in the future and subject us to
liabilities.

Federal, state and local regulations impose various environmental
controls on the discharge of chemicals and gases used in our
strategic licensees’ and contract manufacturer manufacturing
processes. Compliance with these regulations can be costly.
Increasing public attention has been focused on the environmental
impact of semiconductor operations. Any changes in environmen-
tal rules and regulations may impose the need for additional invest-
ments in capital equipment and the implementation of compliance
programs in the future. Any failure by us or our strategic licensees
or contract manufacturers to comply with present or future envi-
ronmental rules and regulations regarding the discharge of haz-
ardous substances could subject us to serious liabilities or cause
us to suspend manufacturing operations, which could seriously
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Earthquakes, other natural disasters and power shortages or
interruptions may damage our business.

Some of our major contract manufacturers' facilities are located
near major earthquake faults. If a major earthquake or other natu-
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ral disaster occurs which damages those facilities or restricts their
operations, our business, financial condition and results of opera-
tions would be materially adversely affected. Similarly, a major
earthquake or other natural disaster near one or more of our major
suppliers, like the one that occurred near Fujitsu's manufacturing
facility in Iwate, Japan in May 2003, could disrupt the operations of
those suppliers, which could limit the supply of our products and
harm our business.

We have limited cash flows, and we may have limited ability to
raise additional funds to finance our operations and to meet
required principal payments to our lenders.

In view of our expected future working capital requirements in con-
nection with the mahufacture and sale of our FRAM and DRAM
module products, our projected research and development and
other operating expenditures, we may be required to seek addi-
tional equity or debt financing. We cannot be sure that any addi-
tional financing or other sources of capital will be available to us on
acceptable terms, or at all. The inability to obtain additional financ-
ing when needed would have a material adverse effect on our busi-
ness, financial condition and operating results and could adversely
affect our ability to continue our business operations. |f additional
financing is obtained, any issuance of common or preferred stock
to obtain funding would result in further dilution of our existing
stockholders' interests.

The majority of our revenue, expense and capital purchasing activ-
ities is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, because a portion of
our operations consists of activities outside of the United States,
we are considering commencing certain transactions in other cur-
rencies, primarily the Japanese yen. As part of our risk manage-
ment strategy, we frequently evaluate our foreign currency
exchange risk by monitoring market data and external factors that
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may influence exchange rate fluctuations. As a result, we may in
the future engage in transactions involving the short-term hedging
of foreign currencies, with maturities generally not exceeding two
years to hedge assets, liabilities, revenue and purchases domi-
nated in foreign currencies.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the financial
position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company due to
adverse changes in financial and commodity market prices and
rates. The Company is exposed to market risk in the areas of
changes in United States interest rates and changes in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates as measured against the United States dol-
lar. These exposures are directly related to its normal operating
activities. All of the Company's sales are denominated in U.S. dol-
lars and the Company currently has no derivative financial instru-
ments.

Interest payable on the Company's convertible debentures is ﬁxed
at 5% over the term of the debentures. As such, changes in inter-
est rates will not affect future earnings or cash flows.

The Company manages interest rate risk by investing its excess
cash in cash equivalents bearing variable interest rates, which are
tied to various market indices. The Company does not believe that
near-term changes in interest rates will resuit in a material effect on
future earnings, fair values or cash flows of the Company. The net
effect of a 10% change in interest rates on outstanding cash and
cash equivalents at December 31, 2004 would have less than an
$100,000 effect on earnings or cash flows.




RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

{in thousands, except share data) 2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,384 $ 4,798
Restricted cash 219 505
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $181 and $210, respectively 8,606 5,981
Inventories 5,769 4,650
Other current assets 441 291
Assets of discontinued operation - 2,416
Total current assets 21,419 18,641
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,991 4,195
Goodwill, net 4,020 4,020
Intangible assets, net 3,797 2,173
Other assets 426 616
Total assets $ 33,653 $ 29,645
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,765 $ 3913
Accrued liabilities 2,957 1,041
Deferred revenue 1,350 1,395
Current portion of long-term promissory notes, net of unamortized discount
of $0 and $233, respectively 250 2,147
Liabilities of discontinued operation 239 1,418
Total current liabilities 8,561 9,914
Deferred revenue 4,986 6,020
Long-term promissory notes net of unamortized discount of $1,151 and $1,491, respectively 4,914 2,669
Total liabilities 18,461 18,603
Stockholders' equity:
Commen stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 authorized; 22,380,126 and
22,191,225 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 224 222
Additional paid-in capital 235,455 234,909
Accumulated deficit (220,487) (224,089)
Total stockholders' equity 15,192 11,042
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 33,653 $ 29,645

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

{in thousands, except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002
Revenue:
Product sales $ 55,565 $ 38,039 $ 38,537
License and development fees 717 498 6,829
Royalties 765 480 398
Customer-sponsored research and development 781 1,162 579
57,828 40,179 46,343
Costs and expenses:
Cost of product sales 33,101 22,558 27,158
Research and development 5,639 5,378 .6,205
Customer-sponsored research and development : 797 994 444
Sales, general and administrative 13,019 10,301 10,100
Impairment of goodwill - 3,843 -
52,556 43,074 43,907
Operating income (loss) 5,272 (2,895) 2,436
Interest expense, related party (410 {486) (308)
Interest expense, other (899) (879) (560)
Other income, net 45 26 75
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax provision 4,008 (4,234) 1,643
. income tax provision (74) - -
Income (loss) from continuing operations 3,934 (4,234) 1,643
Loss from discontinued operation (332) (5,271) (3.470)
Net income (loss) ‘ $ 3602 $ (9,505) $(1,827)

Net income (loss) per common share;

Net income (loss) ‘ $ 3,602 $ (9,505) $ (1,827)
Dividends on redeemable preferred stock - - (82)
Accretion of redeemable preferred stock (14)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares $ 3,602 $ (9,505) $(1,923)
// Net income (loss) per share:
" Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 018 $ (0.19) $ 007
Loss from discontinued operation (0.02) (0.24) (0.16)
Total ' $ 0.16 $ (043 $ (0.09)
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 017 $ (0.19) $ 007
Loss from discontinued operation {0.02) (0.24) (0.15)
Total $ 015 $ (043) $ (0.08)
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 22,238 22,149 22,088
Diluted 23,528 22,149 22,819

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Common Stock

{$.01) Par Value Additional Total
Paid-in  Accumulated  Stockholders'
{in thousands, except share data) Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity
Balances, December 31, 2001 22,081 $221 $231,479 $(212,661)  $19,039
Redeemable preferred stock accretion - - (14) - {14)
Redeemable preferred stock dividend - - - (82) (82)
Exercise of options 43 - 93 - 93
Issuance of stock options for services provided - - 78 78
{ssuance of common stock warrants related to debentures - - 2,673 2,673
issuance of common stock warranis for services provided - - 189 - 189
Other - - 19 (14) 5
Net loss - - - (1,827) (1,827)
Balances, December 31, 2002 22,124 221 234517 (214,584) 20,154
Exercise of options 67 1 135 - 136
Issuance of stock options for services provided - - 57 - 57
Modification of commen stock warrants related to debentures - - 179 - 179
Other . . 21 - 21
Net loss - - - (9,505) (9,505) P
Balances, December 31, 2003 22,191 222 234,909 (224,089) 11,042 ;l
Exercise of options 189 2 410 - 412
Issuance of stock options for services provided - - 136 - 136 puul
Net income - - 3,602 3,602 | :J
Balances, December 31, 2004 22,380 $224 $235,455 $(220,487)  §$15,192 ‘
\\\

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (l0ss) $ 3,602 $(9,505) $(1,827)
Adjustments used to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:

Loss from discontinued operation 332 5,271 3,470
Depreciation and amortization 1,213 1,262 1,271
Amortization of debt discount 633 667 401
Imputed interest on note payable 75 - -
Loss on abandonment of patents 138 183 194
Gain on disposition of equipment (30) (10) -
Warrants and stock options issued for services 136 57 78
Provision for inventory write-off 121 278 176
Impairment of goodwill - 3,843 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (2,625) 1,621 (2,497)
inventories (1,240) 2,328 (424)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,768 740 1,400
Deferred revenue (1,079) 103 (2,667)
Other 40 150 52
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,084 6,988 (373)
N Cash flows from investing activities:
| Purchase of property, plant and equipment (822) (685) (525)
Proceeds from sale of equipment and patents 215 29 -
Payments for intellectual property (179) (481) (493)
Change in restricted cash 286 (505) -
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operation 905 {2,506) (4,807)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 405 (4,148) (5,825)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debenture issuance - - 8,000
/ Proceeds from line of credit 750 - -
' Payments on line of credit (750) - -
Debenture issue costs - - (758)
Principal payments on promissory notes (2,315) {1,400) -
Redemption of convertible preferred stock - - (1,174)
Issuance of common stock, net of expenses 412 136 93
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,903) (1.264) 6,161
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,586 1,576 (37)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,798 3,222 3,259
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $6,384 $ 4,798 $ 3,222

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES: '

Description of Business. Ramtron Internationat Corporation {the
Company) designs, develops, manufactures and markets high-
performance specially semiconductor memory devices. The
Company currently has two product lines, ferroelectric nonvolatile
random access memory (FRAM) products sold through the
Company's Ramtren business unit and high-performance dynamic
random access memory (DRAM) products sold through its sub-
sidiary, Mushkin Inc. (Mushkin) and historically through its sub-
sidiary, Enhanced Memory Systems, Inc. (EMS). EMS was classi-
fied as a discontinued operation during the first quarter of 2004.
See Note 11 of these Notes of Consolidated Financial Statements
below for further discussion of EMS.

The Company's revenue is derived primarily from the sale of its
FRAM and DRAM module products and from license and develop-
ment arrangements entered into with a limited number of estab-
lished semiconductor manufacturers and involving the develop-
ment of specific applications of the Company's technologies.
Other revenue is generated from products and customer-spon-
sored research and development revenue. Product sales have
been made to various customers for use in a variety of applications
including utility meters, office equipment, consumer electronics,
telecommunications, accelerator boards, disk controllers, personal
computers and industrial control devices.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-
ties at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods.
Estimates are used for items such as allowance for uncollectible
accounts, inventory obsolescence reserves, impairment testing of
long-lived assets and goodwill, and valuation allowances for
deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from those esti-
mates.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial state-
ments include the consolidation of accounts for the Company's
80% owned subsidiary, EMS and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Mushkin and Ramtron Kabushiki Kaisha (Ramtron K.K.}). Mushkin
operates the Company's DRAM businesses targeting high per-
formance DRAM markets and retail and e-commerce market seg-
ments. The Company formed Ramtron KK. to act in a sales and
marketing role within Japan for the Company's products and to
function as a liaison between the Company and its Japanese
alliance partners. To date, Ramtron K.K. has had limited opera-

tions. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all cash
and highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash. The Company's revolving line of credit with
Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. requires cash collected from
non-European customers to be held in a restricted account for two
business days after receipt from the customer.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market
value. The first-in, first-out method of costing inventories is used.
The Company writes down its inventory for estimated obsoles-
cence or lack of marketability for the difference between the cost
of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assump-
tions about future demand and market conditions.

Property, Plan and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred and improvements are capitalized.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of identifiable net tangible and intangible assets
acquired in a business combination. The Company applies
Statement of Financial Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets" (SFAS No. 142) and does not amortizate good-
will. Goodwill is required to be tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
goodwill may be impaired. in accordance with SFAS No. 142, the
Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing as of
December 31, 2004, and determined that no impairments existed
at that date.

intangible Assets. Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are
amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The amounts capitalized for patents include the cost of
acquiring and defending the patent.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company reviews the
carrying values of its long-ived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may
not be recoverable. Under SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" (SFAS No. 144),
long-lived assets must be carried at historical cost if the projected
cash flows from their use will recover their carrying amounts on an
undiscounted basis and without considering interest. However, if
projected cash flows are less than their carrying value, the long-
lived assets must be reduced to their estimated fair value.
Considerable judgment is required to project such cash flows and,
if required, estimate the fair value of the impaired long-lived asset.
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Accrued Liahilities. Accrued liabilities consist of the following as
of December 31:

/

/
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(in thousands) 2004 2003
Compensation related $2,173 $ 661
Other 784 380
Total $2,957 $1,041

Revenue Rrecognition. Revenue from product sales to direct
customers is recognized upon shipment as the Company generally
does not have any post-shipment obligations or allow for any
acceptance provisions and title passes at FOB shipping point. The
Company defers recognition of sales to distributors when it is
unable to make a reasonable estimate of product returns due to
insufficient historical product return information.

The Company had historically recorded all shipments to distribu-
tors as deferred revenue until shipped to the end customer
because the Company did not believe it had adequate historical-
data to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of future returns
as required under SFAS No. 48, "Revenue Recognition When
Right of Return Exists." During the first quarter of 2003, the
Company concluded that it had sufficient shipment and return
experience to allow for the recognition of revenue on shipments to
certain distributors at the time of shipment, along with a reserve for
estimated returns. Accordingly, during the first quarter of 2003, the
Company recognized an additional $1.3 million in product sales
revenue that would have been deferred prior to this change in esti-
mate. The impact on gross margin from this additional revenue
was approximately $490,000 for the year ended December 31,
2003.

Revenue from licensing programs is recognized over the period
the Company is required to provide services under the terms of the
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agreement. Revenue from research and development activities
that are funded by customers are recognized as the services are
performed.

Revenue from royalties is recognized upon the notification to us of
shipment of product from the Company's technology license part-
ners to direct customers.

Advertising. The Company expenses advertising costs as
incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were $476,000, $423,000, and $367,000,
respectively.

Income Taxes. The Company recognizes deferred income tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future income tax conse-
quences, based on enacted tax laws, of temporary differences
between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets, liabilities
and carryovers. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for
the expected future effects of all deductibie temporary differences,
loss carryovers and tax credit carryovers. Deferred tax assets are
then reduced, if deemed necessary, by a valuation allowance for
the amount of any tax benefits which, more likely than not, based
on current circumstances, are not expected to be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share. The Company calculates its
income (loss) per share pursuant to SFAS No. 128, "Eamings Per
Share" (SFAS No. 128). Under SFAS No. 128, basic income (loss)
per share is computed by dividing reported income (loss) available
to common steckholders by weighted average shares outstanding.
Diluted income (loss) per share reflects the potential dilution
assuming the issuance of common shares for all dilutive potential
commen shares outstanding during the period. In periods where
the Company records a net loss, all potentially dilutive securities,
including warrants and stock options, would be anti-dilutive and
thus, are excluded from diluted loss per share.




The following table sets forth the calculation of net income (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002:

December 31,

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3,934 $ (4,234) $ 1,643
Loss from discontinued operation $ (332) $(5,271) $(3,470)
Net income {loss) applicable to common shares $ 3,602 $ (9,505) $(1,923)

Common and common equivalent shares outstanding:

Historical common shares outstanding at beginning of year 22,191 22,124 22,081
Weighted average common equivalent shares issued during year 47 25 7
Weighted average common shares-basic 22,238 22,149 22,088
Weighted average common equivalent shares outstanding during year 1,290 - 731
Weighted average common shares-diluted 23,528 22,148 22,819
income (loss) from continuing operations per basic share $ 018 $ (0.19) $ 007
Loss from discontinued operation per basic share (0.02) (0.24) (0.16)
Net income (loss) per basic share $ 0.16 $ (043) $ (0.09)
Income (loss) from continuing operations per diluted share § 017 $ (0.19) $ 007
Loss from discontinued operation per diluted share (0.02) (0.24) (0.15)
Net income {loss) per diluted share $ 0.15 $ (0.43) $ (0.08)

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company had several equity instruments or obligations that could create
future dilution to the Company's common stockholders and which were not classified as outstanding common shares of the Company.
The following table details such instruments and obligations and the common stock equivalent for each. The common stock number is
based on specific conversion or issuance assumptions pursuant to the corresponding terms of each individual instrument or obligation.
During 2004, 2003 and 2002, these potential stock issuances were excluded from the net income (loss) per common share calculation
because they were anti-dilutive;

December 31,
{in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Warrants 725 2,349 1,468
Options 2,92 4,545 2,911
Convertible debentures 1,214 1,751 2,123

Stock-Based Compensation. At December 31, 2004, the Company had four stock-based compensation plans, which are more fully
described in Note 7 of these Notes of Consolidated Financial Statements below. The Company accounts for employee stock-based com-
pensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB No. 25}, "Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees" and related interpretations. All options granted under these plans have an exercise price equal to the mar-
ket value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, therefore no stock-based compensation is reflected in net income or loss.
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Had compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" as
amended by SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123," the Company's net income would have been decreased or net loss would have been increased to the following adjusted
amounts:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Dec. 31, 2004 Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares:

As reported $ 3,602 $(9,505) $(1,923)

Pro forma 1,885 {10,885) (4,181)
Net income (loss) per share:

As reported;

Basic ’ $0.16 $ (0.43) $ (0.09)

Diluted 0.15 (0.43) (0.08)

Pro forma:

Basic ‘ $ 0.08 $ (0.49) $(0.19)

Diluted 0.08 (0.49) {0.18)

For disclosure purposes, the fair value of stock based compensation was computed using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following weighted average assumptions used for 2004, 2003 and 2002 grants:

2004 2003 2002
Risk free interest rate 3.56% 3.00% 4.00%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected lives 4.0 years 4.0 years 4.0 years
Expected volatility 98% 108% M%

The weighted average fair value of shares granted during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $2.47, $1.68, and
$2.75, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-
term trade receivables and payables. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and short-term trade receiv-
ables and payables approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of the Company's promissory notes were
approximately $5,579,000 and $5,784,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Comprehensive Income or Loss. The Company reports all changes in equity that result from transactions and other economic events
from non-owner sources as comprehensive income or loss.

Reclassifications. Certain 2003 and 2002 balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements. In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment." This Standard
addresses the accounting for transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the
Company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the Company's equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of
such equity instruments. This Standard also eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and requires that such transactions be
accounted for using a fair-value-based method. The Standard is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company is
currently assessing its valuation options allowed in this Standard. Even though the Company has not guantified the dollar amount of this
new accounting standard, the result will have a negative impact on the Company's earnings starting with the accounting period begin-
ning July 1, 2005. ‘
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NOTE 2. INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2004 2003
Finished goods $3,973 $1,909
Work in process 2,136 3,191
Obsolescence reserve (340) (450)
$5,769 $4,650

NOTE 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, plant and equipment consists of:

Estimated December 31,

Useful Lives
(in thousands) (In Years) 2004 2003
Land - $§ 668 $ 668
Buildings and improvements ~ 18and 10 8,942 8,942
Equipment 5 15,466 15,057
Office furniture and equipment 5 616 620

25,692 25,287

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization {21,701) (21,092)

$3991 $4,195

Depreciation and amortization expense for property, plant and equipment was $326,000, $905,000, and $1,031,000 for 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Maintenance and repairs expense was $690,000, $575,000, and $567,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of:

December 31, December 31,
(in thousands) 2004 2003
Goodwill $10,019 $10,019
Accumulated amortization (5,999) {5,999)
Goodwill, net $ 4,020 $ 4020
Patents $ 6,124 $ 4,280
Product license fees - 2,150
Accumulated amortization (2,327) (4,257)
Intangible assets, net $ 3,797 $ 2173

There was no change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2004,
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In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142
changed the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets and
required that goodwill no longer be amortized but be tested for
impairment at least annually or more frequently if indicators of
potential impairment exist. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 were
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
except for provisions related to the non-amortization and amorti-
zation of goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30,
2001, which were subject immediately to the provisions of SFAS
No. 142. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 and completed its
initial impairment review as of January 1, 2002. There was no indi-
cated impairment of the Company's goodwill at the date of adop-
tion or at its first annual review as of December 31, 2002. As a
result of the events discussed below, the Company determined it
was necessary to perform an analysis of the fair value of its good-
will during the second quarter of 2003. As a result of an analysis
completed as of June 30, 2003, the Company recorded goodwill
impairment charges totaling $3,843,000. This charge is reflective
of a sustained downturn in DRAM market conditions that the
Company expected would continue for some time into the future
and had resulted in lower than expected actual and projected rev-
enue and profitability of its Mushkin business unit. In calculating
the impairment charge, the fair value was estimated using a dis-
counted cash flow methodology and market comparisons. The
Company completed its annual analysis of the fair value of its
goodwill as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and
determined there is no indicated impairment of its goodwill.

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $287,000,
$357,000 and $240,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets is $252,000
annually in 2005 through 2009 and $2.5 million thereafter.

NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT:

On March 14, 2002, the Company signed an agreement to issue
$8.0 million of 5 year, 5% fixed rate, convertible debentures. The
debentures are convertible into the Company's common stock at a
fixed conversion price of $3.769, which is equal to 110% of the five-
day volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the Company's
common stock prior to the transaction signing. The debentures are
secured by a Deed of Trust on the Company's headguarters facil-
ity in Colorado Springs, Colorado and by a security interest in cer-
tain of its accounts receivable and patents.

In addition, 700,435, 5-year common stock warrants were issued
to the investors with an initial exercise price of $4.28 per share.
The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with a resuiting total value of approximately $1,773,000 at
March 28, 2002. This amount is accounted for as a discount to the
outstanding debentures and is being amortized over the remaining
life of the debentures as a charge to interest expense. The
unamortized discount pertaining to the outstanding debentures as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003 as a result of the issuance of the
warrants is approximately $763,000 and $1,183,000, respectively.
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As a result of the conversion terms of these debentures, a benefi-
cial conversion feature of $900,000 was created. This beneficial
conversion feature is recorded as an increase to additional paid-in
capital and as a debt discount to the outstanding debentures. This
discount is being amortized over the remaining life of the deben-
tures as a charge to interest expense. The unamortized discount
pertaining to the outstanding debentures as of December 31, 2004
and 2003 as a result of the beneficial conversion feature is approx-
imately $388,000 and $601,000, respectively.

The debentures contain covenants including, without limitation,
achieving a minimum amount of earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), as defined in the deben-
ture agreements, and not exceeding a defined level of capital
expenditures. As of June 30, 2003, the Company failed to meet
the minimum EBITDA covenant under the debenture agreements,
which by the terms of the debentures became an event of default
on July 30, 2003 (the Default). On August 18, 2003, the Company
entered into a Waiver and Amendment to Debenture Agreement
(the Waiver Agreement) with the debenture holders. The Waiver
Agreement provided for a waiver of the Default as well as a waiver
of all remaining EBITDA covenants during 2003. In addition, the
Waiver Agreement required that the Company make quarterly prin-
cipal payments to the debenture holders over the following six
quarters. Through December 31, 2004, the Company has made
principal payments totaling approximately $3.5 million. To fulfill the
Company's Waiver Agreement obiigations it made a final quarterly
principal payment of $125,000 on December 31, 2004. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, $4,535,000 and $6,600,000 were
outstanding on these debentures, respectively.

In addition, the Waiver Agreement provided for lowering the exer-
cise price of the 700,435 common stock warrants held by the
debenture holders from $4.28 to a price equal to 150% of the aver-
age closing bid price for the Company's common stock for the 5-
trading days immediately preceding the effective date of the
Waiver Agreement ($3.04) and an extension of the exercise period
for one year. The adjustment to the original terms of the warrants
created an additional non-cash increase to debt discount and addi-
tional paid-in capital of approximately $179,000, which was
recorded during the quarter ended September 30, 2003 and is
included in the unamortized debt discount balances disclosed
above. This increase to debt discount is being amortized into inter-
est expense over the remaining life of the debentures.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants of the debentures.

Interest paid to the debenture holders during 2004, 2003 and 2002
was approximately $225,000, $385,000 and $305,000, respec-
tively.

On April 6, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to set-
tle its long standing patent interference proceeding with National
Semiconductor Corporation (see Note 14 of these Notes of




Consolidated Financial Statements below). As a result of the settiement, beginning April 2004, the Company is required to pay National
$250,000 annually through 2013. As of December 31, 2004, the present value of this promissory note is $1,780,000. The Company is
discounting the note at 5.75%. '

On March 31, 2003, the Company signed an agreement with Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. to provide a secured $3.0 million revolv-
ing line of credit. The credit facility provides for interest at a floating rate equal to the prime lending rate plus 1.75% per annum and a
term of 3 years. Security for the credit facility includes the Company's non-European accounts receivable and inventories. Interest
charges and minimum fees paid to Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. during 2004 and 2003 were approximately $126,000 and $107,000,
respectively. Amounts available under the credit facility were approximately $3.0 miflion and $1.7 million as of December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, respectively. As of December 31, 2004, there were no amounts outstanding on this line of credit.

Maturities of the Company's outstanding promissory notes are as foliows as of December 31, 2004

After
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2009 Total
Debentures § - § - 84535 5 - N
Other Promissory Note 250 250 250 250 250 1,000 2,250
Total ' $250 $250 $4,785 $250 $250 $1,000 $6,785

NOTE 6. COMMITMENTS:

Lease Commitments. The Company has commitments under non-cancelable operating leases expiring through 2008 for various equip-
ment and facilities. Minimum future annual lease payments under these leases as of December 31, 2004 are as follows:

2005 $345,000
2006 193,000
2007 52,000
2008 56,000

$646,000

Total rent expense on all operating leases was $314,000, $61,000, and $81,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Manufacturing Alliances. The Company has entered into a third-party manufacturing agreement for the supply of its FRAM products.
The Company's third-party manufacturing agreement provides only for a call on the manufacturing capacity of the vendor. The product
will be supplied to the Company at prices negotiated between the Company and the third-party manufacturer based on current market
conditions. The Company does not currently engage in any take-or-pay agreements with its manufacturing vendors.

NOTE 7. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred Stock. In February 1998, the Company issued and sold in a private placement Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
(Preferred Stock). On July 20, 1999, the Company's common stockholders approved the restructuring of the terms of the Company's
Preferred Stock. After the restructuring, 872 shares of Preferred Stock remained outstanding.

The restated terms of the remaining Preferred Stock included (i) a fixed conversion at $5.00 per share; (i) a three-year term expiring on
July 31, 2002; (iii) an adjusted dividend rate of 11% per annum (subject to possible future adjustments); and {iv) a mandatory redemp-
tion feature at the date of maturity of $1,000 per share plus accrued dividends. On July 31, 2002, in accordance with the restated terms
of the preferred stock, the Company redeemed 1,160 shares for $1,174,000.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded $0, $0 and $82,000 of dividends, respectively and $0,
$0 and $14,000 of discount accretion on redeemable preferred stock, respectively.
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Warrants. Warrants to purchase shares of the Company's common stock are as follows:

Number of Shares

(in thousands)

Exercise Principal
Price Per Share Stockholders Others Total
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2001 $2.25-$17.00 1,793 45 1,838
Cancelled $5.00 (220) (20) (240)
Granted $3.77-34.28 700 76 776
Qutstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002 $2.25-$17.00 2,273 101 2,374
Cancelled $4.28-$17.00 (700 (25) (725)
Granted $3.04 700 - 700
Qutstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003 $2.25-$6.88 2,273 76 2,349
Cancelled $3.77 - (18) (18)
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2004 $2.25-$6.88 2,273 58 2,331

All of the outstanding warrants are currently exercisable. Of such warrants: warrants to purchase 58,000 shares at $4.11 expire in March
2007, warrants to purchase 667,000 shares at $6.88 expire in December 2007; warrants to purchase 700,000 shares at $3.04 expire in
March 2008;and warrants to purchase 906,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $2.25 expire in 2008 and 2009.

Stock Options. The Company has four stock option plans, the Amended and Restated 1986 Stock Option Plan {the 1986 Plan), the
1989 Non-statutory Stock Option Plan {the 1989 Plan), the 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the 1995 Plan}, and the 1999 Stock
Option Plan (the 1999 Plan) (collectively, the Plans). The Plans reserve 6,235,714 shares of the Company's common stock for issuance
and permit the issuance of non-qualified stock options. The exercise price of all non-qualified stock options must be equal to at least
85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant in the 1986 and 1989 Plans and 95% in the 1995 and 1999 Plans,
and the maximum term of each grant is ten years. Options granted become exercisable in full or in installments pursuant to the terms
of each agreement evidencing options granted. The 1986 and the 1995 Plans also permit the issuance of incentive stock options. As
of December 31, 2004, the Company has not granted any incentive stock options. The number of options available for future grant on
these plans is 89,355.
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The Company accounts for these plans under APB Opinion No. 25, under which no compensation cost is recognized for grants with an
exercise price equal to or in excess of the value of the underlying stock on the measurement date.

Activity in the Plans is as follows:

Number of Shares

(in thousands)

Weighted Average Directors
Exercise and

Price Per Share Officers Employees Total
Qutstanding at December 31, 2001 $7.56 1,757 1,960 3,717
Granted $374 400 713 1,113
Cancelled $9.93 (10 (242) (252)
Exercised $2.19 - (43) (43)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002 $6.54 2,147 2,388 4,535
Granted $2.31 425 662 1,087
Cancelled $6.49 (344) (666) {1,010)
Exercised $2.03 - (67) (67)
Reclassification (388) 388 -
Qutstanding at December 31, 2003 $5.61 1,840 2,705 4,545
Granted $3.66 485 447 932
Cancelled $6.88 {4) (164) (168)
Exercised $218 (114) (75) (189)
Reclassification (324) 324 -
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 $534 1,883 3,237 5120

As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, 3,270,000, 2,735,000, and 2,406,000 of the above options were exercisable, respectively,
with weighted average exercise prices of $6.60, $7.26, and $8.79, respectively.

The following table sets forth the exercise price range, number of Weighted
shares, weighted average exercise price and remaining contrac- Number of Average
tual lives by groups of options; Exercise Price Options Exercise
Range Exercisable Price
Weighted Average (in thousands)
Number of Remaining ’ o
Exercise Price Options Exercise  Contractual ~ $ 1.47-$ 2.25 a7 $ 205
Range Outstanding Price Life $232-% 3.16 340 2.37
; $ 3.18-§ 3.80 601 3.76
(in thousands) $ 3.90 - $10.56 1,017 6.54
$147-§225 1,106 $2.03 596 $10.75 - $40.10 337 2928
$232-% 3.16 1,044 240 8.83 3,270 6.60
$ 3.18-% 3.80 1,601 3.74 8.92
$ 3.90-%10.56 1,032 6.52 5.62
$10.75 - $40.10 337 29.28 1.80
5,120 5.34 713

75

i

. ﬁ A\

2,

g (—,ﬁxlj«‘l I

S

P

[




NOTE 8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions with the Fund. The National Electrical Benefit
Fund (the Fund) is a principal stockholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated
March 13, 1989 between the Company and the Fund, as amended
by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated June 29, 1989 (the 1989 Fund
Purchase Agreement), the Company agreed to pay to the Fund, for
as long as the Fund owns at least 5% of the outstanding shares of
the Company's common stock, a reasonable monthly consulting
fee of not more than $5,000 and to reimburse the Fund for all out-
of-pocket expenses incurred in monitoring the Fund's investment in
the Company. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company was
obligated to pay to the Fund approximately $60,000 per year in
payment of such fees and expenses. Payments made for these
obligations were $65,000, $142,000 and $0 during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. $15,000 and $20,000 related to this obligation
are included in accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Transactions Involving Infineon Technologies AG. infineon
Technologies AG is a principal stockholder of the Company.

In January 2000, the Company's then wholly owned subsidiary,
EMS, entered into a non-exclusive, worldwide technology licensing
agreement with Infineon. In consideration for the grant of the
license to Infineon's technology, Infinecn received 20% of the out-
standing common stock of EMS. Additionally, the agreement
called for Infineon to provide EMS with commitied wafer manufac-
turing capacity using Infineon's advanced DRAM and embedded
DRAM process capabilities and access to Infineon's design tech-
nology. Payments to Infineon for wafers, phote masks and tooling
charges related to EMS's committed wafer manufacturing capacity
during 2004, 2003 and 2002 were approximately $633,000,
$1,091,000 and $2,174,000, respectively.

During 2002 and 2003, Infineon and EMS entered intc agreements
whereby EMS agreed to design and develop new products for
Infineon ‘on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue recognized from these
agreements was approximately $0, $514,000 and $605,000 for
2004, 2003 and 2C02, respectively.

On March 29, 2002, the Company issued a $3 million, 5% interest,
5-year debenture to Infineon. The debenture is convertible into the
Company's common stock at a fixed conversion price of $3.769
per share, which is equal to 110% of the five-day volume weighted
average price(VWAP) of the Company's common stock prior to the
transaction signing. The Infineon debenture is secured by a secu-
rity interest the Company granted to Infineon in certain of its
accounts receivable and patents. In addition, 262,663 common
stock warrants are held by Infineon with a modified exercise price
of $3.04 per share and an expiration date of March 28, 2008.
Interest paid to Infineon during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approx-
imately $101,000, $150,000 and $115,000, respectively. The
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amounts outstanding under the debentures were $1,560,000 and
$3,000,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
amount outstanding at December 31, 2004 is due in 2007.

NOTE 9. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest and income taxes:

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Interest $ 371 $508 $326
Income taxes - - -

Non-cash investing and
financing transaction:
Intellectual property
acquired through
issuance of long-term debt $1,955 - -
NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES:

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $142
million of net operating loss carryovers for tax purposes. Further,
the Company has approximately $1.6 million of research and
development tax credits available to offset future federal and state
income taxes. The net operating loss and credit carryovers expire
through 2023. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions,
which may limit the net operating loss carryforwards available to be
used in any given year if certain events occur, including significant
changes in ownership interests. The components of deferred
income taxes are as follows:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2004 2003
Deferred tax assets;
Capital loss carryovers $7300 §$7300
Deferred revenue 2,300 2,800
Other _ 4,500 4,378
Net operating loss carryovers 56,600 60,880
70,700 75,358
Valuation allowance (70,700)  (75,358)
§5 - 5 -

Management has determined, based on all available evidence, it is
more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be real-
ized. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a valuation
allowance equal to its net deferred tax assets as of December 31,
2004 and 2003.




The provision for income taxes from continuing operations includes the following:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Current: )
Federal $ 74 } - -
State -
Total current 74
Deferred:
Federal 1,458 $(109) $610
State 208 (15) 87
Total deferred {benefit) expense 1,666 {124) 697
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance (1,666) 124 (697)
Total provision $ 4 $ - $

Total income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income
(loss) tax rate to income before taxes. The reasons for this difference for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Computed tax at federal statutory rate $ 1,403 $(1,482) $ 575 o

State income taxes, net of federal impact 208 (15) 82 //

Non-deductible expenses 55 1,373 40

Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance (1,666) 124 (697)

Alternative minimum taxes 74 - - o
Total income tax provision $ 74 $8 - $ - =

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, net operating loss carryovers of approximately $8.7 million, $2.4 million and $5.1 million, respectively, f"

expired, which decreased the recorded valuation allowance in each respective year. In addition, taxable losses from EMS of $1.2 mil- -

lion, $3.9 million and $2.7 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, are included in the net operating lose carryover balances above \

and have increased the recorded valuation allowance each respective year. ‘ \,

N

Tax expense other than payroll and income taxes were $187,000, $222,000, and $269,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION:

During the first quarter of 2004, the Company committed to a plan to sell substantially all of the remaining assets of EMS. The remain-
ing assets consisted primarily of EMS' patent portfolio. The Company completed the sale of EMS' patent portfolio on April 20, 2004, the
proceeds of which were $1.5 million. Due to a write-down of the carrying value of the patent portfolio to its estimated fair value at
March 31, 2004, there was no gain or loss recorded on the finalization of the sale. Pursuant to the terms of the Company's Security
Agreement with Infineon, the Company was required to seek a release from Infineon for the sale of EMS' patent portfolio. This release
required that all amounts due to Infineon in 2004 under the Waiver Agreement (see Note 5 of these Notes of Consolidated Financial
Statements above) be paid upon receipt of the proceeds from the sale of EMS' patent portfolio.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the consolidated financial statements of the Company have been recast to present this business as

a discontinued operation. Accordingly, the revenue, costs and expenses and assets and liabilities of the discontinued operation have
been excluded from the respective captions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Balance Sheets and have been reported
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in the various statements under the caption, "Loss from discontinued operation,” "Assets of discontinued operation” and "Liabilities of

discontinued operation” for all periods. In addition, certain of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements have been recast for all
periods to reflect the discontinuance of this operation.

Summary results for the discontinued operation are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

{in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Operating results:
Revenue $ 311 $ 2,220 $4,202
Costs and expenses (299) (5,804) {7,672)
Impairment of patents and intangibles (364) (1,687) -
Income tax benefit 20
Loss from discontinued operation $(332) $(5.271) $(3,470)

In June 2003, EMS was notified by its primary contract engineering service customers that on-going product development programs
would be discontinued no later than July 31, 2003, As a result of these events, a valuation of EMS' intangible assets was completed and
impairment charges of $1,687,000 were recorded to adjust asset carrying values to their estimated fair value at June 30, 2003. The fair
values were determined by obtaining an appraisal from an independent consulting firm specializing in such valuations.

Amounts included in the December 31, 2004 and 2003 Consolidated Balance Sheets for the discontinued operation are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003
Assets of discontinued operation:

Accounts receivable $ - $ 217

Inventories - 303

Intangible asset, net - 1,896

Total $ - $2.416

Liabilities of discontinued operation:

Accounts payable $ 239 $1,418

NOTE 12. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA INFORMATION:

The Company's reportable segments are those that are based on the Company's method of internal reporting, which generally segre-
gates the strategic business units due to differences in products and distribution channels.

The Company's continuing operations are conducted through two business segments. The Company's FRAM business licenses, man-
ufactures and distributes ferroelectric nonvolatile random access memory products (FRAM Segment). The Company's wholly owned

subsidiary, Mushkin Inc., distributes high-speed DRAM products in the aftermarket through direct, retail, and e-commerce sales chan-
nels (DRAM Segment).
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The accounting policies for determining segment net income (loss) are the same as those used in the consolidated financial statements.
There are no internal sales between segments or geographic regions.
2004 2003 2002
FRAM DRAM  Total FRAM  DRAM  Total FRAM DRAM  Total

(in thousands)

Product sales $37,231 $18,334 $55,565 $26,593 $11.446 $38,039 $22,224 $16,313 $38,537
License & development fees M7 - 717 498 - 498 6,829 - 6,829
Royalties 765 - 765 480 - 480 398 - 398
Customer sponsored

research and development 781 - 781 1,162 - 1,162 579 - 579

39494 18,334 57,828 28,733 11,446 40,179 30,030 16,313 46,343

Operating costs (34,424) (18,132) (52,556) (27,864) (11,367) (39,231) (27,437) (16,470) (43,907)
Impairment charges - - - - (3,843) (3,843) - - -
Operating income (loss) 5,070 202 5272 869 (3,764) (2,895) 2,593 (157) 2436
Other - - - 2 - 2 6 - 6
Segment income (loss) $ 5070 $ 202 §$5272 $ 871 $(3,764) $(2,893) $ 2599 § (157) § 2,442
Total assets $26,555 $7,098 $33,653 $21,373 §5856 $27,229 $24,171 § 9,474 $33,645
Depreciation and

amortization $1203 § 10 § 1213 $1248 § 14 §$1262 $1246 § 25 § 1,271
Capital additions $ 797 % 25 § 822 $ 684 § 1§ 685 $ 501 $§ 24 § 525 /
Intangible additions $ 179 § - § 179 § 481 § - § 481 $ 493 § - § 493
Segment income (loss) excludes interest income, interest expense and income tax provision on a total basis of $(1,338,000), %
$(1,341,000), and $(799,000} in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, not allocated to business segments. &
Revenue amounts and percentages for major customers representing more than 10% of total revenue are as follows: ‘E‘

2004 2003 2002
FRAM DRAM FRAM DRAM FRAM DRAM
(in thousands) \M

CustomerA......... - - - - - - $6,508 14%
CustomerB............ - - 88771 12% - - - - -
Customer C............ $17,213  30% - - $15,815  39% - - 16,339 35% - -
Customer D........... - - - - - - $5,751 14% - - 36714 14%
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The following geographic area data include revenue based on
product shipment destination, license and development payor
location and customer-sponsored research and development
payor location. The data presented for long-lived assets is based
on physical location.

Geographic Area Net Revenue:

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

United States 321,854  $12596  $23,902
Japan 5,973 3,359 1,791
Canada 1,586 1,136 749
United Kingdom 1,885 1,153 593
Germany 1,772 1,524 590
China/Hong Kong 5,680 5,474 10,661
Italy 12,207 13,132 6,648
Czech Republic 3,226 3 8
Rest of world 3,645 1,802 1,401
Total $57,828  $40,179  $46,343
Geographic Area Long-lived Assets (Net):

(in thousands) 2004 2003

United States $12,079  $10,755
Thailand 165 222
Rest of world - 27
Total $12.234  $11,004

NOTE 13. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN:

The Company has a cash or deferred compensation plan (the
401(k) Plan) intended to qualify under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), in which
substantially all employees are participants. Participants in the
401(k) Plan may make maximum pretax contributions, subject to
limitations imposed by the Code, of 100% of their compensation.
The Company may make, at the Board of Directors' discretion, an
annual contribution on behalf of each participant. No amounts
were contributed by the Company under the 401(k} Plan on behalf
of participating employees during 2003 and 2002. During 2004,
approximately $72,000 was charged to expense for Company con-
tributions under the 401(k) Plan to be paid in the first quarter of
2005. :

NOTE 14. CONTINGENCIES:

Patent Interference Proceeding. On April 6, 2004, the Company
and National Semiconductor Corporation (National) entered into
an agreement to settle their long standing patent interference dis-
pute, which began in 1991 as a patent interference proceeding that
was declared in the United States Patent and Trademark Office
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(the Patent Office) in regard to one of the Company's issued United
States patents. The patent involved covers a basic ferroelectric
memory cell design invention that the Company believes is of fun-
damental importance to its FRAM business in the United States.

Under the terms of the settlement agreement Ramtron has aban-
doned four of the five claims in its existing patent, two of National's
patent applications relating to the interference claims have been
assigned to Ramtron and two others were retained by National.
National and Ramtron have agreed to cross license any and all
future patents that may mature from the four applications at no
additional cost to either company. As consideration for the
assigned patent applications and cross license provisions of the
agreement, Ramtron will pay National $2.5 million in equal annual
instaliments of $250,000 through 2013. At March 31, 2004, the
Company recorded an intangible asset and current and long-term
debt of approximately $1,955,000, the present value of the annual
installment payments. At December 31, 2004, the discounted
amount is approximately $1,780,000. The Company is discounting
this liability at 5.75%. The Company did not record an impairment
of the existing patents held for the technology in dispute as the
Company believes, with the assignments and cross-license
arrangements discussed previously, we are in a position now, inso-
far as our ability to use the technology in dispute is concerned, that
is at least as favorable as our position prior to this resolution. In
addition, the Company believes the amounts capitalized related to
these patents and licenses will be recovered through future cash
flows.

The fifth remaining count of interference has been sent to a Special
Master for a final ruling. Ramtron believes its business would not
be materially affected by an adverse judgment by the Special
Master on the remaining count of interference. The disposition of
this matter, expected in 2005, is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Other Patent Matters. The Company's industry is characterized
by the existence of a large number of patents and frequent claims
and related litigation regarding patents and other intellectual prop-
erty rights. The Company cannct be certain that third parties will
not make a claim of infringement against the Company or against
its semiconductor company licensees in connection with their use
of the Company's technology. Any claims, even those without
merit, could be time consuming to defend, result in costly litigation
and diversion of technical and management personnel, or require
the Company to enter into royalty or licensing agreements. These
royalty or licensing agreements, if required, may not be available
to the Company on acceptable terms or at all. A successful claim
of infringement against the Company or one of its semiconductor
manufacturing licensees in connection with our use of the
Company's technology could materially impact the Company's
results of operations. '




Other Litigation. The Company is involved in other legal matters in the ordinary course of business. Although the outcomes of any
such legal actions cannot be predicted, management believes that there is no pending legal proceeding against or involving the Company
for which the outcome is likely to have a material adverse effect upon the Company's financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 15. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following unaudited information shows selected items by quarter for the years 2004 and 2003.

2004 2003

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

{in thousands except per share data)

Revenue $13,482 $14,736 $15200 §$14,410 $10,203  $10,836 $7,662 $11,478
Gross margin, product sales 5179 5712 6,079 5,494 3,830 4,405 2,625 4,621
Impairment charges - - - - - 3,843 - -
Operating income (loss) 1,525 1,503 1,622 622 388 (3,377)  (1,214) 1,307

Net income (loss) applicable to

commen shares from

continuing operations 1,169 1,157 1,291 317 109 (3,674)  (1,593) 924
Loss from discontinued operation (333) {(19) - 20 (1,914) (2,298) (702) (357)

Basic:

Income (loss) per share from

continuing operations $005 $005 $006 $0.01 $ 001 $(0.17) $(0.07) $ 0.04
Loss from discontinued operation  § (0.01) - - - $(0.09) §(0.10) §$(0.03) $(0.01)
Total $004 $005 $006 §$ 001 $(0.08) $(0.27) §$(0.10) $0.03
Diluted:
Income (loss) per share from
continuing operations $005 $005 $006 § 001 $ 001 $(17) $(007) $ 004
Loss from discontinued operation  $ (0.01) - - - $(0.09) $(0.10) $(0.03) $(0.02
Total $004 $005 $006 $ 001 $(0.08)  $(027) $(0.10) $ 0.02
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Eihancials

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ramtron International Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying (consolidated) balance sheets of Ramtron International Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we
also have audited financial statement schedule Il. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Ramtron International Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effec-
tiveness of Ramtron International Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria estab-
lished in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{(COS0), and our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an ungualified opinion on management's assessment of, and an adverse opin-
ion on the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 15, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockhelders
Ramtron International Corporation:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting (Item 9A(c)) that Ramtron International Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, because of the effect of material weaknesses identified in management's assessment, based on criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
Ramtron International Corporation's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on manage-
ment's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) pro-
vide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of ihe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in con-
ditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weaknesses
were identified by management as of December 31, 2004: (1) Ramtron International Corporation policies and procedures did not require
matching of customer order documents with shipping and invoice documents prior to recording revenue, nor were appropriate informa-
tion technology access controls present as part of the authorization of revenue process. The absence of these controls could have
resulted in misstatements to revenue and accounts receivable, and (2) Ramtron International Corporation policies and procedures did
not provide for adequate controls over the approval of cash disbursements at its Mushkin subsidiary. The absence of these controls could
have resulted in misstatement and misclassification of recorded costs and expenses.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States}, the con-
solidated balance sheets of Ramtron International Corporation as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. The
aforementioned material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of
the 2004 consclidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 15, 2005, which expressed an unqual-
ified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.
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In our opinion, management's assessment that Ramtron International Corporation did not maintain effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ). Also, in our opin-
ion, because of the effect of the material weaknesseses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria,
Ramtron International Corporation has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

KPMP LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 15, 2005
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Corporate Information

Corporate Offices

1850 Ramtron Drive
Colorado Springs, CO 80921
Tel: 719-481-7000
Fax: 719-481-9294

State of Incorporation

Delaware

Annual Meeting

Hilton Garden Inn

1810 Briargate Parkway
Colorado Springs, CO 80920
December 2, 2005 at 10:30 a.m.

Ramtron Securities

The Company’s common stock trades on the Nasdaq National
Market tier of The Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol
‘RMTR."

Dividends

The Company has not paid any dividends since its inception and
does not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. The Company intends to retain any earnings to finance its
operations.

Communication with the Board of Directors

Confidential written correspondence to Ramtron’s Board of
Directors should be sent to the following address:

Board of Directors

Ramtron International Corporation
Attn: Chairman of the Board
1850 Ramtron Drive

Colorado Springs, CO 80921

Shareholder Assistance

For information regarding lost stock certificates or changes of
address, please write to the Company's transfer agent:

Citibank, N.A

333 Greenwich Street
14th Floor

New York, NY 10013

U.S. Customer Service 877-248-4237
International Customer Service 781-575-4555

For additional copies of this report, 10-K or 10-Q, or other finan-
cial information, Ramtron stockholders or other interested
investors can contact:

Ramtron International Corporation
1850 Ramtron Drive

Colorado Springs, CO 80821
718-481-7000

For other information or questions, please contact:

Investors Relations

Ramtron International Corporation
1850 Ramtron Drive Drive
Colorado Springs, CO 80921
719-481-7213

Ramtron on the Internet

For information about Ramtron and its products, please visit us at
the following web addresses:

www.ramtron.com
email: info@ramtron.com

Duplicate Mailings

If you receive more than one Annual Report and Proxy Statement
and wish to help us reduce costs by discontinuing multiple mailings
to your address, contact:

Citibank Shareholders Services
P.O. Box 43077

Providence, Rl 02940-3077
877-248-4237

Electronic Proxy Materials

Ramtron's proxy materials can now be received electronically.
This option will save the Company the cost of printing and mailing
these materials to you. It will also make them accessible to you
immediately as soon as they are available.

If you are a street holder (you own stock through a bank or broker),
please contact your broker and ask for electronic delivery of
Ramtron’s proxy materials.

Directors and Officers

William G. Howard, Chairman of the Board

Klaus Fleischmann, Director

Doris Keitel-Schulz, Director

William George, Director

Jack L. Saltich, Director

Theodore J. Coburn, Director

William W. Staunton, I, Director and CEQ

Greg B. Jones, Director and President-Technology Group
Eric A. Balzer, Director and CFO
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